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Established in 1856, Eterna today remains among a handful of watch houses who make and continue to improve the heart of the watch,
its mechanical movement. The company intends to stick with its current course, putting its long traditions at the service of progress both
technical and aesthetic. Making the most of its watchmakers' accomplished craftsmanship, it sees each and every one of its watches as an
opportunity to demonstrate its vigorous capacity for innovation in the classic art of watchmaking. Eterna, perfection that stands the test of
time.
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Creating a new brand is an extraordinary adventure. As with any story, it begins with an idea, a vision and a plan, but above all a desire
to make something that is different. CODEX's story began in Biel in 2009. The brand is distinguished by the recognizable style of its
mechanical watches, and by their unique design and irreproachable quality.
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PORSCHE DESIGN

Prosche Design has been developing and producing chronographs for more then thirty years and has continues to push the limits in doing
so. Not only enhancing the existing design, Prosche Design continuously dedicates in the art of watchmaking through innovative functions,
unusual materials, pure and exquisite design and absolute perfection down to the very last detail.
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ROSSINI Z& 75 /2

The outstanding performance of ROSSINI exhibits the continuous dedication of Swiss technology and innovation. Every style is a
harmonious combination of soul and craftsmanship. Nobly and elegant temperament, slim and smooth line, delicate and exquisite
craftsmanship, which endues a elegant and romantic cultural attitude of its owner, as well as a comfortable and caring but honorable
experience, recurs the kingliness of Swiss watches.
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EBOHR i

With its eminent potentiality, classical fashion style and nob
pioneers in the China watch market. EBOHR emphasizes on
of real material and emotion.
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Corporate Highlights in 2011
—E——FREIKREZLE

JANUARY 2011 —&——%—A

China Haidian Holdings Limited (the “Company”) sold the 49% equity interest of Fuzhou Dartong Machinery and Electronic Company
Limited, a jointly-controlled entity of the Company, at a consideration of HK$93,342,000; and the 25.58% equity interest of Jiangsu
Dartong M&E Co., Limited, an associate company of the Company, at a consideration of HK$40,768,000.

TEEREBER AR ([ARR ) AK(E3,342,0008 T H EARRE —RARZEH B RN AN BEEEBR A FI49%AAHE
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MARCH 2011 —&——fF=A

Zhuhai Rossini Watch Industry Ltd. (“Rossini”) was ranked as 1st in overall market share in the watch category in 2010 by China General
Chamber of Commerce and China National Commercial Information Centre. It was ranked as 1st in sales volume of its product category
for nine consecutive years since 2002.
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MAY 2011 =Z&——FHA

The Group entered into a joint venture agreement for the establishment of Liaoning Hengjia Horologe Co., Ltd. (“Hengjia”). Hengjia is
mainly engaged in the distribution of well-known Swiss and Japanese watch brands.
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JUNE 2011 —&——% A

The Group acquired the shares and loans of Eterna AG Uhrenfabrik (“Eterna”) at a total consideration of CHF22,911,001 (equivalent to
approximately HK$213,920,000), which provides the Group with two additional international watch brands and the mechanical movement
manufacturing capability.
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Rossini and EBOHR were both awarded China’s 500 most valuable brands of the year 2011 by the World Brand Laboratory. Rossini was
ranked 1st in watch category with brand value at RMB2.796 billion, while EBOHR was ranked 2nd with brand value at RMB2.181 billion.
Their brand values grew 47% and 21% respectively from previous year.
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Corporate Highlights in 2011
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SEPTEMBER 2011 —ZZE——F 1 B

Rossini was awarded as one of the “Asia’s 500 Most Influential Brands of the year 2011" by the World Brand Laboratory and World
Entrepreneur magazine. It is the only domestic watch brand in Mainland China that has received this award for three consecutive years.
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NOVEMBER 2011 =& ——%+—8

The Group entered into a joint venture agreement to establish Guangzhou Five Sheep Watch Limited (“Five Sheep”). Five Sheep is mainly
engaged in manufacturing and distribution of mechanical movements and watches.
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DECEMBER 2011 =& ——F+=8

The new Eterna Calibre 3843 movement with Eterna Spherodrive received qualification.
Eterna Spherodrivefid & 2 ¥TEterna Calibre 3843# N ENS &K EE o

The Group acquired 25% of the issued shares of Fair Future Industrial Limited ("Fair Future”). Fair Future is principally engaged in the
manufacture of watches and accessories of watches in Hong Kong.

AEBWBELEZRARAR([E)EETRD25% - EAXTERNEBRFRET R NEEREM -

The Group entered into a joint venture agreement to establish of Beijing Haina Tianshi Watch Company Limited (“Haina"). Haina is mainly
engaged in the distribution of well-known international watch brands. It allows the Group to enter into the Beijing and Tianjin retail
watch market.

AEET YA ZHHENIEEARKERERAT(ER]) - BRI BLEDHANLERERME  ITRASERE
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Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, the Chairman of the Company, was awarded one of the outstanding Chinese business leaders in 2011 collectively by
Chinese — No1.com and Asian Leaders Magazine.
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Corporate Financial Highlights
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Watches and Timepieces Segment Highlights
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Brand Value
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Source: the World Brand Laboratory
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WA K& F

HK$'000 T8 7T

mm Revenue WA
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Revenue by Proprietary and
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Corporate Information
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

1. HON Kwok Lung (Chairman)

SHANG Jianguang (Chief Executive Officer)

SHI Tao

LAM Toi Man

Bl Bo

SIT Lai Hei (re-designated as executive director from non-executive
director on 26 March 2012)
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Independent Non-executive Directors
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8. KWONG Chun Wai, Michael

9. LI Qiang
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

| am pleased to report another record-
breaking year for China Haidian Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”).
Our financial performance reflects
the integrated efforts of the Board,
management team and staff, as well
as our business partners in successfully
pursuing our mission to be one of leaders
in the domestic watch-making industry of
Mainland China.
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

Dear shareholders,

2011 is a year of reckoning for China Haidian Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”). Not only has it
witnessed the remarkable growth of the Group, but also is the year of historic
moment for another stage of development. During the year, all the watch
subsidiaries of the Group, focusing on both proprietary and non-proprietary
brands, have achieved significant growth and at the same time, the Group
pursued important acquisitions in both Mainland China and overseas. Our
financial performance and strategic moves reflect the integrated efforts of the
board, management and staff, as well as our business partners in successfully
pursuing our mission to be one of leaders in the watch industry of Mainland
China.

Followings are some of the notable highlights of 2011:

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Group achieved substantial revenue growth in 2011. Revenue for the
year amounted to HK$1,970,319,000, representing an increase of 32%
over that of 2010. Our net profit after tax for the year ended 31 December
2011 was HK$281,790,000. Having set apart the financial impact of the
loss on disposals of associates for the year of HK$4,952,000 (2010: gain
of HK$177,711,000), the Group would have an increase of net profit of
HK$183,671,000 compared with the net profit last year. The watch and
timepieces segment contributed an increase in revenue of HK$643,952,000
and increase in net profit of HK$135,720,000. Net asset value per share was
HK$0.76.

The Board, after due deliberation, resolved to recommend a final dividend of
HK4.5 cents per share. Together with the interim dividend of HK1.0 cent per
share paid in October 2011, the dividend for the full year is HK5.5 cents per
share, which is an increase of 10% over the total dividend of HK5.0 cents per
share for the year 2010.

ORGANIC GROWTH OF ROSSINI AND EBOHR

Zhuhai Rossini Watch Industry Ltd. (“Rossini”) and EBOHR Luxuries
International Company Limited ("EBOHR") are dominant leaders in
the domestic watch-making industry. Capitalising on the increasingly
comprehensive distribution network and wide range of quality products,
both Rossini and EBOHR generated increasingly strong recurring income
from the established watch market for the general public and develop
additional income from selectively targeted market segments. Comprehensive
market information from regional sale offices on product sales by outlets
and locations contributed to the success of our new product lines and the
understanding of and targeting to the changing customer needs in different
regions of Mainland China. Our continuous effort in brand building sustained
the high awareness of our proprietary brands.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEWE

Robust economic growth, accelerated urbanization and, most incidentally,
the increased disposal income and consumption power in Mainland China
contributed to the excellent performance of Rossini and EBOHR in 2011 and
years to come.

Leveraging on the strong brand awareness, Rossini and EBOHR continue the
aggressive retail-oriented strategy with its majority of products distributed
through our own directly-controlled distribution outlets through department
stores, which expanded at an accelerated pace in 2011. At the end of 2011,
Rossini and EBOHR collectively owned 2,898 outlets all over Mainland China.

DISTRIBUTION OF NON-PROPRIETARY BRANDS
Shenzhen Permanence Commerce Co., Ltd. (“Permanence”), Ruihuang
(Chongging) Watch Co., Ltd. ("Ruihuang”), Guangdong Juxin Watch Co.,
Ltd. (“Juxin") collectively contributed revenue of HK$295,409,000 in
2011, representing 289% increase over that of last year. Through these
distribution companies, the Group owned over 100 brand image retail shops
and distribution outlets and distributed over 20 international brands in
Guangdong, Fujian and Sichuan as at the end of 2011. Given the increasingly
strong appetite for luxury branded products, especially among the young
generation, the Group continues to expand the network of distribution to
cater for the demand.

ACQUISITION IN SWITZERLAND

On 29 June 2011, the Group acquired 100% of the equity and loans of Eterna
AG Uhrenfabrik (“Eterna”) at a total consideration of HK$213,920,000. The
acquisition is strategically important for the sustainable development of the
Group as both Eterna and Porsche Design watches are international brands
with long history, having very unique product lines. Additional Swiss watches
would be available for the Group's comprehensive distribution network in
Mainland China to satisfy the increasingly strong demand for Swiss watches.

In the second half of 2011, Eterna has strengthened the management
team, product development and distribution channels. By the end of 2011,
Eterna has successfully achieved industry recognition for its self-developed
mechanical movements that is a very important strategic resource for the
Group's sustainable growth in the watch industry in Mainland China.

In 2011, Swiss watchmakers generated export revenue of CHF19 billion,
representing an increase of 19% over 2010. In fact, the growth in 2011 was
the strongest in the last 20 years. In line with this momentum, the prospects
of Eterna and Porsche Design watches are considered promising.
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Chairman’s Statement
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ACQUISITIONS IN MAINLAND CHINA

Following Permanence, Ruihuang and Juxin, the Group has invested 51%
equity interest in each of Liaoning Hengjia Horologe Co., Ltd. (“Hengjia")
and Beijing Haina Tianshi Watch Company Limited (“Haina").

These distribution companies not only provide additional distribution network
for the Group's watches but also generates revenue from the distribution of
other well-known local and foreign brands. Given the good relationship with
outlet providers and well-known foreign brands, the number of distribution
outlets and their contributions to the Group are expected to increase rapidly.

With Rossini manufacturing facilities expected to be operational in mid 2012,
the Group has expanded substantially its production capacity substantially.
The Group's production quality, capability and capacity are expanded
further following the acquisitions of 78% equity interest in Guangzhou
Five Sheep Limited (“Five Sheep”) and 25% equity interest in Fair Future
Industrial Limited (“Fair Future”). Five Sheep contributes to manufacturing
of mechanical movements while Fair Future contributes to design and
manufacturing of high quality watches.

DISPOSALS

The Group completed the disposals of Fuzhou Dartong Machinery and
Electronic Company Limited (“Fuzhou Dartong”) on 30 June 2011
and Jiangsu Dartong M&E Co. Ltd. (“Jiangsu Dartong”) on 14 July
2011 respectively. These transactions were in line with our strategy of
concentrating our resources on the development of our watch business,
which we see the most potential.

FUND RAISINGS AND SHARE ISSUES

On 8 August 2011, the Company issued 10,000,000 shares at the issue price
of HK$0.99 each and granted an option to subscribe for up to 210,000,000
shares at the option price of HK$1.21 each. The proceeds will be principally
utilized by the Group for any potential acquisitions and investments.

56,000,000 shares are to be issued pursuant to the acquisition of 25%
equity interest in Fair Future on 15 December 2011. In addition, 54,527,631
shares are to be issued pursuant to the acquisition of 51% equity interest in
Haina on 29 December 2011.
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PROSPECTS

The Chinese government’s fiscal deficit remains low, at an estimated 1.8% of
GDP in 2011 and fiscal revenue has surged in 2011. Mainland China is likely
to introduce some fiscal measures in order to offset a likely drop in export
growth and to achieve a soft landing. Backed up by recent announcements
of favourable data of industrial production, fixed asset investment and
retail sales, Mainland China reflects its continuous strength in economic
performance amidst a robust retail market environment.

Looking ahead, we will further extend our product market coverage and
retail chain span and enhance our brand image and quality of services to
reinforce our market position in Mainland China. We have great confidence
in the future of our watch business coupled with the rising popularity of and
demand for watches, both domestic and imported, in the Mainland China.
Meanwhile, we are alert to the challenges that could persist or emerge,
including competition in the market and rise in wages and other overhead
expenses by imposing stringent cost controls so as to stay competitive and
maintain profitability.

While we consider developing proprietary brands as our top priority, we will
develop the distribution of non-proprietary brands, covering more products
and expanding distribution outlets. Besides, we would focus on improving
our corporate governance so as to prepare for the sustainable development
of the Group.

Our commitment to build a portfolio of watch companies engaging in
different products and markets necessitates further mergers, acquisitions and
alliances in Mainland China and overseas. The Group will keep on identifying
and evaluating opportunities and undertake deals that are in the best
interests of the shareholders.
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

APPRECIATION

I would like to express my deep appreciation to my fellow Board members for
their guidance, constructive contributions and support. | would like to also
thank the directors of our subsidiaries and associated companies for their
strong governance, and their guidance in establishing our Group's strategic
direction.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our
business partners, customers and shareholders for their loyalty and support.

Hon Kwok Lung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2012
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OPERATING RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group's
revenue (continuing and discontinued operations)
amounted to HK$1,970,319,000, an increase of
HK$473,596,000 over the last year. Gross profit
increased by HK$348,775,000 to HK$844,039,000
while net profit after tax increased by HK$ 1,008,000
to HK$281,790,000. Having set apart the financial
impact of the loss on disposals of associates
for the year of HK$4,952,000 (2010: gain of
HK$177,711,000), the Group should have an increase
of net profit of HK$183,671,000 from its continuing
and discontinued operations compared with the net
profit last year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During 2011, as a result of continuous strategic planning, the Group has
put into tremendous efforts in acquiring Eterna AG Uhrenfabrik, a watch
company in Switzerland of over 100 years' history with well-known brands
and mechanical movement manufacturing capability. In Hong Kong, the
Group has acquired 25% of Fair Future Industrial Limited, that is engaged
in the manufacture of watches and accessories of watches. In Mainland
China, the Group has also established three new subsidiaries: 78% owned
Guangzhou Five Sheep Watch Limited, 51% owned Liaoning Hengjia
Horologe Co., Ltd. and 51% owned Beijing Haina Tianshi Watch Company
Limited. Through the domestic and foreign acquisitions, the Group has set
up a portfolio of strategic resources that enhance the development of watch
business. Following the disposals of enamelled copper wire companies,
the core-business of the Group becomes apparent. At the same time, the
Group improves the corporate governance and internal control. Through the
restructuring of existing businesses, the Group is now composed of various
entities capable of designing, manufacturing, and distributing domestic and
international proprietary watches, distributing non-proprietary watches,
manufacturing mechanical movement, and manufacturing key watch
components. All resources would be integrated and allocated among these
entities. During 2011, the Group has transformed itself to become one of the
leading watch players in the world and achieved remarkable result.

(1) WATCHES AND TIMEPIECES — PROPRIETARY
BRANDS
Eterna AG Uhrenfabrik
On 29 June 2011, International Volant Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, acquired the shares and loans of Eterna at a
total consideration of HK$213,920,000 or CHF22,911,001.

Eterna was founded in 1856 in Switzerland. It manufactures timepieces
under two brands, namely the self-owned brand Eterna and the
licensed brand Porsche Design. Eterna is authorized to use the Porsche
Design trademark and to develop, manufacture and distribute the
licensed watches through selected distributors. Eterna watches are
distributed through independent points of sales and agencies while the
Porsche Design watches are distributed through points of sales and
own/franchised shops all over the world. Eterna is able to manufacture
its own mechanical movement, comprising manual, automatic, with and
without date, and chronograph functionalities.

The acquisition of Eterna would provide additional Swiss watches
for the Group's comprehensive distribution network in Mainland
China. It is anticipated that the revenue of Eterna and Porsche Design
watches would increase rapidly after strengthening brand awareness,
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improving customer service and developing the target products for
the Mainland China market. Besides, the capability to manufacture
mechanical movements enable the group to secure the supply of
mechanical movements. It is anticipated that Eterna would complete
the development of its recently created modular mechanical movements
by the end of 2012. Modular mechanical can be easily modified to
include additional features, such as date, tourbillion and chronograph
functionalities, with relatively simple process and at relatively
competitive cost. Eterna would then supply the newly created modular
mechanical movement for its own production in Switzerland within two
years.

A new management team has been created following the appointments
of the new CEO and Vice President. It is the goal of the new
management team to aggressively develop new products and markets
for Eterna and Porsche Design watches.

During the second half of 2011, seven new products were developed.
They have been well received in the Basel Fair 2012.

As of 31 December 2011, there were 251 distribution outlets for Eterna
watch, of which 227, 7 and 17 were in Europe, America and Middle
East respectively. There were 528 distribution outlets for Porsche
Design watch, of which, 398, 67, 27 and 36 were in Europe, America,
Asia and Middle East respectively.

Asia, especially Mainland China, would be the area of focus for the
network development. It is expected to open significant number of
distribution outlets in Mainland China in the near future.

Eterna Group contributed revenue and net profit after tax of
HK$42,886,000 and HK$16,573,000 respectively in 2011. The net
profit after tax included HK$46,904,000, being excess of fair value of
the net identifiable assets over the cost of acquisition of Eterna Group.

Zhuhai Rossini Watch Industry Ltd.

Zhuhai Rossini Watch Industry Ltd. (“Rossini”), a 91% subsidiary
of the Group, also achieved impressive result in 2011, Revenue was
HK$548,729,000, an increase of HK$185,414,000, or 51%, from
HK$363,315,000 of last year, contributing net profit of approximately
HK$162,553,000 to the Group.
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During the year, Rossini has increased its number of distribution outlets
by 363 (226 outlets through department stores and 137 outlets through
authorized dealers) from 1,112 to 1,475, mostly in second and third-tier
cities. The total number of distribution outlets as of 31 December 2011
was 1,475 (992 through department stores, 480 through authorized
dealers and 3 boutiques). Such new distribution outlets accounted for
8% of revenue.

In July 2011, Rossini improved its distribution outlets by renovating
the outlook and introducing new equipment and interior layout. The
new appearance was proved to enhance the image and revenue of the
distribution outlets. In December 2011, Rossini started conducting sale
on internet.

The number of new products introduced was 32, accounting for almost
10% of revenue. In the second half of 2011, Rossini introduced another
sport watch line that was well received by the market as evidenced by
the impressive revenue generated.

Rossini invested greater efforts in the training of sale staff. It provided
training manuals to distribution outlets so as to improve the selling and
service expertise of the sale staff.

Rossini has been awarded China’s 500 most valuable brands and
Asia’s 500 most valuable brands of the year 2011 by the World Brand
Laboratory. Rossini is the only watch company from Mainland China
that obtains the latter award and the value of the brand is the highest
among all the local watches brands.

Moreover, Rossini has developed its spectacles frame brand and
established a comprehensive network of over 100 outlets.

EBOHR Luxuries International Company Limited

EBOHR Luxuries International Company Limited (“EBOHR"), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, and its directly owned subsidiaries
achieved satisfactory result in 2011. Revenue was HK$490,410,000, an
increase of HK$153,380,000, or 46%, from HK$337,030,000 last year,
contributing net profit of approximately HK$101,515,000 to the Group.
EBOHR took up the loss of approximately HK$21,430,000 incurred
by Swiss Chronometric S.A. (“Swiss Chronometric”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of EBOHR in Switzerland.

FR - BEFEMEV21E D 8 218 363 1E
(226EB 1B A E G R RI137ES BEEL
SHPIEER ) 21,4758 - KBHMRZ » =&
W e RZE——F+ZA=+—HDHEE
W A1,475ME (9N FEBEBEA E/ER E 480
EEBRECHENRERIFAEEE) -
FTIZ 5 S BE U A8% o

RZE——F A ZREENHEDHE
mﬁﬁ SIAFRBERAILEE KNS
SIEE c MAMBENRADHEMER R
A RZZE——F+=F BAECSHETHE
FiHE -

HHFERZEB R A302E  FRAETS
10% RZE——FT¥F  #AESIES
—RERFERINEMSEAES  EA
BB EENRE -

ROEMMAAE - hoRHE B TG - 2
P D B RIS F M - AREHER
THHERRGERRI -

BHERBEERRRERETER _T——
FE 5005 B EE MM N B A F 55
EERE— BT MS00REEBEME - @
IBEELEDBEEREE -

AN BRECHEERERRDE - BX
LR 7810018 35 55 B 2 Bz 494K o

fORB R ORI AR F)
AEB2EMNBRAGTKERR ORI BR
RA(HKERR D REEZREENRBA
AR T —FREEEES WAKRE
££337,030,000/8 7T+ 1% 490,410,000/ 7T
12 90153,380,000 8 L 3k 46% + AAEEE
Bk #101,515,000 7 7T 48 Fl) o (R 75 fn & &
O MR IR T 2 —E 2 & M B A 7] Swiss
Chronometric S.A.([ Swiss Chronometric))FfTE 4
#921,430,000/8 T /E518 °



18

China Haidian Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2011

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEJ: u?uﬁﬁ& Tﬁ

During the year there was an increase of 281 distribution outlets (189
outlets through department stores and 93 outlets through authorized
dealers and a decrease of 1 boutique). The total number of distribution
outlets as of 31 December 2011 was 1,423 (824 outlets through
department stores, 596 through authorized dealers and 3 boutiques).

EBOHR has improved its distribution outlets by renovating the outlook
and interior layout. The new appearance should enhance the image
and revenue of the distribution outlets. To improve profitability, EBOHR
continued to offer the relevant products to capture opportunities
arising from the emerging middle class with increasing purchasing
power. Promotion events organized by the regional sale managers
and headquarters proved to be effective. During the year, there were
approximately 300 promotion events contributing around 10% of the
total revenue. Besides, revenue from sale of watch on Internet achieved
over 4% of total revenue.

EBOHR has completed the design of the EBOHR Complication
series, a product line composed of tourbillion watches and watches
of sophisticated mechanical movement. Those products would be
distributed through the outlet of Swiss Chronometric in Luzern. EBOHR
has been awarded China's 500 most valuable brands of the year 2011
by the World Brand Laboratory.

Swiss Chronometric S.A.

In addition to the self-owned distribution outlet in Lucerne of
Switzerland, Swiss Chronometric established another one in Shanghai
in December 2011, It is the plan to establish 20 distribution outlets in
the major cities in Mainland China. During the year, Swiss Chronometric
has established distribution outlets in selected European countries.

WATCHES AND TIMEPIECES — NON-PROPRIETARY
BRANDS

Shenzhen Permanence Commerce Co., Ltd.

Shenzhen Permanence Commerce Co., Ltd. (“Permanence”), a 100%
owned subsidiary of the Group, primarily focusing on distribution of
Citizen and Casio watches, contributed revenue and net profit after
tax of HK$63,109,000 (2010: HK$51,729,000) and HK$4,811,000
(2010: HK$1,491,000) respectively. Revenue and net profit after tax
increased in line with the expanded distribution network. Gross and net
profit margin increased as Permanence became more efficient. While
distribution of Citizen and Casio in three provinces were strong revenue
drivers, Permanence started distributing Ernest Borel, Enicar and Titoni
during the year. As of 31 December 2011, there were 60 distribution
outlets and 2 single-brand retail boutiques; Permanence also supplied
to 53 wholesale customers.
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Ruihuang (Chongging) Watch Co., Ltd.

Ruihuang (Chongging) Watch Co., Ltd. (“Ruihuang”), a 51% owned
subsidiary of the Group, developed leading boutiques for well known
Swiss watch brands such as Longines and Tissot; distributed leading
Swiss and Japanese watch brands such as Rado, Enicar, Titoni and
Ernest Borel through the leading department stores; and set up
maintenance centre for various imported watches in Chongging.
Ruihuang contributed revenue and net profit after tax of approximately
HK$190,022,000 (2010: HK$24,141,000) and HK$6,775,000 (2010:
Net loss after tax of HK$234,000) respectively. By 31 December 2011,
Ruihuang have already established 30 multi-brand retail shops and
supplied to 10 wholesale customers.

Guangdong Juxin Watch Co., Ltd.

Guangdong Juxin Watch Co., Ltd. ("Juxin”), a 51% owned subsidiary of
the Group, was established in January 2011. Juxin distributed leading
Swiss and Japanese watch brands such as Casio, Citizen, Ernest Borel,
Mido, Sandoz, Seiko, Tissot, Titoni and Tudor through the leading
department stores in various cities in Guangdong such as Foshan,
Guangzhou, Zhongshan, Shaoguan and Qingyuan. Juxin contributed
revenue and net profit after tax of approximately HK$42,278,000
(2010: Nil) and HK$1,096,000 (2010: Nil) respectively. Casio was the
strongest revenue driver for Juxin during the year. Juxin was awarded
the "Qutstanding Distributor” by Casio in April 2011. As of 31
December 2011, there were 8 multi-brand retail shops, 3 single-brand
boutiques and 14 distribution outlets.

Liaoning Hengjia Horologe Co., Ltd.

Liaoning Hengjia Horologe Co., Ltd. (“Hengjia”), a 51% owned
subsidiary of the Group, was established in May 2011. Hengjia
distributed leading Swiss and Japanese watch brands. Hengjia operates
2 single-brand boutiques, one for Rado and one for Tissot. The Tissot
boutique was considered to be one of the top performers of Tissot in
Mainland China in 2011. Hengjia also operates multi-brand retail shops
in the leading department stores in various leading cities in Liaoning.
Henjia is actively developing single-brand boutiques and multi-brand
retail shops in Liaoning. As of 31 December 2011, there were 6 multi-
brand retail shops, 2 single-brand boutiques and over 10 wholesale
customers. Hengjia contributed revenue and net profit after tax of
approximately HK$42,734,000 (2010: Nil) and HK$630,000 (2010: Nil)
respectively.
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Beijing Haina Tianshi Watch Company Limited

On 29 December 2011, the Group agreed to invest RMB15,300,000
in cash and Beijing Kuntai Hengshi Trading Company Limited (“Kuntai
Hengshi”) to invest RMB14,700,000 in cash for 51% and 49% of
Beijing Haina Tianshi Watch Company Limited (“Haina"”) respectively.
Haina will take up all the operating assets, businesses, operating
contracts and staff of each of Kuntai Henshi, Beijing Rirui Fengcai
Trading Company Limited (“Rirui Fengcai”) and Beijing Rirui Tianshi
Watch Company Limited (“Rirui Tianshi”).

Kuntai Hengshi, principally engaged in the wholesale and retail of
watches, has set up branch companies and retail stores in various
locations including Tianjin, Beijing, Shijiazhuang and Inner Mongolia
for the sale of certain well-known international watch brands. Rirui
Fengcai, principally engaged in the wholesale and retail of watches,
has set up certain branch companies and retail stores in Beijing and
Kunming for sale of certain well-known international watch brands.
Rirui Tianshi, a wholly-owned PRC subsidiary of Rirui Fengcai, operates
retail stores of a well-known international watch brand.

The acquisition would broaden the Group's retail network and expand
its business of distribution of international watch brands. In particular,
it allows the Group to enter into the Beijing and Tianjin retail watch
market.

WATCHES AND TIMEPIECES — PRODUCTION
Guangzhou Five Sheep Watch Limited

On 10 November 2011, Shenzhen Seti Trading Development Company
Limited ("Seti Trading”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Rossini agreed to invest cash of RMB73 million and RMB5
million respectively and Guangzhou Watch Factory to invest assets
of RMB22 million to establish Guangzhou Five Sheep Watch Limited
("Five Sheep”), which is engaged in the manufacture and distribution
of mechanical movements and watches. Seti Trading, Rossini and
Guangzhou Watch Factory own 73%, 5% and 22% of Five Sheep
respectively. It is expected that given their comprehensive experience,
Guangzhou Watch Factory would give Five Sheep their enormous
leverage in the production quality. When its production commences in
March 2012, Five Sheep would serve to provide mechanical movement
production facilities and watch manufacturing facilities for the Group. It
would be a profit driver for the Group.
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Fair Future Industrial Limited

On 15 December 2011, Sure Best Management Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, agreed to acquire 25% of the issued
shares of Fair Future Industrial Limited (“Fair Future”) at a total
consideration of HK$56,000,000. The consideration will be settled by
the allotment and issue of the shares of the Company.

Fair Future is principally engaged in the manufacture of watches
and accessories of watches in Hong Kong. Fair Future manufactures
watches for a well-known Japanese brand on an OEM basis. Fair Future
contracts the manufacture of watches to its Shenzhen subsidiary.

The acquisition would not only broaden the Group's source of income
but also enhance the Group’s manufacturing base.

INVESTMENT IN CITYCHAMP DARTONG

During the year, the Group received cash dividend of HK$6,551,000
from Citychamp Dartong Company Limited (“Citychamp Dartong”). On
15 March 2012, Citychamp Dartong announced its results under PRC
GAAP for the year ended 31 December 2011. The earnings per share
for the year was RMB1.08, which represented an increase of 54% as
compared with last year.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

The factory complex in Dongguan, the property on Yan He South Road,
Luohu District, Shenzhen, three shop units on Xianghua Road, Zhuhai,
in Guangdong Province of the PRC, and one apartment in Hong Kong
owned by the Group have been leased out, with stable rental returns to
the Group for the year under review.

MOTOR YACHT

Chart Victory Limited ("Chart Victory”), a 100% owned subsidiary of
the Group, acts as the sole distributor of Princess Yachts International
plc in Hong Kong. Four motor yachts were sold during the year.
Chart Victory contributed revenue and net loss of approximately
HK$29,809,000 (31 December 2010:HK$14,372,000) and
HK$6,390,000 (2010: HK$1,000) respectively.
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(7)

ENAMELLED COPPER WIRES BUSINESS

The Group completed the disposal of Fuzhou Dartong Machinery and
Electronic Company Limited ("“Fuzhou Dartong”) on 30 June 2011 and
the disposal of Jiangsu Dartong M&E Co. Ltd. (“Jiangsu Dartong”) on
14 July 2011

Fuzhou Dartong contributed profit after tax of HK$16,036,000 (2010:
HK$7,063,000) of which HK$12,280,000 was gain on disposal. The
Group's share of profit of Jiangsu Dartong was HK$1,991,000 (2010:
HK$6,979,000) and the loss on disposal of Jiangsu Dartong was
HK$4,952,000.

FINANCIAL POSITION

(1)

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had non-pledged cash and bank
balances of approximately HK$351,276,000 (31 December 2010:
HK$837,872,000). Based on the bank loans of HK$86,171,000
(31 December 2010: HK$35,353,000) and shareholders’ equity of
HK$3,058,389,000 (31 December 2010: HK$3,284,782,000), the
Group's gearing ratio (being loans divided by shareholders’ equity) was
3% (31 December 2010: 1%).

As at 31 December 2011, the Group's bank loans amounted to
HK$86,171,000 and all were repayable within one year.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

Banking facilities of the Company were secured by the Group's
investment properties in Tai Hang with net book values amounting to
approximately HK$19,000,000 as at 31 December 2011 (31 December
2010: HK$18,800,000).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had capital commitments of
HK$119,721,000 (31 December 2010: HK$36,843,000). The capital
commitments included HK$62,730,000 for the establishment of a
joint venture company in the PRC, namely Beijing Haina Tianshi Watch
Company Limited, which will be principally engage in the wholesale
and retail of watches and accessories in the PRC and HK$56,000,000
for the acquisition of 25% equity interest in Fair Future Industrial
Limited which is principally engaged in the manufacture of watches and
accessories of watches.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

(1) GROSS PROFIT
Gross profit (continuing and discontinued operations) was
HK$844,039,000, an increase of 70% from HK$495,264,000 in last
year. Gross profit margin increased slightly.

(2) SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Selling and distribution expenses (continuing and discontinued
operations) of HK$345,813,000 were 65% higher than last year. Such
increase was in line with the increase in revenue. Rossini contributed
selling and distribution expenses of HK$141,371,000, while EBOHR
contributed selling and distribution expenses of HK$145,720,000.

(3) ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Administrative expenses (continuing and discontinued operations) of
HK$238,538,000 were 51% higher that last year. Such increase was
lower than the increase in revenue. Rossini contributed administrative
expenses of HK$34,217,000 while EBOHR contributed administrative
expenses of HK$55,729,000.

OUTLOOK

The volatility of the global financial markets increased during the first three
months of 2012. This was mainly because of fears of a global slowdown due
to two major factors: the Eurozone soverign debt crisis and concern over the
US economy. The markets remain skeptical about the fiscal policies adopted
by world leaders for the recovery of the global economy. Notwithstanding
these challenges, Mainland China’s economy is expected to be optimistic as
the relevant fiscal imposed to enhance economic development momentum
and further urbanization, which generate the domestic demand. In short,
Mainland China is more likely to weather any further deterioration better
than the western countries.

Looking ahead, following the strategic transformation of the Group, the
Group has now integrated the value chain with the capability of designing,
manufacturing, and distributing domestic and international proprietary
watches, distributing non-proprietary watches, manufacturing mechanical
movement, and manufacturing key watch components. Strongly rooted
in Mainland China, the Group would gradually develop its business
internationally and improved the management. It is the objective of the
Group to grow steadily and lay a strong foundation for sustainable growth.
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Our existing subsidiaries that focusing on both proprietary brands and non-
proprietary brands would continue the impressive organic growth through
product, distribution and market development from the first-tier cities to
second- and third-tier cities. That relatively strong capability to develop and
manufacture mechanical movement would further enhance the dominant
position in the Mainland China watch industry. The Group would take the
opportunity in the Mainland China markets to improve the brand image and
generate the revenue and profit and strive to provide the best return for the
stakeholders.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had approximately 3,000 full-time
staff in Hong Kong and the PRC. The remuneration packages offered to the
employees were determined and reviewed on an arm’s length basis with
reference to the market condition and individual performance. The Group
also provides other benefits to its employees, including year end double pay,
medical insurance and retirement benefits, and incentive bonus are offered
with reference to the Group's operating results and employees’ individual
performance. All employees of the Group in Hong Kong have joined the
provident fund schemes.

APPRECIATION

The Group's impressive performance in the past period was the result of the
dedicated work by the management and its staff. | would like to take this
opportunity to express our sincere gratitude to our employees, customers,
bankers, professional consultants and shareholders for their support.

Shang Jianguang
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 March 2012
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HON Kwok Lung (Chairman)

Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, aged 57, is the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Citychamp Dartong Company
Ltd. (“Citychamp Dartong”), the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange in the PRC.
Citychamp Dartong and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of enamelled
copper wires and property development in the Mainland China. Mr. Hon has extensive business
experience in the Mainland China. Mr. Hon is a member of China Overseas Chinese Committee; Standing
Committee of Jinlin Overseas Chinese Committee; Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
("CPPCC"), Beijing; CPPCC, Hai Dian District Committee of Beijing; and CPPCC, Fu Zhou Committee. He
joined the Board in April 2004.
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SHANG lJianguang (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Shang Jianguang, aged 60 and graduated in Fuzhou University majoring in Chemistry, is a qualified
senior engineer in the Mainland China. Prior to joining the Group, he assumed senior posts in various
large companies, and was General Manager and Director of Min Xin Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange. He has extensive knowledge and experience in corporate and
investment management. He joined the Board in November 2004.
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SHI Tao

Mr. Shi Tao, aged 48, holds a Bachelor degree in Engineering from Tsinghua University and a Master
degree in Engineering from Wuhan University of Technology (formerly known as Wuhan Industrial
University). Mr. Shi has years of business experience in the Mainland China. He was an Executive Director
of New Capital International Investment Limited, a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. He joined the Board in April 2004.
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LAM Toi Man

Mr. Lam Toi Man, aged 54, has various years of experience in property development in the Mainland
China. Mr. Lam has been the General Manager of Zhejiang Huashun Real Estate Investment Co., Ltd.
and an Executive Director and the General Manager of Hangzhou Yuanhua Mart Construction Co., Ltd..
He joined the Board in April 2004. Mr. Lam is the brother-in-law of Mr. Hon Kwok Lung.
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Bi Bo

Mr. Bi Bo, aged 33 and graduated from Xian Jiaotong University with a Bachelor's degree in Information
Engineering in July 2001. He also received the degree of Master of Business Administration from Troy
State University in May 2004, and the degree of Master of Science (Finance) from The Johns Hopkins
University in May 2006. Prior to joining the Group, he was a senior actuarial assistant (supervisor) in
Carefirst Bluecross Blueshield. He qualifies as an associate of the Society of Actuaries (ASA) in 2009. He
joined the Board in August 2010.
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SIT Lai Hei

Ms. Sit Lai Hei, aged 35 and graduated in Fuzhou University taking Marketing as her major, is a
qualified assistant engineer in Mainland China. She has been appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company since November 2004 and has been re-designated as an Executive Director of the
Company on 26 March 2012. Ms. Sit is also a Director of Citychamp Dartong, the shares of which are
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange in the PRC. Ms. Sit is the daughter-in-law of Mr. Hon Kwok Lung,
the Chairman of the Board and controlling shareholder of the Company. In addition, Ms. Sit's husband is
a nephew of Mr. Lam Toi Man, a Executive Director of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS B ¥HTES
FUNG Tze Wa
Mr. Fung Tze Wa, aged 55, is a Certified Public Accountant and a Director of an accounting firm in Hong
Kong. Mr. Fung has various years of experience in auditing, taxation and company secretarial practice
in Hong Kong. He obtained a Master degree in professional accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2000. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants, the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and the Society
l‘ of Chinese Accountants and Auditors. He has also been appointed as the independent non-executive
director of New Capital International Investment Limited since April 2004 and of Jiwa Bio-Pharm

Holdings Limited since September 2004. Both companies’ shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. He
joined the Board in April 2004.
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KWONG Chun Wai, Michael

Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael, aged 47, is a fellow of the International Institute of Management, a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing, a member of the Hong Kong Logistics Association,
a certified professional marketer of the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing and a business strategist
specialising in the area of marketing and business administration. Dr. Kwong obtained a Bachelor of arts
degree with honours in philosophy from the University of Nottingham in the United Kingdom in 1987 and
a Doctorate degree in business administration from Newport University in the United States in 2001. Dr.
Kwong has also been appointed as an independent non-executive director of New Capital International
Investment Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, since November 2006.
He joined the Board in April 2004.

BEE

BEEEL  RFEN+tex BREXEEESEREE BETKSSSERTEYR
MEEE8  BEMKBGRITM S ARZEPINISHEE R EITRZ EB R - &
IR - NN\ FEREEERMARENGEEXRENELEM  WR_TT—FEXH
Newport UniversityBXi5 T EBIET 26 - BETTE_SEF+—ARBZERFTER
B EBR AR CEIIRITES - ZRaRMRERZMLET - R ST MF M AN
ARRBEEE o

LI Qiang

Mr. Li Qiang, aged 46, holds a Master of Science degree and a PhD of Economics degree. Since March
2004, he is a senior consultant of Insurance Fund Management Regulatory Department of China
Insurance Regulatory Commission. He has over 18 years of experience in the Mainland China financial
market, including banking, securities and fund management. He joined the Board in November 2004.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT S EEEAE

FONG Chi Wah

Mr. Fong Chi Wah, aged 49, is the Chief Financial Officer and Secretary of the Company. Mr. Fong is an

associate member of HKICPA, a fellow member of CPA Australia, a Chartered Financial Analyst and a

member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Fong has over 20 years of extensive experience in

various sectors of the financial industry, including direct investment, project and structured finance, and
capital markets with focus on the Mainland China and Hong Kong. Mr. Fong was a director of Baring
Capital (China) Management Limited and held various management positions in ING Bank. He joined the
Company in September 2004.
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TAO Li

Mr. Tao Li, aged 59, is the Vice President of the Company. He is also a Director and General Manager
of several subsidiaries of the Company and in charge of the watch manufacturing and distribution
businesses of the Group. Mr. Tao graduated from Beijing Foreign Trade College (currently known as
China Foreign Economy and Trade University) in 1978 is a senior economist in Mainland China. He has
over 28 years of experience in business administration, marketing and international trading. He has been
working with the Group since 1991.
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YIN Weirong

Mr. Yin Weirong, aged 55, is a qualified senior economist. He is the Vice President of the Company, he
is also a Director and a Deputy General Manager of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Yin was
the Chief Representative of a reputable multinational company in the PRC and the General Manager of
a large PRC international trust and investment corporation responsible for investment in industrial and
financial projects. Having acquired over 31 years of corporate management developing markets in the
PRC and overseas, he joined the Company in April 2007.
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HALIM Teguh

Mr. Halim Teguh, aged 30 and graduated from Ohio State University majoring in accounting. He is a
director of several subsidiaries of the Group engaged in the watch manufacturing and distribution. He
joined the Group in October 2008. Mr. Halim is the son-in-law of Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, the Chairman of
the Board and controlling shareholder of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain a standard of corporate governance
that is consistent with market practices.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all the applicable
code provisions of the Code on Corporate Government Practices (“Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) for the year
ended 31 December 2011 except for code provision E.1.2. Code provision
E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman of the board of directors should attend
the annual general meeting. The Chairman of the board of directors will
endeavor to attend all future annual general meetings of the Company unless
unexpected or special circumstances preventing him from doing so. The board
will continuously review and improve the corporate governance practices and
standards of the Company to ensure that business activities and decision-
making processes are properly regulated.

The followings summarize the Company’s key corporate governance
practices.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as the code of conducts for securities transactions by directors
of the Company. All the members of the board have confirmed, following
specific enquiry by the Company, that they have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2011.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The principal focus of the board is on the overall strategic development and
direction of the Group. The board also monitors the financial performance
and the internal controls of the Group’s business operations. Moreover,
the board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties.
The board has established a clear segregation of duties and responsibilities
between the board and the management as to which types of decisions are
to be taken by the board and which are to be delegated to management. This
segregation of duties and responsibilities will be regularly reviewed by the
board.
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The board comprises of five Executive Directors (one of whom is the Chairman
and the other of whom is the Chief Executive Officer), one Non-executive
Director and three Independent Non-executive Directors.

Profiles of directors are set out in the pages 25 to 27 of the Annual Report.

As at 31 December 2011, the board comprises the following members:
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Date of first Date of last
appointment re-election
Name of Director Position to the Board as Director
BREEREMA F-REEER
EEEB B BEEg2AH EE2AH
HON Kwok Lung Chairman/Executive Director 08/04/2004 28/05/2010
EERE IR HTESR —ZETMEF —E-FF
MANH AAZ+NH
SHANG Jianguang Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director 18/11/2004 27/05/2011
=54 TMEH, TES —TETMEF —E——fF
+—A+N\RH FA=++tAH
SHI Tao Executive Director 08/04/2004 27/05/2011
a% WITES —ZETNF —T——fF
mANE HEA-++H
LAM Toi Man Executive Director 08/04/2004 27/05/2011
M WiTES —ETNEF —E——F
MANR AAZ-++tH
Bl Bo Executive Director 24/08/2010 27/05/2011
2K WiTE=S —E-FF —E——fF
NAZ+WmA AAZ++AH
SIT Lai Hei Non-executive Director 18/11/2004 28/05/2010
(re-designated as Executive Director
on 26 March 2012)
el HFHRITES —ZEMEF —E—FF
(RZTB—Z-F=R=+<H +—A+N\H FA-+NR
ERGRAERNITESE)
FUNG Tze Wa Independent Non-executive Director 08/04/2004 10/06/2009
ST EE BIUERTES —ETNEF —ETNF
mANE ~NATH
KWONG Chun Wai, Michael Independent Non-executive Director 08/04/2004 10/06/2009
RRE R BIUFMITES —ETMEF —ETNF
WPSPANE NATH
LI Qiang Independent Non-executive Director 18/11/2004 28/05/2010
ZFog B IFRITEF —_TETMEF —E-FF
+—A+N\H HAZ+NARH



Corporate Governance Report 2011
—E—FREEAEE

Save as mentioned below, there is no relationship among members of the
board:

(i)  Mr. Lam Toi Man (Executive Director) is the brother-in-law of Mr. Hon
Kwok Lung (Chairman of the board).

(i) Ms. Sit Lai Hei (Non-executive Director) is the daughter-in-law of Mr.
Hon Kwok Lung and Ms. Sit's husband is a nephew of Mr. Lam Toi
Man.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
One of the Independent Non-executive Directors possesses appropriate
professional accounting qualifications and financial management expertise.

With a wide range of expertise and a balance of skills, the Independent Non-
executive Directors bring independent judgment on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of
conduct through their participating in board meetings and committee work.

The views of the Independent Non-executive Directors carry significant
weight in the board’s decision-making process. The board considers that
each Independent Non-executive Director is independent in character and
judgment and that they all meet the specific independent criteria as required
by the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company still considers such directors
to be independent. The Independent Non-executive Directors are explicitly
identified in all corporate communications.

BOARD MEETINGS AND BOARD PRACTICES

The board meets regularly throughout the year to review the overall strategy,
discuss business opportunities and to monitor the operation as well as the
financial performance of the Group. With the assistance of the Company
Secretary, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are primarily
responsible for drawing up and approving the agenda for each board meeting
in consultation with all directors. Notice of at least 14 days have been given
to all directors for all reqular board meetings and the directors can include
matters for discussion in the agenda if necessary. Agenda and accompanying
board papers in respect of regular board meetings are sent out in full to all
directors within reasonable time prior to confirmation.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are kept by
duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and all directors have
access to board papers and related materials, and are promptly provided with
adequate information, which enable the board to make an informed decision
on matters placed before it.
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During the year, five board meetings were held and the individual attendance
of each director is set out below:

FR ARBHABITAREZTEAS  @ANES
ZHEREIIAT -

Attendance/

Board Meetings Held

HEBITEER

Name of director EEHR SERNE
HON Kwok Lung FFEIEE 3/5
SHANG Jianguang R 4/5
SHI Tao aE 3/5
LAM Toi Man MR 3/5
Bl Bo 2K 5/5
SIT Lai Hei B 2R 2/5
FUNG Tze Wa BT 4/5
KWONG Chun Wai, Michael RRE(Z 3/5
LI Qiang Zof 3/5

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the directors is appointed for a specific term and is subject to the
rotation provision of the Company's Articles of Association and shall retire at
least once every three years.

Pursuant to the existing Articles of Association of the Company, at every
annual general meeting, one-third of the directors for the time being or, if
their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third shall retire from office. Besides, the Company will ensure
full compliance with the Code provision that every director should be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To facilitate the directors to discharge their responsibilities, they are
continuously updated with regulatory developments, business and market
changes and the strategic development of the Group.

Any Director may request the Company to provide independent professional
advice at the expense of the Company to perform his duties and
responsibilities.

Introduction tailored kit will be given newly appointed Director to his
individual needs. This includes meetings with senior management to enable
them to have better understanding of the Group's business and strategy and
the key risks and issues.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee (the “AC") comprises the three Independent Non-
executive Directors, Mr. Fung Tze Wa (Committee Chairman) , Dr. Kwong
Chun Wai, Michael and Mr. Li Qiang.

The composition and members of the AC complies with the requirements
under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference which
describe the authority and duties of the AC were adopted in 1999 and
subsequently revised on 23 August 2005. In order to conform to the new
provisions of the Code effecting on 1 April 2012, the board has adopted
a new terms of reference of the AC on 26 March 2012, which have been
included on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company's website.

During the year under review, the AC met with the Company's external
auditors, the board and senior management. The AC has met two times
to review the financial reporting (including half-yearly and annual results)
and other information to shareholders, the accounting system, the system
of internal controls, risk management, effectiveness and objectivity of the
audit process and perform other duties set out in this terms of reference.
Members of the AC visited subsidiaries of the Group and enquired about
and comment on the matters related to system of accounting, internal
controls and risk management of those subsidiaries. They also reviewed and
commented internal audit reports of subsidiaries and adequacy of resources,
qualifications, experience and training of staff engaged in the accounting and
financial reporting function.

The AC reviewed with the management the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal controls and financial
reporting matters including a review of the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

During the year, two AC meetings were held and the individual attendance of
each member is set out below:
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Attendance/Meetings Held

Name of member REHA HE/BITEBIY
FUNG Tze Wa T 212
KWONG Chun Wai, Michael B E(E 2/2
LI Qiang Zof 212
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Remuneration Committee (the “RC") comprises the three Independent
Non-executive Directors, Mr. Fung Tze Wa (Committee Chairman) , Dr.
Kwong Chun Wai, Michael and Mr. Li Qiang and two Executive Directors, Mr.
Hon Kwok Lung and Mr. Shang Jianguang.

The majority of the RC members are Independent Non-executive Directors.
The RC make recommendations to the board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all directors’ and senior management’s remuneration and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy. The RC also make recommendations to the board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive directors and senior
management. The RC ensures that no director or any of his/her associates
is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration. In order to conform to the
new provisions of the Code effecting on 1 April 2012, the board has adopted
a new terms of reference of the RC on 26 March 2012, which have been
included on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company's website.

The RC has met once on 29 March 2011 to review the main elements of the
Company's remuneration policy for directors and senior management, and to
review and approve the specific remuneration packages of all directors and
senior management.

During the year, one RC meeting was held. The individual attendance of each
member is set out below:
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Name of member REHR HEBIEBERE
FUNG Tze Wa T 17
KWONG Chun Wai, Michael B & (2 11
LI Qiang Zog mn
HON Kwok Lung FEEIEE n
SHANG Jianguang Bl n

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

On 26 March 2012, the Company established a nomination committee (the
“NC") with terms of reference in compliance with the new provisions of the
Code effecting on 1 April 2012. The NC comprises the three Independent
Non-executive Directors, Mr. Fung Tze Wa, Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael
and Mr. Li Qiang and two Executive Directors, Mr. Hon Kwok Lung and Mr.
Shang Jianguang. Mr. Hon Kwok Lung has been appointed as the chairman
of the NC.
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The majority of the NC members are Independent Non-executive Directors.
The principal duties of the NC are to review the structure, size and
composition of the board, identify and nominate individuals suitable qualified
to become board members and make recommendations to the board on
the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning
for directors. The NC is also responsible for assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors.

CONTINUING TRAINING OF COMPANY SECRETARY
The company secretary has participated a variety of trainings organized by
the professional accounting and company secretarial associations during the
year.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company has paid an audit fee
of HK$1,670,000 in relation to the audit services for the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011. The audit fee was approved by the AC
and endorsed by the board.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal control systems of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness.
The board is committed to implementing effective and sound internal control
systems to safeguard shareholders' investment and the Group's assets. The
board has delegated to management the implementation of the system
of internal controls and reviewing of all relevant financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk management functions within an established
framework and reporting to the board and AC on its material findings.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts for each
financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011, the directors:

(a) selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;

(b) adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (and
Hong Kong Accounting Standards);

() made adjustments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and

(d) ensured that the financial statements were prepared on the going
concern basis.
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The directors are also responsible for keeping proper accounting records
which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP AND COMMUNICATION
The Company endeavors to maintain a high level of transparency in
communicating with shareholders and the investment community at large.
In order to ensure effective, clear and accurate communications with the
shareholders and investors, all corporate communications are arranged
and handled by the Executive Directors and designated senior executives
according to established practices and procedures of the Company.

The Company has announced its annual results and interim results in a timely
manner during the year under review, which is within the time limits set
out in the Listing Rules. Separate resolutions are proposed at the general
meetings on each substantially separate issue, including the re-election
of individual directors. In addition, procedures for demanding a poll are
included in the circular to shareholders dispatched together with the annual
report.

The Company has also maintained website at www.irasia.com/listco/hk/chinahaidian
which enables shareholders, investors and the general public to have access to
the information of the Company on a timely basis. Financial information and all
shareholder corporate communications of the Company are made available on
the Company’s website and updated regularly.

Shareholders who wish to raise any queries with the Board may write to
the Company Secretary at Unit 1902-04, Level 19, International Commerce
Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the
Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 22 to
the financial statements. Save as the discontinued enamelled copper wires
business, there were no other significant changes to the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2011 and the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 50 to 175.

The directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK4.5 cents
per share for the year ended 31 December 2011.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements, is set out on pages 176 and 177. This summary
does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and investment
properties of the Company and of the Group during the year are set out in
notes 18 and 19 to the financial statements, respectively. Further details of
the Group's principal investment properties are set out on page 178 of the
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 38 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

In the year under review, the Company repurchased a total of 17,362,000
of its ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each on the Stock Exchange at prices
ranging from HK$0.64 to HK$1.05 per share, for a total consideration of
HK$17,253,000.

Apart from the above, there were no purchases, sales or redemption of the
Company's listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in note 40 to the financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
In addition to the retained profits of the Company, the share premium
account of the Company is also available for distribution to shareholders
provided that the Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business immediately following the date on which any
such distribution is proposed to be paid.

At 31 December 2011, the Company had reserves of HK$978,694,000, being
retained profits and share premium account, available for cash distribution
and/or distribution in specie.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 28% of the total sales for the year. Purchases from the Group's
five largest suppliers accounted for 43% of the total purchases.

The percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer was
22%. The percentage of purchases attributable to the Group's largest
supplier was 30%.

Sales to a joint venturer of the Group's jointly-controlled entity, of
which three directors of the Company are also directors amounted to
HK$425,102,000 in 2011. The sales was based on the open market price.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, Chairman

Mr. Shang lianguang, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Shi Tao

Mr. Lam Toi Man

Mr. Bi Bo

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
Ms. Sit Lai Hei (re-designated as Executive Director on 26 March 2012)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Fung Tze Wa

Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael

Mr. Li Qiang

In accordance with Article 116 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Fung Tze
Wa, Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael and Mr. Li Qiang will retire by rotation
at the Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
each of the three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Fung Tze Wa,
Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael and Mr. Li Qiang that they have met all the
factors concerning their independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and that there are no other factors which may
affect their independence. The Company's board of directors (the “Board”)
considers these Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 25 to 28 of the annual
report.

FESREESRAT | —T—F4% 39

EE
ATBARRBAFREEZES

HITES -
SRS ()
BRI S (TTIH AR,
BBSE

AL 3

SRSEE

FATES
BREZ T (R T —F=H -+ XBERKH
BERWITES)

BYFIITES !
B ESEE
BEEsL
FEE

BREABERMAAE 65 BFFELRL - BILE
BERFREEHERRAFASHESE X
ABEBMBEEEESE -

ARBICER=Z2BIIFNTESTHFELL
BEERBLIRFRAESAR L ZFEBLER
T RTBREFENEEEMERSMERDARE
Z EMRAT EHARDFIBEREBREEL
FOMMBRE URLEEMAIEEZERE
BYIGOIHRAE - ARAEFE([EFE R
R RZREUIRNITESHRBIAL

EEREEEEBAEBZER

ARREERALEEEERARZBEFER
RERFEH8E -



40 China Haidian Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2011

Report of the Directors
ERGWE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Shang Jianguang, an Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company, has a service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 18 November 2011 and is subject to termination by
either party by giving not less than three month's written notice.

Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, the Chairman of the Company, Mr. Shi Tao, and Mr.
Lam Toi Man, Executive Directors of the Company, have service contracts
with the Company for an initial term of two years commencing from 1 July
2004 and is subject to termination by either party by giving not less than
two months written notice. These service contracts will each continue for
successive terms of one year unless terminated by not less than two months
written notice served by either party to the other.

Mr. Bi Bo has entered into a service agreement with the Company for an
initial term of 2 years commencing from 24 August 2010 and is subject
to termination by either party by giving not less than two months’ written
notice. The service agreement will continue for successive terms of one year
unless terminated by not less than two months’ written notice served by
either party to the other.

Mr. Fung Tze Wa and Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael, Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company, have service contracts with the Company
for an initial term of two years commencing from 3 May 2004. These
service contracts will each continue for successive terms of one year unless
terminated by not less than one month’s written notice served by either party
to the other.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

EERNaNF 2R
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees can be fixed by the directors of the Company and are
subject to shareholders" authorisation at general meetings. Other emoluments
are determined by the Board with reference to the duties, responsibilities and
performance of the directors and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2011, the interests or short positions of the directors and
chief executive in the share capital and underlying shares of the Company or
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) of the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES

Nature of interest

EEHR EEME

Name of Director

FESREEERAT | =2 —E5% 4]

EEME

SEWRSAHAARAESET @ EABRRNK
RAGHE HWMEHEETSL2EEE IR
B BEMKBAUARANEEREET

EERFETBRAERROKREBRSD
ZREBNKRA

RZF——F+-A=1T—RH BEARXFAREZR
7 LB R ([ E 5 R ERD] ) F3521F R EF
BEZERMATEE  EFREBTBRABRAR
Al AR A (E & R E S LB GRPIFEXVED)
ZBEAREEBR D P HEA < BRIRRHERE
EHRAUNET EHBETAESTETEFIHNE
ETRI(MRESTRI D NG ARB RBEBAERS
PRAR AR (TBERFT ) 2 et gk BT

R 2R

Number of
Shares held
FERAHE

Percentage of
shareholding
BHRBED

Hon Kwok Lung FEEIRE
NI
Beneficial owner
EmEEA
Beneficial owner
EmlEEA
Beneficial owner
EmlEEA
Beneficial owner
EmlEaA
Beneficial owner
EmEEA
Beneficial owner
EmlEEA

Shang Jianguang PR

Shi Tao )=

MR

Lam Toi Man

Fung Tze Wa B

Kwong Chun Wai, Michael BB (E

Note:  1,750,000,000 shares were held by Full Day Limited (“Full Day"), which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Hon Kwok Lung. 849,951,515 shares were held by
Sincere View International Limited (“Sincere View"), which is owned as to

80% by Mr. Hon Kwok Lung and 20% by his wife, Ms. Lam Suk Ying.

Corporate (Note)

2,599,951,515 62.80%

2,275,000 0.06%

5,200,000 0.13%

3,250,000 0.08%

2,275,000 0.06%

2,100,000 0.05%

1,039,000 0.03%

Bff5E : 1,750,000,000% &% (5 FRFE R BESL 2 E ¥R 2 ¥
BERAT([FAL])FEAE - 849,951,515 1A
HESRRBRATRN(ERDFBE - BEEL
ERBRZEFHRRELZEDREERES280%
K 20% &S o
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LONG POSITIONS IN SHARE OPTIONS OF THE RAATZEBBRHEZHAE
COMPANY

Number of Exercise
share options  Exercisable price
Date of grant outstanding  period per Share
EHARTEZ sREH
Name of Director EEnE R A RERGEZE THEHAR ZITEE
HKS
BT
Hon Kwok Lung TR 9/12/2008 1,225,000  9/12/2009 - 0.325
71112019
“ET)\F+ZANA “ETNF+ZANEE
“T-N1%F—HtH
Shang Jianguang e 9/12/2008 2,800,000  9/12/2009 - 0.325
71112019
“EEN\F+=ANA “EENFTZANBEZ
F-NF—AtH
Shi Tao % 9/12/2008 1,750,000  9/12/2009 - 0.325
71112019
“EEN\F+=ANA “EENF+ANBEZ
F-NF—AtH
Lam Toi Man MRX 9/12/2008 1,225,000  9/12/2009 - 0.325
71112019
“EEN\F+-ANA “EENF+ZANBEZ
F-NF—AtH
Fung Tze Wa HTE 9/12/2008 1,400,000  9/12/2009 - 0.325
71112019
“EEN\F+=ANA EENF+ZANBEZ
F-NF—AtH
Kwong Chun Wai, BEE 9/12/2008 1,225,000 9/12/2009 - 0.325
Michael 71112019
“EEN\F+=ANA “EENF+ZANBEZ
F-NF—HAtH
Li Qiang Fog 9/12/2008 3,500,000 9/12/2009 - 0.325
71112019

“ZZN\FE+-ANA

“RENFTZANBREC
T-NF-AtHR
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LONG POSITION IN ZHUHAI ROSSINI WATCH INDUSTRY
LIMITED (“ROSSINI") (NOTE 1)

Nature of interest

FESREESRAT | T 458 43

RIxBEAEKERRAR(EAR )
2R ()

Percentage of
shareholding

Name of Director EEHE e ERES

Sit Lai Hei e Corporate (Note 2) 9%
~a) (MFE2)

Notes: B5E -

1. Rossini is owned as to 91% indirectly by the Company and 9% by Fujian
Fengrong Investment Company Limited (“Fujian Fengrong”). Rossini is an
associated corporation of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO.

2. The interest in Rossini was held by Fujian Fengrong, which is owned as to
approximately 68.5% by Ms. Sit Lai Hei, a Non-executive Director, and 31.5%
by Ms. Lu Xiaojun. Both Ms. Sit Lai Hei and Ms. Lu Xiaojun are daughters-in-law
of Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, an Executive Director of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, no person had registered
an interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.

1. ERESHAARFRILEEZLEHREBRQA
([TBRGR])EEEBN% L% ER - #FEER
ARRNF ZAREOEE (EE R85 RE GRAIEXV
) e

2. EWEZEEHRESRIFE  ZARN A
MITESHRE T REVIEZ TR £68.5% &
31.5% s - BREBEZ T REBREBEL LY R/AQT
HITERREBEAE 288 -

B EXEBEEN RZE——F T A=+ —
B BEECAATRARR S E TR EREEZ
Betn R ARRE B fn o B AR IEBE 75 R BB RIS
352{FRLER 2 (R R AR - HERBIRETRI
MEARNRR R IS SRE

EEREROHES ZEF

REREFARR  EFHRFSBHORLBIRNK
FFRMBRERIITEANEBEARRROKE
FRE R - AR B REALAAIN B AR IR E
S BB - BB E S A M E A A B AR
LSRR o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS IN SHARES FERFEMNRHORAEBERKRMD 2ER

AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2011, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued AZE——F+-_A=+—H  EBRAQARE
share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of interests  FE %5 R EAE(EHIF 33616 FE 2 R E LM

required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO: 8 - THATRBEARRAGDEITRAS% A L1

Percentage of
existing issued

Notes No. of Shares capital

HRE

2RITR

o= RGO E EzEDL

Sincere View International Limited EREERARAR] 849,951,515 20.53%

Full Day Limited HEERAT 1,750,000,000 42.27%

Hon Kwok Lung FEERE (1) 2,602,226,515 62.86%

Lam Suk Ying MR (M 2,602,226,515 62.86%
Keywise Capital Management BIBIREER(FE)

(HK) Limited BIRA A 417,940,000 10.10%
Zhang Qing Zhang Qing (2) 80,000,000 1.93%
Notes: FfEE
(1) Mr. Hon Kwok Lung and Ms. Lam Suk Ying are deemed to have an interest in (1) %% Bl B€ %8 &£ R MR B L T # 48 B 7 A —

the same parcel of 2,602,226,515 shares (2,599,951,515 shares held by Sincere #t 2,602,226,515 A% A% Tﬁj:' HEEZ(EF
View and Full Day and 2,275,000 shares held by Mr. Hon Kwok Lung himself). 2599951515 I M iES RMERE - M
2,275,000 0 B MEEBBEE R AR FH5H) o
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Hon Kwok Lung is additionally interested in i L3 P 52 B 5 5 - % B BB 5% AR SO AR O, 225,000
1,225,000 shares, representing approximately 0.03% of the issued share %Hﬁjﬁg5$ﬂﬁE§§17H§$%’90;€)§%)?Tﬁﬁﬁ%
capital of the Company. These shares represent the number of share options m e EZ%H&T&M&%@E%%H&@%;i%ljﬁé:?%
outstanding pursuant to options granted to him on 9 December 2008 under the f}fﬁf:ﬂ le' BRYRzRBROEED - HAK
Share Option Scheme. TERBROEZEHA -

(2)  Mr. Zhang Qing holds 80,000,000 shares of the Company and 160,000,000  (2)  Zhang QingﬁETﬁﬁS0,000,000%ﬁ’&ﬁ%ﬁ}jﬁ
optional subscription shares (“Optional Subscription Share”) based on the *ET)%ZZEE{QQ ang%/iﬁf\:%**iﬂﬂ:%i%z
DI form filed by Mr. Zhang Qing on 2 September 2011. Assuming that the ﬁ@*’éﬁ?%% ' f)ﬁi%ﬁﬁ1§9,000,990ﬁﬁ,ﬁm¥%ﬁ%;ﬂx’f
Optional Subscription Shares are exercised in full, Mr. Zhang Qing's holding will 0 (AR |) - BRax R M B 10 BT T
represent, approximately 5.80% of the issued share capital of the Company as at £ + Zhang Qing?ﬁifﬂ\-irﬁZ%@! HHE AR A TR
31 December 2011 and approximately 5.58% of the issued share capital of the :%_jﬂz"f':ﬂ ;_+ff| B ETTIRAKI5.80%
Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the Optional Subscription A RAE RS R BITHERBROMBERAZ AR

Shares. A B BITIRAR#5.58% °
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, no person, other than the
directors and chief executive of the Company, whose interests are set out
in the section headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares” above, had registered an interest
or short position in shares and underlying shares of the Company that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION
During the year, there is no connected transaction of the Group under the
Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the share option schemes of the Company are set out in note
39 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company's share options for
the year ended 31 December 2011:
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REXEEESN R_FT——F+_A=1+—
B BERZGER EXEERIETHRABRRK
D RERARO 2 EEm AR |2 ARBEER
TETBAEI  EERALTRARFRND K&
MEEAR ) B R A ARIRRE 77 R B 1R P] %336
T ARS 2 BmIRE -

BEX S

ARERF AL BETEM EWARRNIET 2 e
R e

RRRB D ST A

AR A RRE R B B R R & B 5 R M
39

TREBARARBRHERBE_T——&
+=A=+—BIEEZ D)

Number of share options

REROEHE
At Exercised At
1 January during 31 December
2011 the year 2011
Name or category R=—B——F R=Z——F
of participants SEERERER —H—H RERTE FTZA=+—H
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Hon Kwok Lung EEBR A 2,450,000 (1,225,000) 1,225,000
Mr. Shang Jianguang RN EE 5,600,000 (2,800,000) 2,800,000
Mr. Shi Tao AEEE 3,500,000 (1,750,000) 1,750,000
Mr. Lam Toi Man MR FEE 2,450,000 (1,225,000) 1,225,000
Independent BUKHITES
non-executive directors
Mr. Fung Tze Wa R FEES A 2,450,000 (1,050,000) 1,400,000
Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, B EE T
Michael 2,450,000 (1,225,000) 1,225,000
Mr. Li Qiang FoRSEE 3,500,000 - 3,500,000
Sub-total /NEF 22,400,000 (9,275,000) 13,125,000
Other eligible employees Hit5ERER
In aggregate At 45,430,000 (21,195,000) 24,235,000
Other eligible persons Hi8ERAL
In aggregate &t 60,080,000 (26,565,000) 33,515,000
Total et 127,910,000 (57,035,000) 70,875,000
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DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year, no director is considered to have an interest in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules, other than those
businesses to which the directors were appointed as directors to represent
the interest of the Company and/or the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, the Company’s shares which are in the hands
of the public exceeded 25% of the Company'’s total issued share capital as at
the date of this report.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with the code provisions in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 December 2011, except for
the deviations from code provisions E.1.2 of the Code as explained in the
Company's interim report for the period ended 30 June 2011.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Board adopted the Model Code as the Company’s code of conduct for
dealings in securities of the Company by the directors. Having made specific
enquiry with all the Company's directors, the Company has ascertained that
all of its directors have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code throughout the accounting year covered by this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee which was established in compliance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purpose of reviewing and
providing supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process and
internal controls. The audit committee comprises the three Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company. The audit committee has reviewed with
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed auditing, internal control and financial matters including the
review of the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2011.
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B2 20 BITIRAR25% -

TEERAERTA

EEZRA BARABE_T——FRA=TH
LE AR 2 o AR 5 P R 4 B <T RIS SUSRE. .21
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) on 23 August 2005 in compliance with the Listing Rules, terms
of reference of which have been adopted by the Board of the Company are
consistent with the requirements of the Code. The Remuneration Committee
currently comprises the three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Fung
Tze Wa (the Chairman of the Committee), Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael and
Mr. Li Qiang, the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Hon Kwok Lung and the Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. Shang Jianguang.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) on 26 March 2012 in compliance with the Listing Rules, terms
of reference of which have been adopted by the Board of the Company are
consistent with the requirements of the Code. The Remuneration Committee
currently comprises the three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Fung
Tze Wa, Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael and Mr. Li Qiang, the Chairman of
the Board, Mr. Hon Kwok Lung and the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Shang
Jianguang. Mr. Hon Kwok Lung has been appointed as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

AUDITOR

The financial statements in respect of the previous financial years since 2006
were audited by Grant Thornton, now known as JBPB & Co. Due to a merger
of the businesses of Grant Thornton and BDO Limited (“BDO") to practise in
the name of BDO, Grant Thornton resigned on 24 November 2010 and BDO
was appointed as auditor of the Company effective from 21 December 2010.
The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010 and 2011
were audited by BDO.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Hon Kwok Lung
Chairman

Hong Kong
26 March 2012
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B Az B RS

IBDO

To the shareholders of China Haidian Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Haidian
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together "the
Group”) set out on pages 50 to 175, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2011, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’” RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Tel: +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

EiE 0 +8522218 8288
{£H : +8522815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25 Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

o
FREER11158

I 251
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZHEN R E
For the year ended 31 December 2011 #H %

TE——F+_A=+—HIFE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2011 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Au Yiu Kwan

Practising Certificate Number P05018
Hong Kong

26 March 2012
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A EEWAR

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE-T——F+_A=1+—HIEFE

2011 2010
—E2——F —E-FF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FERT FHET
Continuing operations: BEREXRY
Revenue PN 7 1,465,276 800,604
Cost of sales $HE B AN (637,042) (307,030)
Gross profit EF 828,234 493,574
Other income and financial income H g A R sUg A 8 21,027 10,492
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHE R (343,908) (205,511)
Administrative expenses THER (234,144) (150,211)
Gain on fair value changes in financial assets at & F{EE Ay M EE 2
fair value through TRMEEQATFEES
profit or loss, net Wzt 558 10,947 6,669
Excess of fair value of the net identifiable assets A% BIFEE 7 AT EBBEY
over the cost of acquisition of subsidiaries BINE AT =5 44 46,904 -
Net surplus on revaluation of investment properties & ¥ ¥ E (LA %RIFE 19 5,675 13,004
Dividend income from available-for-sale AP ESMEERE
financial assets PN 25(a) 6,551 5,172
Share of profit of associates FEAG B N B 1,991 6,979
(Loss)/Gain on disposals of associates HEBERNRZ(EE) s 122, 240) (4,952) 177,711
Finance costs MBER 9 (4,331) (1.811)
Profit before income tax BRFTBHANER 10 333,994 356,068
Income tax expense T8> 11 (68,240) (82,349)
Profit after income tax from continuing operations  JFE AL & HE SR TS R1EHET 265,754 273,719
Discontinued operations: ERIEEEEK
Profit for the year from discontinued operations ~ BARIAEEEE 2 NFEHF] 123 16,036 7,063
Profit for the year REEEF 281,790 280,782
Other comprehensive income HpZEBA
— Exchange gain on translation of financial —REBINETE I SRR
statements of foreign operations E4 7 E LW 14,570 28,948
— Transfer of exchange fluctuation reserve to —REE—RERESIEEE
profit or loss on disposal of Ry 188 [0 SN R B Rt s
a jointly controlled entity 2 M S E B (17,496) -
— Changes in fair value of available-for-sale — A ESREEATE
financial assets =E 25(a) (305,401) (327,623)
Other comprehensive income for the year TEEHMEEBA (308,327) (298,675)
Total comprehensive income for the year TEE2HKRALRE (26,537) (17,893)
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2011 2010
—E—-—fF —E-EF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
L FTHET FHT
Profit for the year attributable to: BT AT EAEARFERF 13
Owners of the Company NARIER A 255,874 271,566
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR RE RS 25,916 9,216
281,790 280,782
Total comprehensive income for the year UTATEERFEZERA
attributable to: FE
Owners of the Company VIN/NETEZ =N (54,105) (27,672)
Non-controlling interests FEERR A 27,568 9,779
(26,537) (17,893)
Earnings per share attributable to owners of EATEBAERERER
the Company 15
From continuing and discontinued operations HSEREXBRELRL
R
— Basic — &R HK cents 6.19 HK cents 7.42
AL AL
— Diluted — HK cents 6.11 HK cents 7.21
AL AL
From continuing operations HRIFEREHER
— Basic — &K HK cents 5.80 HK cents 7.23
AL A
— Diluted —#E HK cents 5.73  HK cents 7.02
AL AL
From discontinued operations HORIEEEEE
— Basic —HAK HK cent 0.39 HK cent 0.19
A AL
— Diluted — s HK cent 0.38 HK cent 0.19
A AL
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As at 31 December 2011 R-ZT——F+=-A=+—H

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B E FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MR E 18 228,939 87,777
Investment properties LB 19 93,387 87,712
Prepaid land lease payments T+ A EFIE 20 28,235 27,980
Goodwill RS 21 621,382 621,382
Interests in associates Frb B & R B e e 24 164 158
Available-for-sale financial assets Attt ESREE 25 807,696 1,113,095
Intangible assets mEEaE 26 55,944 10,397
Prepayments and deposits TENRIERIES 27 5,290 2,397
Deferred tax assets FEERIAE B 37 1,295 1,250
1,842,332 1,952,148
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 7E 28 956,273 428,831
Trade and bill receivables JrE I BR 3R N R AR 29 244,284 113,762
Prepaid land lease payments T‘Eﬁjzimfﬁg\m 20 730 667
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AT FROE - T;z‘i\&ﬂﬁﬁﬁ‘éﬂﬂl%( 27 175,527 160,969
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  3Z A AE 5T A Mk E 18 2
TREE 30 107,803 91,764
Cash and cash equivalents HERBESEEY 32 351,276 837,872
1,835,893 1,633,865
Non-current asset held for sale BIEHEZIERBEE 12.6 - 43,729
Assets of a disposal group classified as held DERFIEHEZHEARIEE
for sale 12.5 - 257,344
1,835,893 1,934,938
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bill payables ENBER RERE 33 194,448 123,696
Other payables and accruals ,HJ’@FEH AN EETER 34 221,214 135,846
Dividend payables eSS 252 644
Tax payables R BUE 41,044 86,726
Borrowings l=a=¢ 35 86,171 35,353
Due to related companies R BEEQRTRK 36 157 26,230
543,286 408,495
Liabilities of a disposal group classified as held SDEAFELRECHEHRRAE
for sale 12.5 - 164,704
543,286 573,199
Net current assets MENEEFE 1,292,607 1,361,739
Total assets less current liabilities/Net assets MEERTRBHERS EEFE 3,134,939 3,313,887
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As at 31 December 2011 W-_ZE——F+_-_HA=+—H
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FET FET
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the Company QA F#EHE A ISR
Share capital &N 38 413,975 409,007
Proposed dividend BURIZ 2 186,289 143,153
Reserves HiE 40 2,458,125 2,732,622
3,058,389 3,284,782
Non-controlling interests JEFERE = 76,550 29,105
Total equity EREEE 3,134,939 3,313,887
Hon Kwok Lung Shang Jianguang
BEERE BMEX
Director Director

EF EF
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As at 31 December 2011 RZZT——F+=ZA=+—H

2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Fif et TR FHT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M WENREE 18 1,749 3,559
Interests in subsidiaries Frib MY B A el 22 1,306,121 921,407
1,307,870 924,966
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FARTRIE - e R E A YR 27 3,766 3,301
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 3% A A& 5T A% Mk E5iE >~
TREE 30 52,671 44,670
Due from disposal group JE W 4B 515 IE 31 - 232
Cash and cash equivalents RERBESZEEY 32 89,411 403,182
145,848 451,385
Non-current assets held for sale BIELEZIERBDEE 12.6 - 93,551
145,848 544,936
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accruals HiERR R EER 34 14,358 18,896
Dividend payables FEAT AR B 251 644
Borrowings BE 35 13,000 13,000
Due to a related company 7B B N Rl R 36 - 9,060
27,609 41,600
Net current assets REEEFE 118,239 503,336
Net assets BEERE 1,426,109 1,428,302
EQUITY fE=
Share capital B& 2 38 413,975 409,007
Proposed dividend R IR S 14 186,289 143,153
Reserves EE 40 825,845 876,142
Total equity EREm 1,426,109 1,428,302

Hon Kwok Lung
BEE
Director

EF

Shang Jianguang

AEx

Director

EFE
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2011 2010
—E——F ZE-TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
fies FHT SR
Cash flows from operating activities of FERERCRIEREER
continuing and discontinued operations REXBELZASHE
Profit before income tax PR PGB AL A
Continuing operations SRS 333,994 356,068
Discontinued operations TR Rk dezs 12.3 4,635 7,793
Total =t 338,629 363,861
Adjustments for: R
Interest income FBWA (9,314) (2,148)
Finance costs M5EA 9,770 9,704
Excess of fair value of the net identifiable assets over A3 RIS & 2 1 T (& B Ui fs
the cost of acquisition of subsidiaries MEBARKAZ =5 44 (46,904) -
Dividend income from available-for-sale financial assets  AJfit HE & B E 7 BB A 25(a) (6,551) (5,172)
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value BATEF NG BEs 2
through profit or loss REEZRERA 8 (716) (657)
Losses on write off of property, plant and equipment, — Hi#H¥E - BENRE 2 EE
net R - 178
Net surplus on revaluation of investment properties BANFEGRARFE 19 (5,675) (13,004)
Depreciation e 25,625 19,667
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments A+ 3 FH & B 5 846 829
Amortisation of intangible assets B EH 26 1,877 1,336
Share of profit of associates FEAG R & A DR (1,991) (6,979)
Equity-settled share-hased compensation PN Nt - o e 2,983 7,631
Loss/(Gain) on disposals of associates HEBEN TZJ%}E/ (Wgz5)  12.2,24(a) 4,952 (177,711)
Gain on derivative financial instruments PTESRI Az Wz (625) (272)
Reversal of impairment losses on trade receivables B WAR TR BB 1B - (73)
Provision for obsolete inventories RETEEE - 1,953
Operating profit before working capital changes ¥ @ééﬁéﬁﬁﬁz%«%mﬂ 312,906 199,143
Increase in inventories eSS (357,473) (198,421)
Increase in trade and bill receivables FELISZEE/TA&KTFi‘jJD (174,549) (22,056)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and BNRIE - e RAM
other receivables JE%Z 7l (11,569) (129,912)
Increase in financial assets at fair value through BATEF NGNS BE 2
profit or loss BEEEM (16,039) (9,282)
Increase in trade and bill payables FETBR TR E I AN 61,062 49,511
Increase in other payables and accruals Hip TR BT E R
N 53,877 38,905
Decrease in amounts due to related companies ERBREEQRRIRD (26,073) -
Cash used in operations ReEBBHR RS (157,858) (72,112)
Interest received EHN‘J 9,314 2,148
Interest paid Eﬁﬂ%\ (9,770) (9,704)
Income tax paid BETEH (113,387) (126,652)
Net cash used in operating activities REEBEE RS FE (271,701) (206,320)
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2011 2010
—E2——-F —T-TF
Not\es HK$'000 HK$ 000
M= TR FHIL
Cash flows from investing activities of continuing and HERERCRIEEEEE Y
discontinued operations RETHELEZRERE
Dividends received from available-for-sale financial assets B UgAl it & S BIEER S 25(a) 6,551 5,172
Dividends received from financial assets at fair value B YR A FEE AR I
through profit or loss BlEZEREERS 8 716 657
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE BELERE (80,347) (35,864)
Purchases of prepaid land lease payments HEBMNLtAERE - (12,689)
Purchases of intangible assets BEELEE 26 (10,366) (11,494)
Net cash outflow from acquisition of subsidiaries WEHNEATZBL R $E 44 (209,475) -
Repayments from an associate BB —EBE A - 272,127
Proceeds from disposals of associates HEBS N FEIIE 12.2, 24(a) 40,768 211,353
Net cash inflow from disposals of a jointly HE— FaEJﬁITT HERR L
controlled entity BemAFE 124 53,704 -
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and HEYE @%&ﬁﬁ
equipment FTiS 500 - 74
Acquisition of non-controlling interests o FE HXTE (2,445) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities 18 &EE) (FA),EL 2R 4 55 (200,894) 429,936
Cash flows from financing activities of continuing BFERERCRLEREEK Y
and discontinued operations METHELEZHERE
Dividends paid to owners of the Company MAA T%EE/\EJEHHQ,%\ (186,840) (224,626)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests [ IEE IR 2 R 5 R B, (9,584) (6,504)
Increase in bank loans ISR TER 84,061 22,241
Net proceeds from placement of shares RO ERRERIBFEE 9,900 554,315
Proceeds from shares issued under share option scheme  1R¥E:2BE AL (7 %.ﬁr%ﬁéh
Mﬁﬁﬁ’a HE 18,530 16,394
Repurchases of ordinary shares f o (17,253) -
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests IEE Hx*& /£§ 31,906 9,348
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities BEEE (B EETEEFE (69,280) 371,168
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents HERBEZEBYWZ(FD),/
B nFEE (541,875) 594,784
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—B2RERREEEY 872,642 253,617
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EXGETETH 20,509 24,241
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+t=-ZB=+—-HzHE&
RREEEY 351,276 872,642
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents BeRASEEBNERIN
Cash and bank balances B4 NIR{TES 351,276 872,642
Remaining Group TR 32 351,276 837,872
Disposal Group HE4R 12,5 - 34,770
351,276 872,642
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R
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TEFREEER A

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Share
capital

e
HKS'000
THTL

Share
premium
account*
B
HER
HK$'000
kT

Investment

revaluation ~ Retained  Proposed
reserve* profits*  dividend

RE

i EfBR REET RERR
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Tt TEr  TEn

“E——FFR
Non-

controlling

Total  interests

FER

a5t iz
HKS'000  HKS'000
TEr  TEn

57

Total
equity

Riag
HKS'000
a7

t 1 January 2010

Transactions with owners
Placement of shares during the year

Proceeds from shares issued under share option

scheme
Exercise of share options

Recognition of equity-settled share-based

compensation

Capital contribution from non-controlling interests
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
Payments of final 2009 dividend (note 14.2)
Payments of interim 2010 dividend (note 14.1)

Total transactions with owners

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Exchange gain on translation of finanial
statements of foreign operations

Change n fair value of available-for-sale
finandial assets

Total comprehensive income

Proposed final 2010 dividend (note 14.1)

Appropriations to statutory reserve

Balance at 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011

Transactions with owners
Placement of shares during the year
Repurchases of ordinary shares

Proceeds from shares issued under share option

scheme
Exercise of share options

Recognition of equity-settled share-based

compensation

Capital contribution from non-controlling interests

Acquisition of non-controlling interests

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
Payments of final 2010 dividend (note 14.2)
Payments of interim 2011 dividend (note 14.1)

Total transactions with owners

BEEARS

EREERR
BEDERGETEETRG
g3

e
BRNREEE 2RO B

FHERERTE
AIFERERRARE

R -FEAERARE (HE142)
R -F-TERHRE (Hiu1)

EREARSER

A
R

ELESTON

BRESNEREHRREL,
B

AHHELHARATER

2ERALR

R -E-TERARE (Hiw
ErBEELER

~FFHoAZH-AR
—E-f-Azkp

BRAARS

ERRERD

BOLER
RERBROEABEARD

R

BiE
A EE 2 RIS

7

ﬁﬁ

bizaliy 2ohia )
B Faniy 22
REZEly
&
&M=

g
FRERE (H142)
——ERERE ()

HERARZAR

354,268

49,695

5,044

447,848

489,460

11,350
7,650

(6,259)
(56,161)

756,929 1188524 145250

- - (145,250)

2,941,784 16,482

554315 -
16,394 -
1,631 -

- 9,348

- (6,504)
(151,509) -
(56,161) -

2,958,266

554315

16,394

1631
9,348
(6,504)
(151,509)
(56,161)

54,739

446,040

- - (145,250)

271,566

(327613) -

370,670 2,844

271,566 9,216

28,385 563

(327613) -

313,514

280,782

28,948

(327,623)

(49,327)

(327,623) 271,566

(3.244)

(93,826) 143,153

(27.672) 9,119

(17,89)

409,007

1,000
(1,736)

5,704

84,561

1368
(15,517)

12826
8,65

(1.891)
(41,404)

429306 1363020 143,153

3,084,782 29,105

9,900 -

(17,253) -

18,530 -
2,983

- 31,906

- (2,445)

- (9,584)

(145,044) -

(41,404) -

3313887

9,900
(17,29)

18,530

2983
31,906
(2,449)
(9,584)

(145,044)
(41,404

4,968

(35,962)

(172,288) 19817

(152,411)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

E-T——F+_A=t+—HILEE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

EDRHEAREEE
Share Share Goodwill Exchange ~ Investment Non-
Share  premium option Other arisingon  Statutory ~ fluctuation revaluation  Retained  Proposed controlling Total
capital account  reserve*  reserve consolidation®  reserve*  reserve®  reserve* profits* ~ dividend Total  interests equity
K p GAKE EE  HERD & FER
Bx  RER ROERE HARE ELroEE BRED G EfRE REEW RERS &gt BE RBRfE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS'000
TEn T  TEr  TEr  TEr  TExr  TEr  Tér  TEr  TEx TEr TEnr TEn
Comprehensive income 2ERA
Proft for the year TERER - - - - - - - - 25581 - )8 25916 281,790
Other comprehensive income LSO
Exchange gein on translation of financal BERNEBABRRELLZ
statements of foreign operations Bt b - - - - - - 198 - - - 198 1,652 14570
Transfer to profit or loss on disposal of REEXREHERERREEN
a jointly controlled entity (note 12.4) = 124) - - - - - - (17,49) - - - (17,49) - (17,49)
Change in fair value of available-for-sale T‘ﬁﬁ%%nﬁéé
financial assets - - - - - - - (305401) - - (305,401) - (305,401)
Total comprehensive income 2EMALE - - - - - - (4578) (305,401 255874 - (54105 2758 (26,537)
Release of statutory reserve upon disposal HELRRHEBERERET
of a jointly controlled entity HiEES - - - - - (946) - - 946 - - - -
Proposed final 2011 dividend (note 14.1) BE-E-—ERERA(H1) - (1619 - - - - - ~ (170095 186,289 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2011 RoB--FoASt-R2fs 4505 M5 0M8 N6 (SN0 KIE 4G IBNS TMOMS U069 IS TEED 314

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$2,458,125,000
(2010: HK$2,732,622,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

JL) °

Y EZERERBERE ABM%HK/REEWZ%EAW%
2,458,125,0008 7T ( =& —

T ¢ 2,732,622,0007%8
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE-T——F+_A=1+—HIEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Haidian Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Its registered office
address is P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, South Church Street, Grand
Cayman, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business is Units
1902-04, Level 19, International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road
West, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company's shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the year, the principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) include:

— Manufacture and distribution of watches and timepieces
—  Property investments
—  Distribution of yachts

In December 2010, the Group was committed to a plan to sell its 49%
equity interest in a jointly-controlled entity, namely Fuzhou Dartong
Machinery and Electronic Company Limited (“Fuzhou Dartong”), and its
25.58% equity interest in an associate, namely Jiangsu Dartong M&E
Co., Limited (“Jiangsu Dartong”), both of which are also principally
engaged in the manufacture and distribution of enamelled copper
wires. As management considered that the disposals of Fuzhou Dartong
and Jiangsu Dartong were highly probable as at 31 December 2010, in
accordance with HKFRS 5, the Group had reclassified:

(a) the assets and liabilities of Fuzhou Dartong as at 31 December
2010 as assets/liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for
sale in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position;

(b)  the interests in Jiangsu Dartong as at 31 December 2010 as non-
current asset held for sale in the Group's consolidated statement
of financial position and the Company’s statement of financial
position;

— &R

FEEBREEBRAR(IART]) BRFAS
HEFMARIcBRAR - HiFMiEEt
4 & P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, South Church

Street, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands *+ £ 2 %&

EMBUREBNENTEERIRIRKE
SEH 1918 1902-04F - KRB RMDNRES
BERZMBRAR([BRAT]) L -

FAR - ARBREWMBERR (B AEEH])
ZEBEBBRE

— EEREEFEMBENRDH
- PERE
- BEESH

RZE—ZF+ZA AEBEEEHILE
,HEA RERZEFEREMNRNBEEER
ANEN([BINKE]) 2 49%IEHE K2 — KEF N
AIEMAREKEERAR([IHAR]) 2
25.58% %1 - MAEHEER B R BIMGEE
RoEER AR EEERA R_T—%
F+-_A=1+—8B HE®MRKBRIHAKX
BN - BREFEMBEMEERNE
55% 0 AEEEH ¢

(@) BMRBR=ZZE—ZF+=-A=+—8
ZEERBERAEEZHEATBERR
KNEFDBEARBERNEZHEARZ
BE,/AfE;

b)) RZZE—ZTF+_A=+—HZIHK
‘Lﬁéﬁ?’lﬁ"l‘%lZF BIFE AR R B AR
RAZHERRAKRF D BRFTIELEZ
FRBEE :
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE_ZT——F+_A=+—HILFE
1. GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

(c) the interests in Fuzhou Dartong as at 31 December 2010 as a
non-current asset held for sale in the Company’s statement of
financial position; and

(d) the income and expenses of Fuzhou Dartong for the year ended
31 December 2010 as discontinued operation in the Group’s
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The manufacture and distribution of enamelled copper wires businesses
are referred to as the Discontinued Enamelled Copper Wire Business
hereinafter.

On 6 January 2011, the Group entered into 2 transfer agreements with
Honour Aim Limited (“Honour Aim"), a company ultimately beneficially
wholly-owned by Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, the chairman and an executive
director of the Company, in respect of the disposals of Fuzhou Dartong
and Jiangsu Dartong, under which:

(a) The Company agreed to sell its 49% equity interest in Fuzhou
Dartong to Honour Aim for a consideration of HK$93,342,000 (the
“Fuzhou Dartong Agreement”).

(b) The Company agreed to its 25.58% equity interest in Jiangsu
Dartong to Honour Aim for a consideration of HK$40,768,000 (the
“Jiangsu Dartong Agreement”).

The Fuzhou Dartong Agreement and Jiangsu Dartong Agreement
constituted major and connected transactions under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and are subject to approval from the
Company’s independent shareholders, details of which have been set
out in the Company’s circular dated 22 February 2011.

It was resolved in the extraordinary general meeting held on 9 March
2011 that the Fuzhou Dartong Agreement and the Jiangsu Dartong
Agreement had already obtained the approval from the independent
shareholders by way of poll.

In June and July 2011, the Group has completed the disposal of its
49% equity interests in Fuzhou Dartong and the disposal of its 25.58%
equity interest in Jiangsu Dartong. Details of the disposal of Fuzhou
Dartong and Jiangsu Dartong are set out in note 12.

_ﬂnﬁﬂ(nﬁ)

(0 ‘MARB-Z-—TF+_A=1+—RHZ
BENAR 72%%#%%”@EH¢
HEZERBEE &

(d BMRBREZE_-_ZFT-—ZTF+_A
=t HUEFEZRARASIRAEE
ZEAEARARTOERDRILES
E

BB R R BE
BB AR o

Ry S N X BB L

R-ZE——F—AXH  AEEEARER
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KiE - it

(a) ARRIRAEMARHEEREBMN R
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE-ZT——F+-A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

Other than the Discontinued Enamelled Copper Wire Business as
described above and the acquisition of the subsidiaries as described
in note 44 to the financial statements, there were no other significant
changes in the Group's operations during the year. The Group's
principal places of the business are in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC").

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 were
approved for issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2012.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs —
EFFECTIVE 1 JANUARY 2011

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new standards, amendments and interpretations (the
“new HKFRSs") issued by HKICPA, which are relevant to and
effective for the Group's financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1 January 2011:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2010

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

Except as explained below, the adoption of the new/revised
standards and interpretations has no significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)
(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs -

EFFECTIVE 1 JANUARY 2011 (Continued)
HKFRS 3 (Amendments) — Business Combinations

As part of the improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010, HKFRS
3 has been amended to clarify that the option to measure non-
controlling interests (“NCI") at either fair value or the NCl's
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets is limited to instruments that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets in the event of liquidation.
Other components of NCI are measured at their acquisition
date fair value unless another measurement basis is required
by HKFRSs. The Group has amended its accounting policies for
measuring NCI but the adoption of the amendment has had no
impact on the Group's financial statements.

HKAS 24 (Revised) — Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 (Revised) amends the definition of related party and
clarifies its meaning. This may result in changes to those parties
who are identified as being related parties of the reporting entity.
The Group has reassessed the identification of its related parties
in accordance with the revised definition. The adoption of HKAS
24 (Revised) has no impact on the Group's reported profit or loss,
total comprehensive income or equity for any period presented.

HKAS 24 (Revised) also introduces simplified disclosure
requirements applicable to related party transactions where the
Group and the counterparty are under the common control, joint
control or significant influence of a government, government
agency or similar body. These new disclosures are not relevant to
the Group because the Group is not a government related entity.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)
(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED
BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group's financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 1
(Revised)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets!

Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets?

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income3

Financial Instruments®

Consolidated Financial
Statements?

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities*

Fair Value Measurement4

Separate Financial Statements*
Employee Benefits*

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures4

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)
(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED

BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures — Transfers
of Financial Assets

The amendments to HKFRS 7 improve the disclosure requirements
for transfer transactions of financial assets and allow users of
financial statements to better understand the possible effects
of any risks that may remain with the entity on transferred
assets. The amendments also require additional disclosures if a
disproportionate amount of transfer transactions are undertaken
around the end of a reporting period.

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Deferred Tax —
Recovery of Underlying Assets

The amendments to HKAS 12 introduce a rebuttable presumption
that an investment property is recovered entirely through sale.
This presumption is rebutted if the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through sale. The
amendments will be applied retrospectively.

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) — Presentation
of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require the Group to
separate items presented in other comprehensive income into
those that may be reclassified to profit and loss in future (e.qg.
revaluations of available-for-sale financial assets) and those that
may not (e.g. revaluations of property, plant and equipment).
Tax on items of other comprehensive income is allocated and
disclosed on the same basis.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified into financial assets
measured at fair value or at amortised cost depending on the
entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. Fair
value gains or losses will be recognised in profit or loss except for
those non-trade equity investments, which the entity will have a
choice to recognise the gains and losses in other comprehensive
income. HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS
39, except for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of that liability is recognised
in other comprehensive income unless that would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the
requirements in HKAS 39 for de-recognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRAEEBHMERELEN([EBHE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued) REXER|]) (8)
(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED (B) S EMBEREMZHE] &5
BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued) SEBRREED (F)

HKFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for consolidation of
all investee entities. An investor has control when it has power
over the investee (whether or not that power is used in practice),
exposure or rights to variable returns from the investee and the
ability to use the power over the investee to affect those returns.
HKFRS 10 contains extensive guidance on the assessment of
control. For example, the standard introduces the concept of
“de facto” control where an investor can control an investee
while holding less than 50% of the investee's voting rights in
circumstances where its voting interest is of sufficiently dominant
size relative to the size and dispersion of those of other individual
shareholders to give it power over the investee. Potential voting
rights are considered in the analysis of control only when these
are substantive, i.e. the holder has the practical ability to exercise
them. The standard explicitly requires an assessment of whether
an investor with decision making rights is acting as principal or
agent and also whether other parties with decision making rights
are acting as agents of the investor. An agent is engaged to act
on behalf of and for the benefit of another party and therefore
does not control the investee when it exercises its decision
making authority. The implementation of HKFRS 10 may result in
changes in those entities which are regarded as being controlled
by the Group and are therefore consolidated in the financial
statements. The accounting requirements in the existing HKAS
27 on other consolidation related matters are carried forward
unchanged. HKFRS 10 is applied retrospectively subject to certain
transitional provisions.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)
(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED

BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)
HKFRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the disclosures
requirements about interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements. It also introduces new disclosure requirements,
including those related to unconsolidated structured entities. The
general objective of the standard is to enable users of financial
statements to evaluate the nature and risks of a reporting entity’s
interests in other entities and the effects of those interests on the
reporting entity’s financial statements.

HKFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on how to
measure fair value when it is required or permitted by other
standards. The standard applies to both financial and non-
financial items measured at fair value and introduces a fair value
measurement hierarchy. The definitions of the three levels in
this measurement hierarchy are generally consistent with HKFRS
7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”. HKFRS 13 defines fair
value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price). The
standard removes the requirement to use bid and ask prices for
financial assets and liabilities quoted in an active market. Rather
the price within the bid-ask spread that is most representative of
fair value in the circumstances should be used. It also contains
extensive disclosure requirements to allow users of the financial
statements to assess the methods and inputs used in measuring
fair values and the effects of fair value measurements on the
financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. Héﬁw%,%,ﬂﬁ%iﬁ ZR([FEBABK
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued) WELER ) ()
(B) NEW/REVISED HKFRSs THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED (B) BIEMEEARERZHFE K&
BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued) —T%.S,%E!ﬁ%ﬁ%/ B (#&)
HKAS 19 (2011) — Employee Benefits EBETTERE 95—;5(_g——
F)- {E,Eaﬁa%u

HKAS 19 (2011) abandons the corridor approach with the result
that changes in defined benefit obligations and the fair value
of plan assets are recognised in the period in which they occur.
The revised standard requires the changes in the Group’s net
defined benefit liability (or asset) to be separated into three
components: service cost (including current and past service
cost and settlements) recognised in profit or loss; net interest
on the net defined benefit liability recognised in profit or loss;
and re-measurements of the defined benefit liability (or asset)
recognised in other comprehensive income. The revised standard
distinguishes between short-term and long-term employee
benefits based on the expected date of settlement. The previous
standard used the term “due to be settled”. This change may
result in more plans being classified as long-term employee
benefit plans that will need to be accounted for in a similar way
to defined benefit plans. HKAS 19 (2011) provides additional
guidance on the definition of termination benefits. Benefits that
are conditional on future service being provided including those
that increase if additional service is provided are not termination
benefits. The revised standard requires that a liability for
termination benefits is recognised on the earlier of the date when
the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
the date the entity recognises any related restructuring costs.
This could lead to later recognition of voluntary termination
benefits in some cases. The amendments will generally be applied
retrospectively with two exceptions.

The directors of the Company anticipate that all of the
pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s accounting
policy for the first period beginning after the effective date of the
pronouncement.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
potential impact of these new/revised HKFRSs and the directors
so far concluded that the application of these new/revised HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the Group's financial statements.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION
3.1 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the "HKFRSs") issued by HKICPA. The financial statements also
include the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules.

3.2 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost
convention except for investment properties, financial instruments
classified as available-for-sale and at fair value through profit
or loss and derivative financial instruments, which are stated at
fair values. The measurement bases are fully described in the
accounting policies below.

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of these financial statements are summarised below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new/revised
HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group's financial statements, if
any, are disclosed in note 2.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
are used in preparation of the financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements are disclosed in note 5.

3.3 FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars
("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand ("HK$'000")
unless otherwise stated.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
4.1 BUSINESS COMBINATION AND BASIS OF

4, FTEESTTHEE
4.1 EBREHREERE

\{

CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (see note 4.2
below) made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised gains and losses are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the Group,
as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date fair value.
The Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may
elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure non-
controlling interest in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-
related costs incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments in which case the costs are deducted
from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments
to consideration are recognised against goodwill only to the
extent that they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition date.
All other subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. X¥EE:HHEE)

(Continued)
4.1 BUSINESS COMBINATION AND BASIS OF 4.1 EBEHRESEEE)

CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

Contingent consideration balances arising from business
combinations whose acquisition dates preceded 1 January 2010
(i.e. the date the Group first applied HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been
accounted for in accordance with the transition requirements
in the standard. Such balances are not adjusted upon first
application of the standard. Subsequent revisions to estimates of
such consideration are treated as adjustments to the cost of these
business combinations and are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's interest and the non-controlling
interest are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if the
relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling
interest is the amount of those interests at initial recognition
plus the non-controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes
in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. XEE:HHEE)

(Continued)
4.2 SUBSIDIARIES 4.2 B E]

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company is able to
exercise control. Control is achieved where the Company, directly
or indirectly, has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that are presently
exercisable are taken into account.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, subsidiaries
are carried at cost less any impairment loss unless the subsidiary
is held for sale or included in a disposal group. The results of
the subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividend received and receivable at the reporting date. All
dividends whether received out of the investee's pre or post-
acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s profit or loss.

4.3 JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

A jointly venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity that is subject
to joint control. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control over an economic activity, and exists only when the
strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the activity
require the unanimous consent of the venturers.

In consolidated financial statements, interests in jointly controlled
entities are accounted for using proportionate consolidation.
The Group combines its share of the jointly controlled entities’
individual income and expenses, assets and liabilities and cash
flows on a line-by-line basis with similar items in the Group's
financial statements. The Group recognises the portion of
gains or losses on the sale of assets by the Group to the jointly
controlled entity that it is attributable to the other venturers. The
Group does not recognise its share of profits or losses from the
jointly controlled entity that result from the Group’s purchase of
assets from the jointly controlled entity until it resells the assets
to an independent party. However, a loss on the transaction
is recognised immediately if the loss provides evidence of a
reduction in the net realisable value of current assets, or an
impairment loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.3 JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Continued)
In the Company’s statement of financial position, investment in
jointly controlled entities is stated at cost less any impairment
losses. The results of jointly controlled entities are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
Accounting policies on impairment of jointly controlled entities
are described in note 4.6 below.

4.4 ASSOCIATES
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a jointly controlled
entity. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but not
control or joint control over those policies.

In consolidated financial statements, investment in associates is
initially recognised at cost and subsequently accounted for using
equity method. Under equity method, the Group's interest in the
associate is carried at cost and adjusted for the post-acquisition
change in the Group's share of the associate’s net assets less any
identified impairment loss, unless it is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
Profit or loss includes the Group's share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the associate for the year, including any
impairment loss on the investment in associate recognised for the
year.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the associates. Where unrealised losses on assets sales between
the Group and its associates are reversed on equity accounting,
the underlying asset is also tested for impairment from the
Group's perspective. Where the associate uses accounting policies
other than those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances, adjustments are made, where necessary, to
conform the associate’s accounting policies to those of the Group
when the associate’s financial statements are used by the Group
in applying the equity method.

4, FEEFEEE)

4.3 HEZEHIER(FE)

RARABIIRE L - RERRHE
B2 A A AR E A R - 4
255 B8 3 4 2 M T PR .51
B o A BRI B @5 R
AT SO L4 656 -

4.4 BEENT]

BERAR/AKREAHETEEAR
& HY MBI SHKFZEHEEA
B  EARERSERREN 2
MEEBFRRTE BN - BAIRIEZ
FHRRE IR AR IES -

REFAMBHRERT > RBERRZKRE
BRI ANER - BRI A AR
RiBEDE  AEERBZ QB s
THRARASRR - WA KB R WEELE
HMERREEFECESHFELRE -
HESBEAFIELEEE(LFFAD S
REEREZHERR) RN - Basst
AREERWBREEED - BE AT
RERZBIEFE - BREARFRER
REE R B2 RE A EIRERE

AEBRBENRB 2R B MELEZ K
BRRDZZHARERBE QR 2
SBERHE EARERBENRHE
EHE 2 RBH BRI AR O -
HEAEENRAEE 2 ARETRIER
A o WS AR A ST ERALIEAA
SERFEEBRT (N RLE)RBUR
ZREHRERAE  ARAKERER
R A RS R R 2 M RKREE
AR - BUEZBE R R 2 2T BORE
AEBFRAE— -



FESRERERAT | —T—F4% 73

Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR+

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE-ZT——F+-A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. XEE:HHEE)
(Continued)

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as an excess of fair value of the net
identifiable assets over the cost of acquisition of subsidiaries.

The cost of the business combination is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assume, and equity instruments issued
by the Group, plus any costs directly attributable to the business
combination or investment.

4.4 ASSOCIATES (Continued) 4.4 B0 E) ()
When the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or AR EE L E QR EBEREN BB
exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group does not recognise E’;\ tE AR B ANEETBRER
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive — W ZEK WAEBEBEREZ QA
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. For %Eﬁ&é%?ﬁi T (F 3k 2 A FOA BIBR
this purpose, the Group's interest in the associate is the carrying N o BRI TS - ANEBREEE AT 2 #E
amount of the investment under the equity method together with wmAEEREFE CIREREE - ﬁﬂ
the Group's long-term interests that in substance form part of the AR EERBERRZFRETE
Group's net investment in the associate. P REE R PR -
After the application of equity method, the Group determines ERAEREE  AEEAERERFE
whether it is necessary to recognise an additional impairment loss RAEBMEERB LD Tﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬂ\/ﬂﬂﬁ
on the Group's investment in its associates. At each reporting EE o REEmER - AEEAER
date, the Group determines whether there is any objective EEMERBEEETEERBEZA 77@
evidence that investment in associate is impaired. Accounting ERE - BERBERARNRERERN
policies on impairment of investment in associates are described FEIECR - BT XXPi5F46
in note 4.6 below.
In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments RARR Z HBARRE E - REEE QA
in associates are carried at cost less any impairment losses. The 2B KA BRI R ERESE - A
results of associates are accounted for by the Company on the NERFERNE R R ERR 25 E A
basis of dividends received and receivable during the year. BIEELE o

4.5 GOODWILL 4.5 B2
Goodwill represents the excess of: EEEE
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. X¥EE:HHEE)

(Continued)
4.5 GOODWILL (Continued) 4.5 BEE(E)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (“CGUs") and
is tested annually for impairment, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired (see note 4.6). In respect
of associates or jointly controlled entities, the carrying amount of
goodwill, if any, is included in the carrying amount of the Group's
interests in the associate or jointly controlled entity and is assessed
for impairment as part of the interests in the associate or jointly
controlled entity.

Any excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of a business combination or an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, an associate or a jointly
controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised
is included in the determination of the amount of gain or loss
on disposal. Goodwill relating to business combinations or
investments in associates or jointly controlled entities prior to 1
January 2001 continues to be held in reserves and will be charged
to the retained profits at the time when the business combination,
associate or jointly controlled entity to which the goodwill relates
is disposed of or when a CGU to which goodwill relates becomes
impaired.

4.6 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Goodwill, intangible assets, property, plant and equipment,
prepaid land lease payments and interests in subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities are subject to impairment
testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually, irrespective of
whether there is any indication that it is impaired. All other assets
are tested for impairment whenever there are indications that the
asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value, reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and value-
in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessment of time value of money
and the risk specific to the asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.6 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)
For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent from those of
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflow independently
(i.e. a CGU). As a result, some assets are tested individually
for impairment and some are tested at CGU level. Goodwill in
particular is allocated to those CGUs that are expected to benefit
from synergies of the related business combination and represent
the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purpose.

Impairment losses recognised for CGUs, to which goodwill has
been allocated, are credited initially to the carrying amount of
goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to
the other assets in the CGU, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less cost
to sell, or value-in-use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods including impairment losses recognised in an interim
period. In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if
no impairment loss had been recognised.

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34 — Interim
Financial Reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period, the Group applies
the same impairment testing, recognition and reversal criteria as
it would at the end of the financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
4.7 RELATED PARTIES
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company's parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

() The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. TESHBEE)

(Continued)
4.7 RELATED PARTIES (Continued) 47 EBEAT(EE)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

4.8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land,
where the fair value of the buildings could be measured separately
from the fair value of the leasehold land at the inception of
the lease, and other items of plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress (“CIP"), are stated at acquisition cost
less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to the working condition
and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss in the year in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
48 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less their
estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the terms of the leases or
estimated useful lives, ranging
between 20 years and 40 years,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements ~ Over the terms of the leases, or
estimated useful life of 5 years,
whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 6% to 20%

Furniture, fixtures 6% t0 33 1/3%
and office equipment

Motor vehicles 9% to 20%

The assets’ estimated useful lives, estimated residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

CIP, which mainly represents construction and renovation
works on buildings and installation of machinery, is stated at
cost less any impairment losses and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises direct costs incurred during the periods of construction,
installation and testing. CIP is reclassified to the appropriate class
of property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences
when the construction work and installation are substantially
completed and the asset is ready for use.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined
as the difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

4, FEEFEEE)
4.8 M3 ~ BB tE ()

ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂT@Fﬁ F A B SR SEA
R AEE - FAEMOT

By REFHLbTERES
(=R F20E405F )
LRERE

HEMERE  HEFHAGHAIERFH
SEABEERE)

ﬁ%‘@—&%% 6%Z20%
BE EER 6%%331/3%

B 9% % 20%

SEMAEAEE - (SRS EER
T8 RN & R HIR R T R 1
B -

ERETRIZEBBTEEREUNE

BRLE - BMAABE DR EREESRR
TeirsE  HKABRREE RN

AHANEL ZHERAA - EEZ TR

R BEFEBERE - @WEHOE

EWE - BEMREZABEMAR - AL

WRITE ©

FE B B B B BT E AT ] M ek ol T 1B 3%
BEMGREFREEERMECERE
BE o WHIBRHER -



Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS IR R P 5

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE-ZT——F+-A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
4.9 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation.

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which
has been classified as an investment property is accounted for as
if it were held under a finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair value.
Fair value is determined by external professional valuers, with
sufficient experience with respect to both the location and
the nature of the investment property. The carrying amounts
recognised in the statement of financial position reflect the
prevailing market conditions at the reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair value or the
sale of an investment property are included in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

4.10 OPERATING LEASES

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contin
4.10 OPE
(i)

(i)

(iii)

ued)

RATING LEASES (Continued)

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases. Where the Group has the right to use of
assets held under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss using straight-line
method over the lease terms except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the time pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased assets. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rental are charged to profit or loss in the year in which they
are incurred.

Assets leased out under operating leases as
the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are measured and
presented according to the nature of the assets. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the
same basis as rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on the straight-line method over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments are up-front payments to
acquire the long-term interests in usage of land on which
the buildings are situated. These payments are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment
loss. Amortisation is calculated using straight-line method
over the respective lease terms.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contin

ued)

411 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(i)

(ii)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately or from business
combination are mainly supplier and distribution network
and brand name, which are initially recognised at cost. For
intangible assets have finite useful lives, they are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment
loss. Amortisation is provided on straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives of 10 years. Intangible asset
with an indefinite useful life is not amortised.

Internally generated intangible assets (research
and development costs)
Expenditure on internally developed products is capitalised
if it can be demonstrated that:

e itis technically feasible to develop the product for it
to be sold;

e  adequate resources are available to complete the
development;

e thereis an intention to complete and sell the product;
e the Group is able to sell the product;

e  sale of the product will generate future economic
benefits; and

e expenditure on the project can be measured reliably.

Capitalised development costs are amortised over the
periods the Group expects to benefit from selling the
products developed. The amortisation expense is recognised
in profit or loss.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above criteria
and expenditure on the research phase of internal projects
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
4.11INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
(iii) Impairment
Accounting policy for impairment of intangible assets have
been set out in note 4.6 above.

412 FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group's financial assets are classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition depending
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired and
where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at
every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in
the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs.

De-recognition of financial assets occurs when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments expire or are transferred
and substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to assess
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, impairment loss is determined and recognised
based on the classification of the financial asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contin

ued)

4.12 FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
mainly financial assets held for trading and they are
acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term, or it is
part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there is evidence of a
recent pattern of short-term profit-taking.

Financial assets may be designated at initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria
are met:

—  the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or recognising gains or losses on
them on a different basis; or

—  the assets are part of a group of financial assets which
are managed and their performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management strategy and information about the
group of financial assets is provided internally on that
basis to the key management personnel; or

—  the financial asset contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets
included in this category are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Fair value
is determined by reference to active market transactions
or using a valuation technique where no active market
exists. Fair value gain or loss does not include any dividend
or interest earned on these financial assets. Dividend
and interest income is recognised in accordance with the
Group's accounting policies in note 4.19.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contin

ued)

4.12 FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. These are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction cost.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These include non-derivative financial assets that do not
qualify for inclusion in any of the other categories of
financial assets.

All financial assets within this category are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gain or loss arising from a change in
the fair value excluding any dividend and interest income is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the investment revaluation reserve in equity,
except for impairment losses (see the policy below) and
foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary assets,
until the financial asset is derecognised, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity
would be recycled to profit or loss. Interest calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in profit or
loss. Upon disposal, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is transferred to profit or loss.

For available-for-sale investment in equity securities that
do not have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery
of such unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at each reporting
date subsequent to initial recognition.

4, FTESTTEHEK(E)
LN EMEE(E)

(i)

(iii)

ER KRR IE
ERMERFIBEAEETHAHE
TET RS I BT )ER M ISRE
ZHENTETRHEE - REEEH
BIABRRN FORIL B AR - BT
REE R 8 - Bk A ZE
BT AR BB R A A 2 T S0k
B BRBRERNERZHKAR
ZER -

AHEEEREE
EFRRBETITEERGREAEMSE
MEERERNZIETELREE -

AERNZ B ERMEERLRIAR
FEME- B‘%HTEJEETE(,%TXBZ
RI)REEEEIMNERZIN -
@H@JFE‘EZ”&m@ZEﬂE(T@ﬁﬁ
EAE R BRA) BEER E A
EHRARER U ER2RESE
AFEEBLRT  BEEAHTRE
ESIRERRLL - R AERER
Rz Retlam BRI Ram R
EXMER - ERBERNEEE
MEDNBHEER - LERHEE
B @ENER R Ratiask
EIREREER -

MY EEERTERELELATE
TREA SRt B 2 A ERARE 75
BREAREERERATARE
BXNZETAGEEZTETAM
BRI HEREEHRER - Him
AL R 2 BRI RE R RAT & -



Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS IR R P 5

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE-ZT——F+-A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.12 FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets
At each reporting date, financial assets other than at fair value
through profit or loss are reviewed to determine whether there
is any objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment of individual financial assets includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of
the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

— asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets include
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from the group of financial assets.
Such observable data includes but not limited to adverse changes
in the payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the
assets in the group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contin

ued)

4.12 FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If any

such evidence exists, the impairment loss is measured and

recognised as follows:

(i)

(i)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A provision for impairment of loans and receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of the receivables. The amount of
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). The amount of the
loss is recognised in profit or loss of the year in which the
impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the
extent that it does not result in a carrying amount of the
financial asset exceeding what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised at the
date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal
is recognised in profit or loss of the year in which the
reversal occurs.

Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale
financial asset has been recognised directly in equity and
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, an
amount is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss as an impairment loss. That amount is measured as
the difference between the asset’s acquisition cost (net of
any principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Reversals of impairment for investment in equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale are not recognised in profit
or loss. The subsequent increase in fair value is recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.12 FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Financial assets carried at cost

The amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed in
subsequent periods.

For financial assets other than loans and receivables that
are stated at amortised cost, impairment losses are written
off against the corresponding assets directly. Where the
recovery of loans and receivables is considered doubtful but
not remote, the impairment losses for doubtful receivables
are recorded using an allowance account. When the Group
is satisfied that recovery of loans and receivables is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
the loans and receivables directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account in respect of that receivable are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect
of available-for-sale equity securities and unquoted equity
securities carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent
period. Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-
sale equity security increases in the remainder of an annual
period, or in a subsequent period, the increase is recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
4.13FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and bill payables,
other payables, derivative financial instruments, borrowings
and amounts due to related companies. These are included
in the statement of financial position line items as trade and
bill payables, other payables and accruals, derivative financial
instruments, borrowings and amounts due to related companies.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All interest
related charges are recognised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy for borrowing costs as set out in note 4.22.

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligations
specified in the relevant contract are discharged, cancelled or
expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference
in the respective carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.
Other than derivative financial instruments which are detailed in
note 4.14 below, measurements of the financial liabilities are as
follows.

(i) Borrowings
Borrowings are mainly bank loans and are recognised
initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. These
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

(i) Trade and other payables and amounts due to
related companies
These are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost less settlement payments, using
effective interest method.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.14 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Contracts to buy and sell a non-financial items is accounted for as
derivative when it can be settled net in cash or another financial
instrument and is not held for the purpose of receipt or delivery
of the non-financial item in accordance with the Group's expected
purchase, sale or usage requirement.

Derivative financial instruments, in individual contracts or
separated from hybrid financial instruments, are initially
recognised at fair value on the date when the derivative
contract is entered into. At each reporting date, the fair value
is re-measured. Gain or loss arising from changes in fair value
is charged immediately to profit or loss for the year, except
where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting or
hedge the net investment in a foreign operation, in which case
recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of
the item being hedged.

4.15INVENTORIES

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using weighted average basis, and
in the case of work-in-progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less any applicable selling expense
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

4.16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank balances,
demand deposits with banks and short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
4.17 PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course of the
allocation of purchase price to the assets and liabilities acquired
in a business combination. These are initially measured at fair
value at the date of acquisition and subsequently measured at the
higher of the amount that would be recognised in a comparable
provision as described above and the amount initially recognised
less any accumulated amortisation, if appropriate.

4.18INCOME TAXES

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities relating to the
current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the reporting
dates. They are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense in profit
or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.18INCOME TAXES (Continued)
Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on temporary
differences at the reporting date between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, tax
losses available to be carried forward as well as other unused tax
credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period the liability is settled or
the asset realised, provided they are enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in
profit or loss, or in equity if they relate to items that are charged
or credited directly to equity if they relate to items that are
charged or credited to other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in net
if, and only if,

a.  the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and

b.  intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
4.18 INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
in net if, and only if,

a.  the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

b.  the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

the same taxable entity; or

ii. different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

419 REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue comprises the fair value of the sale of goods and services
and the use by others of the Group’s assets yielding interest and
dividends, net of applicable value-added tax (“VAT"), rebates and
discounts. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

Sales of goods (including the discontinued operations) are
recognised upon transfer of significant risks and rewards of
ownership to the customer. This is usually taken as the time
when the goods are delivered and the customer has accepted the
goods.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on straight-
line method over the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal
outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Dividend is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is
established.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
4.20EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Retirement benefits to employees are provided through defined
contribution plans and defined retirement benefit plans.

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a defined contribution staff retirement
scheme (the “ORSO Scheme”) for certain employees, the assets
of which are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the eligible employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the ORSO Scheme. When an employee leaves the
ORSO Scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group's employer
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by
the Group can be reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited
contributions.

The Group also operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for
those employees in Hong Kong who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme not previously covered by the ORSO Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
the PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute certain percentage of its payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The Scheme is responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to the retired employees
and the Group has no further obligations for the actual pension
payments or other post-retirement benefits beyond the employer
contributions. Contributions under the Scheme are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the PRC.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. TESHBE(E)

(Continued)
4.20 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued) 4120 EERF (48)

Defined benefit retirement plans

The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit
retirement plans of certain foreign subsidiaries is calculated
separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future
benefits that employees have earned in return for their service
in the current and prior periods. The benefit is discounted to
determine the present value, and the fair value of any plan assets
is deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the end of reporting
period on high quality corporate bonds that have maturity
dates approximating the terms of the Group’s obligation. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method.

When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the
increased benefit relating to past service by employees is
recognised as an expense in profit or loss on straight-line method
over the average period until the benefits become vested. To
the extent that the benefits vest immediately, the expense is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In calculating the Group's obligations in respect of a plan,
actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions are fully recognised in other
comprehensive income in the year in which they occur.

Where the calculation of the Group’s net obligations results in
a negative amount, the asset recognised is limited to the net
total of any unrecognised actuarial losses and past service costs
and the present value of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Short-term employee benefits
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for unused annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
4.21 SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION
The Group operates equity-settled share-based compensation
plans for remuneration of its employees.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant of any
share-based compensation are measured at their fair values.
These are indirectly determined by reference to the share options
awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant date and excludes
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions.

All share-based compensation is recognised as an expense in
profit or loss over the vesting period if vesting conditions apply, or
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when the equity
instruments granted vest immediately unless the compensation
qualifies for recognition as asset, with a corresponding increase
in the share option reserve in equity. If vesting conditions apply,
the expense is recognised over the vesting period, based on the
best available estimate of the number of equity instruments that
are expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of equity instruments that are
expected to vest. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is
any indication that the number of equity instruments expected to
vest differs from previous estimates.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to share premium. After vesting date, when the vested share
options are later forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.

4.22 CAPITALISATION OF BORROWING COSTS
Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require a
substantial period of time to be ready for their intended use or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Income
earned on temporary investments of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on those assets is deducted from borrowing
costs capitalised. Other borrowing costs are expensed when
incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
423 FOREIGN CURRENCY

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated entities,
foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the reporting date,
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the reporting date retranslation of
monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined and are reported
as part of the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual financial
statements of foreign operations, originally presented in a
currency different from the Group's presentation currency,
have been converted into HKS. Assets and liabilities have been
translated into HKS at the closing rates at the reporting date.
Income and expenses have been converted into HK$ at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates or at the average
rates over the reporting period provided that the exchange rates
do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from this
procedure have been dealt with in the exchange fluctuation
reserve in equity. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 January 2005
have been treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated into HK$ at the closing rate.

Other exchange differences arising from the translation of the
net investment are taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences are reclassified from
equity to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
4.24 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group's business components and
for their review of the performance of those components. The
business components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined following the
Group's major product lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable segments: (a)
manufacture and distribution of watches and timepieces; (b)
property investments and (c) distribution of yachts.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each
of the product and service lines requires different resources as
well as marketing approaches. All inter-segment transfers are
carried out at arms' length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting segment

results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in its financial

statements prepared under HKFRSs, except that:

—  expenses related to share-based payments

—  share of profit or loss of associates accounted for using
equity method and gain or loss on disposal of associates

—  excess of fair value of the net identifiable assets over the
cost of acquisition of subsidiaries

—  finance costs

—  income tax

—  corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating

segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
424 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Segment assets include all assets but goodwill, interests in
associates, available-for-sale financial assets, deferred tax
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. In
addition, corporate assets which are not directly attributable to
the business activities of any operating segment are not allocated
to a segment, which primarily applies to the Group's headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment and are not allocated to a segment. These include
borrowings and amounts due to related companies.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to reportable
segments.

4.25SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have been
issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares
are deducted from share premium (net of any related income
tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
share capital, the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of taxes) is deducted from
equity attributable to owners of the Company until the shares
are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are
subsequently reissued any consideration received net of any
directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related
income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to owners of
the Company.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
426 NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND
DISPOSAL GROUPS
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale when:

—  they are available for immediate sale;
—  management is committed to a plan to sell;

— itiis unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be
made or that the plan will be withdrawn;

—  anactive programme to locate a buyer has been initiated;

—  the asset or disposal group is being marketed at a
reasonable price in relation to its fair value; and

— asaleis expected to complete within 12 months from the
date of classification.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their carrying amount immediately
prior to being classified as held for sale in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy and fair value less costs to sell.

Following their classification as held for sale, non-current assets
(including those in a disposal group) are not depreciated.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, rarely equal
the related actual results. The critical estimates and judgement that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

The Group tests on an annual basis whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
note 4.5. The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of judgement and estimates of the future cash flows expected to
arise from the CGUs, the timeframe for the cash flows forecast and
the suitable discount rates in order to calculate the present value.
Details in impairment assessment are set out in note 21 to the financial
statements.

PROVISION AGAINST SLOW-MOVING
INVENTORIES

Provision for slow-moving inventories is made based on the ageing and
estimated net realisable value of inventories. The assessment of the
provision involves management judgement and estimates. Where the
actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the carrying value of inventories
and provision charge/write-back in the period in which such estimate
has been changed.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

The Group depreciates and amortises its property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets with definite useful life using straight-line method
over their respective estimated useful lives, starting from the date on
which the assets are put into productive use. The estimated useful lives
reflect the directors’ estimate of the period that the Group intends to
derive future economic benefits from the use of these assets.

VALUATION OF SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED

The fair value of share options granted was calculated using Black-
Scholes valuation model based on the Group management’s significant
inputs into calculation including an estimated life of share options
granted to be five years, based on exercise restrictions and behavioural
consideration, the volatility of share price, weighted average share
prices and exercise price of the share options granted. Furthermore, the
calculation assumes no future dividends.

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Impairment loss on trade receivables of the Group is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. Allowances
for impairment are determined by management of the Group based
on the repayment history of its debtors and the current market
conditions. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the
trade receivable is impaired. Management reassesses the amount of
impairment allowances of receivables, if any, at each reporting date.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating
conditions specific to the Group that may lead to impairment of assets.
Where an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is determined at the higher of value-in-use and fair value less costs
to sell. Value-in-use calculations performed in assessing recoverable
amounts incorporate a number of key estimates and assumptions about
future events, which are subject to uncertainty and might materially
differ from the actual results. In making these key estimates and
judgements, the directors take into consideration assumptions that are
mainly based on market condition existing at the reporting dates and
appropriate market and discount rates. These estimates are regularly
compared to actual market data and actual transactions entered into by
the Group.
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The executive directors have identified the Group’s product and service
lines as operating segments as follows:

(a) manufacture and distribution of watches and timepieces;
(b)  property investments; and
(c)  distribution of yachts.

These operating segments are monitored and strategic decisions are
made on the basis of adjusted segment operating results.

As mentioned in note 1, since 2010, the Group has planned to dispose
of the Discontinued Enamelled Copper Wire Business. In accordance
with HKFRS 5, the Discontinued Enamelled Copper Wire Business
for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 were classified as
discontinued operations in the Group's financial statements. Further
details regarding the results of the Discontinued Enamelled Copper
Wire Business are set out in note 12.3.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ARETHERATITEEEEZEZ
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY FERR (R
(Continued)
INCOME TAXES FRi&%t
The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, the PRC and other REBEBHANESE  PELEMAEELE
tax jurisdiction in which the Group operates. Significant judgement is RIS REAER ZFTEH - NRER
required in determining the amount of the provision for income taxes FriStiE@E s B Rt A BH BN R K HE
and the timing of the payments of related taxes. The Group recognises B ZRELHEANHE - gt IBER
liabilities for anticipated tax based on estimates of whether additional BB - NEEIRE SREINEIBRN A B RS
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is mibst o Mt EFBE 2 HEFRIBLEREY NP
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences SRR ZEEESTERRZIERATE
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in HAfE 2 PSSR AR TR 4 o
which such determination is made.
FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES KREWMEZ AFE
The Group's investment properties are stated at fair value (note 19) REEZIREYERBM T4 9P ETER
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 4.9. The fair BAFAEMFI1927] - KEWEZ ATFE
values of these investment properties are determined by Chung, Chan mEBYEXRAAEMEETREETES
& Associates and Asset Appraisal Limited, independent professionally BARIETE - BAGEEESE TEREEL -
qualified valuers. Such valuations were based on certain assumptions, EABR PRI ETEZ  AtERERER
which are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from the RAHRE - RERHER BEAEEZEE
actual results. In making the judgement, reasonable consideration has SERBEBRETRIEL 2B o &M
been given to the underlying assumptions that are mainly based on SAFHEEEMBEMEMEZEBR ST
market conditions existing at the reporting date. These estimates are oo
regularly compared to actual market data and actual transactions in the
market.

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION DEEHR
The chief operating decision-maker is identified as executive directors. FEEBRREREAVTEE - YITES
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
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2011 _i ——F
Watches and
timepiece Property
ﬁﬁ& investment Yacht Total
B Em MERE ] et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET FTET FTET
Segment revenue and income: DM R e
Sales to external customers MINRRPHE 1,420,168 15,300 29,808 1,465,276
Other income and financial income HAa W A KB 10,135 8,075 1 18,211
Total “Bst 1,430,303 23,375 29,809 1,483,487
Segment results DREEE 336,182 10,182 (5,401) 340,963
Unallocated corporate income and RAOBRAEIRAR
expenses, net FHEE (43,605)
297,358
Share of profit of associates JE(GEE S A E)EF 1,991
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—FEE R R EE (4,952)
Excess of fair value of the net identifiable RJFAIFE & 2 A F1E
assets over the cost of acquisition of BB U BE BT B 2 R B AR
subsidiaries AR 46,904
Finance costs Bi5 & (4,331)
Equity-settled share-based compensation AP AAEHE 7 15 (& (2,976)
Profit before income tax B%Ffr SELADG T 333,994
Income tax expense Fis %Rﬁ'cﬂii (68,240)
Profit for the year from continuing PB IR A g S K
operations bl 265,754
Profit for the year from discontinued BRI HEEEK 7 REE
operations (note 12.3) i (FiEE12.3) 16,036
Profit for the year REE R A 281,790
Segmment assets HEEE 1,798,304 100,379 58781 1,957,464
Goodwill RS 621,382
Interests in associates FribB e N el R 164
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESRMEE 807,696
Financial assets at fair value BAFEGFARTNEER
through profit or loss EHEE 107,803
Unallocated corporate assets KOBRNBIEE 183,716
Total assets BEHLH 3,678,225
Segment liabilities NEEE 396,357 16,861 319 413,537
Borrowings BE 86,171
Due to related companies JEN B RERRIRR 157
Unallocated corporate liabilities P /NETR=L- 43,421
Total liabilities BEB% 543,286
Other segment information EtoEER
Interest income FEMA (363) - (1) (364)
Depreciation and amortisation of prepaid 372 & F& {1 + 3t 78 & 7018
land lease payments 5y 16,514 1,613 46 18,173
Net surplus on revaluation of investment R &M% &4 B4 HEE
properties - (5,675) - (5,675)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEHRE)
2010 —E-FF
Watches and
timepiece Property
BN investment Yacht Total
KT EE MERE iz o
HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FAT FHET
Segment revenue and income: DA K Wz
Sales to external customers MINAEPHE 776,216 10,016 14,372 800,604
Other income and financial income HAa W A KBS 3,148 1,814 920 5,882
Total s 779,364 830 15,292 806,486
Segment results DEES 213,161 13,545 169 226,875
Unallocated corporate income and RABREMA R
expenses, net S| (46,055)
180,820
Share of profit of associates FE{S B X R T 6,979
Gain on disposal of associate HERBE N TR 177, 711
Finance costs B ER (1,811)
Equity-settled share-based compensation AR ZN 45 & 7 B {n # (& (7.631)
Profit before income tax BT SR AR A 356,068
Income tax expense FTiS i = (82,349)
Profit for the year from continuing ?;IZEZ‘<‘M¥%Z$¢E
operations gl 273,719
Profit for the year from discontinued Emi£<(<%¥ﬁ2$$ﬁ/ﬁn
operations (note 12.3) FI(RIEE12.3) 7,063
Profit for the year RE i Fl 280,782
Segment assets DEEE 776,230 88,664 61,397 926,291
Goodwill S 621,382
Interests in associates PGB e R ElfER 158
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESRmEE 1,113,095
Financial assets at fair value BAFER AR
through profit or loss ElRZeMEE 91,764
Non-current assets held for sale EEHENIEREEE 43,729
Assets of a disposal group classified as D IEAZERE 2 HEAR
held for sale BE 257,344
Unallocated corporate assets AOENBIEE 833,323
Total assets BEESE 3,887,086
Segment liabilities ﬁj\ﬁ:@ & 233,741 15,398 887 250,026
Borrowings N 35,353
Due to related companies ERBEEARRR 26,230
Liabilities of a disposal group classified 3B AR{EHE 7 HEAR
as held for sale =N 164,704
Unallocated corporate liabilities AR AFIAE 96,886
Total liabilities BEEE 573,199
Other segment information HiHHER
Interest income 2 WA (294) - (3) (297)
Depreciation and amortisation of e RBEMN LA ERE
prepaid land lease payments B8 B 8,749 2,309 31 11,089
Net surplus on revaluation of REMEEHRBFE
investment properties - (13,004) - (13,004)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Management determines the Group is domiciled in Hong Kong, which
is the location of the Group's principal office. The Group’s revenues

TRER(E
EEERAR/AREZMESES - AR
B EBLRME - AKERBINATFZ

from external customers and its non-current assets (other than financial
instruments and deferred tax assets) are divided into the following
geographical areas:

WARGERBEE (FRE /T ARREERIA
BEAINRATHRED -

Revenue from external customers
(including continuing and
discontinued operations)

REIREFFBA
(BEBERER Non-current assets
EARIEREER) FREBEE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——-F ZZTZF =E——F5 ZZT-IZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET T
Hong Kong (domicile) EE(PTFEMD) 30,127 14,492 27,766 24,589
PRC =8 1,884,801 1,480,647 876,534 799,586
Europe B 55,391 1,584 129,041 13,628
1,970,319 1,496,723 1,033,341 837,803

The geographical location of customers is based on the location at
which the goods and services are delivered. The geographical location
of the non-current assets is based on the physical location of the asset.

In 2011, the revenue from the Group's largest customer included
in Discontinued Enamelled Copper Wire Business amounted to
HK$425,102,000 or 22% (2010: HK$581,476,000 or 39%) of
the Group's total revenue (including continuing and discontinued
operations).

BEPiEAEMRIRGE XM SE - IR
BEEMRIAEEBIRPIEIE R o

RZZE——F REEEZATFRAB
£425,102,0008 T E BB WA (BIEF
B NERIFEEER) 2% (ZE—F
T : 581,476,00078 75439% ) st AT KR IER B
IRAREETS o
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7. REVENUE 7. WA
Revenue on continuing operations, which is also the Group's turnover, FEREEB WA TR EREXE - T
represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for EHGREENREGITNIzELERERFE
returns and trade discounts, and rental income received and receivable. AR BE W R EWASIA » FAERZKIA
Revenue recognised during the year is as follows: mr
2011 2010
—E——F "ZT-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Continuing operations HEREER
Sales of goods EmiEE 1,449,976 790,588
Gross rental income A N L 15,300 10,016
1,465,276 800,604
8. OTHER INCOME AND FINANCIAL INCOME 8. HAtr AREFWA
2011 2010
—EB-—-F C—EZ-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Continuing operations BFEREER
Bank interest income HRITAEHWA 9,314 1,675
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value %X FAE 5T A% sk E518 2
through profit or loss TREEREMWA 716 657
Exchange gain b 5 U 2= 689 5,142
Sales of scrap materials and parts ER R EHIHE 2,835 1,457
Sub-lease income HIEMA 864 991
Sundry income FETE WA 6,609 570
21,027 10,492
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MBEH
2011 2010
=E-—-F —"ZT-IZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Continuing operations BEREEY

Interest charged on bank and other loans wholly — ZBER R FREBEE(E 2
repayable within five years RITREAME T E 4,331 1,811
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10. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
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10. BRAT S B ATE R

BRPTSBADE M E R, (FFA) T3 IA

2011 2010
=B —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Continuing operations HEREER

Cost of inventories recognised as expense WHRABRZ ZFEEKRA 637,042 307,030
Depreciation (note a) e (MisTa) 22,057 12,573
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TE A 4 FE & SR IE 8 721 588
Amortisation of intangible assets m A E#E 1,877 1,336

Minimum lease payments under operating leases 4 ith RIEF AL FALIE T
in respect of land and buildings SEMBERIE 18,625 18,511
Auditor's remuneration ZERN B & 1,670 1,580
Gross rental income AL PN L (15,300) (10,016)
Less: direct operating expenses B BEERAERY 2,250 1,920
Net rental income HE WA FHE (13,050) (8,096)
Exchange loss b H 518 2,742 1,848
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment H &Y% « BiE N2 2 518 - 13
Loss/(Gain) on disposals of associates (note b) HERE AR Z BB (W) (isEb) 4,952 (177,711)

Note:

(a)

Depreciation expense of HK$1,894,000 (2010: HK$3,918,000) has been
included in cost of sales, HK$3,290,000 (2010: HK$1,056,000) in selling
and distribution expenses and HK$16,873,000 (2010: HK$7,599,000) in
administrative expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group disposed of its
25.58% equity interests in an associate, Jiangsu Dartong and a loss on
disposal of HK$4,952,000 has been recognised accordingly. During the
year ended 31 December 2010, the Group disposed of its 30% equity
interests in an associate, Shenzhen Guanyang Real Estate Co., Limited
("Guanyang Real Estate”) and a gain on disposal of HK$177,711,000 was
recognised accordingly. Details of the disposals of Jiangsu Dartong and
Guanyang Real Estate are set out in notes 12.2 and 24(a) respectively.

GES

(a)

PrE&E 11,894,008 L (=T —F F ¢
3,918,000 7T ) B &1 A 855 A 753,290,000 78
TL(ZZ—ZT4F : 1,056,00078 70 ) 5 A S & &
D E I 16,873,0008 T ( —E—F4F ¢
7,599,000 7T ) 5T ATTIE A o

BE-_Z—F+_-_A=+—HBLEE "
REBLEER —REE QA IHEANBZ
2558% X ANKEZ  WEHBHERLEE
184,952,000 T - HE-_ZT—TF+A
=+—HIEFE  AEBREER —REE
RElFRYEFEHERRAG([EFEH
E)Z30%K AR WERILERHEW
177,711,000 7T » HE L&KM ETEFE
HEE 2 FFIB D BRI 5E12.25%.24(a) ©
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE . FrI8HMx
For both the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, Hong Kong REBEE-_ZE—ZTFER_ZT——F+_A
profits tax was provided at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated —+—HIMEFE  REBEEZMHE
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong. The subsidiaries established in JE AR T 0% FIR TR 2R 16.5% 1 & 78 F 15 i 78
the PRC are subject to income taxes at tax rates ranging between 15% B RPBEKL 2B AFAZEN T15%E
and 25% (2010: 13% and 25%). Overseas tax is calculated at the rates 5% (ZZE—FF  13%F25%) ZFTEH =
applicable in the respective jurisdictions. S o BINE BB R AR R E A Rt
2011 2010
—B——fF —E-TF
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
operations operations operations operations
& [=F-Jl= S4B BRI
R R BT TS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FERT FAT FHT
Current tax for the year FNEIHAT IR
Hong Kong &5 9,600 - 8,184 -
PRC 2] 58,504 879 88,057 730
Under/(Qver) provision in respect B FEBEETE,
of prior years (FBRERE)
PRC 2] 136 - (13,892) -

Total income tax expense FriSRiFa L 4858 68,240 879 82,349 730
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit at

M. FrSHEx (&)
FS T B B R P S B B A B
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applicable tax rates: BRAAE -
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
operations operations operations operations
BiE [=F 3= & 21k
mEER mEER KBTS T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FERT T FHIT
Profit before income tax % TS EiBDR 333,994 4,635 356,068 7,793
Tax calculated at the rates LHEBHIAREER
applicable to the tax ZIBAABERTE L
jurisdictions concerned 18 60,577 1,112 85,817 974
Tax effect of income not taxable ~ HHZERFIUIA 2
b (14,030) (269) (5,290) (342)
Tax effect of non-deductible TAIF A S 2
expenses M E 8,640 36 11,038 98
Under/(Qver)-provision in respect  BEFEETE,
of prior years (FBEE) Bt 136 - (13,892) -
Utilisation of tax losses B ARER
not recognised MIBEE (530) - - -
Tax effect of tax losses not RERRIBEEZ
recognised M E 13,447 - 4,676 -
Total income tax expense PRSI X 4258 68,240 879 82,349 730
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12. NON-CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE/ASSETS
OF A DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE/DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
12.1DISCONTINUED ENAMELLED COPPER WIRES

BUSINESS

As mentioned in note 1, since 2010, the Group had planned
to dispose of its 49% equity interest in its jointly controlled
entity, namely Fuzhou Dartong. In accordance with HKFRS 5, the
Group reclassified the assets and liabilities of Fuzhou Dartong
(the "Disposal Group”) as at 31 December 2010 as assets/
liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale in the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position. In addition,
the Discontinued Enamelled Copper Wire Business represented
separate major line of business, and the operations and cash
flows of which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the
Group.

In June 2011, the disposal of 49% equity interests in Fuzhou
Dartong was completed. Therefore, as at 31 December 2011, the
Group has no assets/liabilities of a disposal group classified as
held for sale in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Details of the Discontinued Enamelled Copper Wire Business
for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 are set out in
note 12.3, and details of the assets/liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2010 are set out in
note 12.5.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the interest
in Fuzhou Dartong as at 31 December 2010 has also been
reclassified as and included in non-current assets held for sale.
Details of the Company’s non-current assets held for sale as at 31
December 2010 are set out in note 12.6.

BFEHEZERBDEE SEARE
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12. NON-CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE/ASSETS 12. BEHECHRBEE S EAE
OF A DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR EHEZHEHNEE S&RLEER
SALE/DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) EEK(E)
12.2INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE RECLASSIFIED AS R2—KBERNRZEBENIER

NON-CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE FEHEFRRBERE
As mentioned in note 1, since 2010, the Group had planned to SRR B —EF AR
dispose of its 25.58% equity interests in an associate, namely AEEFGHHEER —KEGEE QN RLE
Jiangsu Dartong. In accordance with HKFRS 5, as at 31 December K3 2 25. SS%HEKT}}EL RIEE B
2010, the interests in Jiangsu Dartong had been included in non- EEAEST N2 —FF+ A
current assets held for sale in the statement of financial position =t+—8  WIBABZEZEINAR
of the Group. SEUBRAKR ZFELE 2R E
ERA o
In July 2011, the disposal of its 25.58% equity interests in Jiangsu RZZE——F+ A AEBETKEE
Dartong was completed. Therefore, the Group has no non-current EH T #R KB 2 25.58% % A # # o
assets held for sale in their statement of financial position as at I R—E——F+=-_A=+—H" K
31 December 2011. SEFBARRKAEFELEZIERD
An analysis of the Group’s loss on disposal of an associate, HE_Z—F+-H=+—HL*F
Jiangsu Dartong for the year ended 31 December 2011 is as B AEBLE-—FRKBEARIIHANE
follows: ZEBT
HK$'000
FHT
Cash consideration from disposal of Jiangsu Dartong &/ TI# KBRS B 40,768
Less: Carrying amount of interests in Jiangsu Dartong  J&t : PN SR T &R KEEZE 2 BRAE
upon disposal (45,720)
Loss on disposal of Jiangsu Dartong HETEHABEE (4,952)

The cash consideration of HK$40,768,000 collected from the
disposal of Jiangsu Dartong has been fully received by the Group
during the year.

Details of the Group's and the Company’s non-current assets held
for sale as at 31 December 2010 are set out in note 12.6.

FR - AEBECREUNBREETHR
234 R {B40,768,0007 7T °

R-ZZE—ZTFE+-A=+—H8 K&EE
RARNRFHENSERDEE ZFBEH
ABIEE12.6
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12. NON-CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE/ASSETS
OF A DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE/DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)
12.3 An analysis of the Group's results of the Discontinued Enamelled

Copper Wire Business for the years ended 31 December 2011 and
2010 is as follows:

HEZERBEE DERR
FEHE HERREE DRIEE
& 215 ()

38z —FR=_FT—ZTF+=A
=ET—BIEFE - AEEERIERBIR
BMEBZZBELTEHEIIWT -

2011 2010
—E-—-F E-EfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Revenue g A 505,043 696,119
Cost of sales HEMRAR (489,238) (694,429)
Gross profit EF 15,805 1,690
Other income and financial income HAb A R EF SR A 568 25,221
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER (1,905) (3,628)
Administrative expenses THER (4,394) (7,597)
Finance costs — interest on bank loans wholly HBER - ARAFTEANBEEER
repayable within five years ZERITEFRAE (5,439) (7,893)
Profit before income tax B PS50 A& 71 4,635 7,793
Gain on disposal of Fuzhou Dartong (note 12.4) &M ABUEE (F13E12.4) 12,280 -
Income tax expense FrSHimAx (879) (730)
Profit for the year REZGEH 16,036 7,063
Operating cash outflows LR (28,375) (3,284)
Investing cash outflows KERE M - (3,091)
Financing cash inflows BMEBERESHMA 33,243 11,764
Net cash inflows WMEMAFEE 4,868 5,389

Employee benefit expense of the discontinued operations for the
year of HK$3,472,000 (2010: HK$7,611,000) included wages and
salaries of HK$3,018,000 (2010: HK$6,383,000) and pension

cost of HK$454,000 (2010: HK$1,228,000).

REEERIEEEEB 2 RERERBNAS
53,472,000 L ( ZF—Z4 :7,611,000
BIT)BIETE N #E 3,018,000 (=
T —TF :6,383,000/8 70 ) MIBKRE K
454,000 T (= F—F4F : 1,228,000
BIT) °
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12. NON-CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE/ASSETS 12. BEHEZ Xk RBEE, S EAE
OF A DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR EHEZHERBNEE BRLER
SALE/DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) EEK(E)
12.4 Gain on disposal of the discontinued operation, i.e. the jointly NAigz—_ZT——F+-_A=+—AHL*HF
controlled entity, namely Fuzhou Dartong, for the year ended 31 [E @ HEBKRIELEZER (R LR ES
December 2011 was analysed as follows: FREMNAR) 2BEmITIAT
HK$'000
FAT
Net assets disposed of: &z EERE :
Property, plant and equipment M - HERRE 115,825
Prepaid land lease payments TET T AR S RRIE 10,945
Inventories FE 36,710
Trade and bill receivables FEWBAR R R F B 116,648
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFRIE © B E RE MR 3,144
Derivative financial instruments TTHEERTA 81
Cash and cash equivalents RELBREEFEED 39,638
Trade and bill payables ERERREE (76,187)
Other payables and accruals Hi ek R EET &R (3,081)
Tax payables FEITRIE (1,974)
Borrowings BE (143,191)
98,558
Release of exchange fluctuation reserve upon disposal 7 Hi & B & [2] 5N i ) 5 15 (17,496)
81,062
Less: Proceeds from disposal of Fuzhou Dartong B BB RN SRR (93,342)
Gain on disposal of Fuzhou Dartong HERM KBz 12,280
HK$'000
FAETT
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of HERNKBEE RS RAFE
Fuzhou Dartong:
Cash consideration received EWRE 2B NRE 93,342
Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposal of B HEZRE MR EEY (39,638)
Net cash inflow WEMAEEE 53,704

The cash consideration of HK$93,342,000 from disposal of
Fuzhou Dartong has been fully received by the Group during the
year.

FR - AEED BB E SR AR
IR &R (B93,342,0008 7T °
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12. NON-CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE/ASSETS 12. BEHEC I ABHEE 2ELHE
OF A DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR ELE 2 SHREE BRLK
SALE/DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) = 575 (1) o .
12.5 An analysis of the assets and liabilities of the Discontinued 12.5@4§—§¢+4\H;-§r— ﬂ?ﬁ\ﬁ

Enamelled Copper Wires Business classified as held for sale as at ?@Tﬁéj’%ZE%i@@ﬂﬂﬁ BZAE
31 December 2010 was as follows: EREAHMT :
HK$'000
FABT
Assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale: S ¥EARERE 2 BEARIEE
Property, plant and equipment (note 18) M - BEREREMT8) 115,497
Prepaid land lease payments (note 20) YA+ F & 3 0E (M 5E20) 10,809
Inventories 78 31,871
Trade and bill receivables FEU R R R 4% 61,042
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFRIE © BE KA MR 3,355
Cash and cash equivalents RELBEEFEED 34,710
257,344
Liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale: D ¥E A {EHE 2 HEHRIBE ¢
Trade and bill payables ERERREE 51,078
Other payables and accruals Hi e R EET &R 2,574
Tax payables FERITRIE 560
Derivative financial instruments MHESRTIA 544
Borrowings E= 109,948
164,704
12.6 An analysis of non-current assets held for sale as at 31 December NOR—ZE—ZTEF+=—_A=+—H ' HEH
2010 was as follows: BZEMBEESNWOT -
Group Company
rEE NN
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT TR
Interest in Fuzhou Dartong, R—RERIEHE SN KiE 2
a jointly controlled entity (note 12.1) R (MEE12.1) - 64,215
Interest in Jiangsu Dartong, NN kNI PN
an associate (note 12.2) ez (M5E12.2) 43,729 29,336
43,729 93,551
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13. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY
Of the consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$255,874,000 (2010: HK$271,566,000), a loss of HK$12,784,000
(2010: HK$62,685,000) has been dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company.

FESBEEERAR | —T——F48 115

13. XRBEEABMEEF

KRN REA AEILERE 4 F)255,874,00078 7T

—EZ—F4F 1 271,566,000 C)F - BIED
RN B B 7 R 3R IR 32 2 E51812,784,00078
T(ZZE—F4F : 62,685000587T) °

14. DIVIDENDS 14. i
14.1DIVIDEND ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE YEAR 141 ﬁEWE{EHxM
2011 2010
—E-—-F E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Interim dividend of HK1 cent per share HEARR BB
(2010: HK1.5 cents) (ZZ—ZF  1.5%) 41,404 56,161
Proposed final dividend of HK4.5 cents per share Ts?i/}fﬂiﬂ;ﬁﬂi R4 578
(2010: HK3.5 cents) —ZF : 3.581l) 186,289 143,153
227,693 199,314
The final dividend declared after the reporting date has not been RiREH ?éﬁ?)ﬁZXﬁHHﬁ%ilﬁﬁ%iﬁ%
recognised as a liability at the reporting date, but reflected as an HERLBE HERMAHE—ZT
appropriation of retained profits and share premium for the year —F+=-A=+—H JJ:EFZ{%EEI/EL
ended 31 December 2011. PRI 0 (B BRI o
14.2DIVIDEND ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE PREVIOUS 142@@&/&&»&11 TMBREER
FINANCIAL YEAR, APPROVED AND PAID iR B
DURING THE YEAR
2011 2010
—E——-F5 ZZ-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Final dividend in respect of the previous BT B R E REAR B
financial year, of HK3.5 cents per share FR%3.5581
(2010: HK4.1 cents) ZE-TF : 4178400) 145,044* 151,509
*  The amount of actual final 2010 dividend paid was O HBAREEREN BENZZE-ZFE

HK$145,044,000 as a result of the increase in ordinary shares.
During the year, 54,055,000 (2010: 45,855,000) new ordinary
shares were issued as a consequence of exercise of share options
(2010: 106,815,620 new ordinary shares were issued from a share
placement) before the closure of members’ register on 23 May
2011. All these ordinary shares issued are entitled to the final 2010
dividend.

ﬁ’??ﬁﬁ;ﬁﬁiééﬁﬁmsouooo%m F
A E(‘fgffiﬂﬂ +=BEE
PRk B 50 AT + 54,055,000% (=
T — T4 : 45,855,0000% ) F @ M A
TERERNEMBET(ZE—FF
106,815,620% ¥7 & 1@ R A AR & AR (7 i 2%
1) MABZEERITERROEE
W = —TFRIPRE ©
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15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company are based on the following data:

15. EREF
AAREAR AL GREARESERF TR
BT gUEH

2011 2010
—E——F —Z-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Earnings B
Profit attributable to owners of the Company STESREARREERT
for the purpose of calculating basic and Frikig < R R BHA A
diluted earnings per share: JEAE & A -
Continuing operations B RS TS 239,838 264,503
Discontinued operations BRI E TS 16,036 7,063
Total profit from continuing and discontinued FHELE RPN I EER
operations i M) AR 255,874 271,566
2011 2010
—EB-—-F C"E=-EZF
Number of Number of
shares shares
RHEE MAn 8 B
'000 ‘000
TR F 1%
Number of shares RHEHE
Weighted average number of shares for the FTESRERBFFTKEZ
purpose of calculating basic earnings per share hnE AR 8K 4,132,582 3,658,250
Effect of dilutive potential shares: BERMD2EELE
— share options issued by the Company — RN EEIT 2 RIER D T 55,232 107,233
Weighted average number of shares for the FTEEREERNTKIE
purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share N4 5 f% 25 4,187,814 3,765,483
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16. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 16. EEEFBXZ(EBHFEEME)

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)

Defined benefit retirement plans as at 31 December 2011
primarily resulted from the acquisition of Eterna AG Uhrenfabrik
and its subsidiaries (together “Eterna Group”) in June 2011.

The Group makes contributions to the defined benefit plan that
provide post — retirement benefits for employees upon retirement.
Under the schemes, the employees in Switzerland are entitled
to retirement benefits based on the plan assets accumulated
on attainment of the retirement age and a fixed annual rate.
Since there is potential down-side risk for the employer to pay
additional contributions in case the plan has a deficit, Swiss plans
are classified as defined benefit plans.

The latest independent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the
present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at
31 December 2011 by Martin Schnider, a member of the Institute
of Actuaries in Switerland, using the projected unit credit method.

16.1 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 6.1 EEBFHX
2011 2010
=B——-F —T-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Continuing operations HEREEK
Wages and salaries ITENFHS 239,513 109,808
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIRE A — TREBAREE 9,955 10,408
Equity-settled share-based compensation AR EEE 2 RN FE 2,316 4,174
251,784 124,390
16.2 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS 16.2 EEERNBE A TS
2011 2010
—E——-F5 ZZT-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Accounts payable under defined benefit TFEREREFETEI T R
retirement plans 9,411 -

R-E——F+_F=1+—HZFHEE
REFFTEEFEZRANR_ZE——F XA
U B Eterna AG Uhrenfabrik X £ Fff & 2 7]
([ #ar=sm]) -

AEE R ERRBANGEELHRR - HiR
BN RREFREEERNEEF - RIFE
g NmIwEEANZARKER
THiR B B R R R Je B TE F X P Rt
S EEETE - — B EHBRART
BEANRBEIME - BEUEERKR
% Aitin T80 BB EERHMG
g -

EEENSRTBYREARERTE
& M & E 3] E J) B I I 2 Institute of
Actuaries—{iZ & & Martin Schniderid? ==
——F+ A=+ —RAEFERETEAE
L ABRFEHETT ©
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16. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
16.2 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
(a) The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position are as follows:

16. BEERANMAX(BREESH=) (A)

16.2 EFRMB A2 ()
(a) HFEMBRARERZESHEMNT

2011

—B——F

HK$'000

FHET

Present value of funded obligations AEERARME 118,765
Fair value of planned assets FEIEERNTE (109,354)
Present value of unfunded obligations RIFEEERE 9,411

(b) Movement in the present value of funded obligations for the (b) FRETEFMTREZEESHOT -
year:

2011

—2——F

HK$'000

FTHET

At 1 January Rn—H—H 122,189
Current service costs 3 B AR 745 B AR 4,003
Interest cost F B AR 3,010
Contributions by plan participants FHEI2EE MR 2,109
Actuarial losses BEERE (1,861)
Benefits paid 2R F (10,685)

At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 118,765
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16. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

16.2 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
(0)

HE_Z—F+-_A=1+—HILFE
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16. EERABX(BRESH) (B)

16.2 ERRMBAIHEI (&)

Movement in the fair value of plan assets for the year: (o) FAFBEEEAFEEHNOT :
2011
—B——F
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January w—H—H 116,797
Expected return on plan assets STEIEE 2 FEEAEI 4,590
Actuarial losses BEER (6,492)
Contributions by the employer B EHRX 2,109
Contributions by plan participants sTEI2EE MR 2,109
Contribution by third parties BE=FHN 926
Benefit paid BEF (10,685)
At 31 December At+=-A=+—H 109,354
The amounts recognised in profit or loss are as follows: (d) RNERERZ BN
2011
—B——F
HK$'000
FHET
Current service cost TR B AR 75 B AR 4,003
Contribution by third parties E=EH-N (926)
Interest cost F B A 3,010
Expected return on plan assets FrEIEE TR @ (4,590)
1,497
Actual return on plan assets HEBREZERERR

1,902
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16. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 16. EEEFBX(BEEEME) (&)

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

16.2 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued) 16.2 EFRMBAIGHEI ()
(e) Current period information (e) BRIER
2011
—B——F
HK$'000
FHET
Present value of defined benefit obligation EHEMNETRE 118,765
Fair value of plan assets FEIEERNTE (109,354)
Deficit in the plan FTEIRF 9,411
Experience adjustments arising on plan liabilities FrEIBEREE 2 KHRTHE 1,861
Experience adjustments arising on plan assets AIBIBEEMEEZEHARE (6,492)
(f)  The principal actuarial assumptions used for accounting (f) R+ZA=+—HREENAR
purposes at 31 December are as follows: FEBERZRAOT :
2011
—B——F
%
Discount rate applied to pension obligations FEFREIR S LAY BLIR R 2.5
Expected rate of return on plan assets sTE2IEEMTEEAO R =R 4
Future salary increases RREF 1B 1.5
The expected rate of return is a weighted average of the TEEAE S E TR B EEME 2 &
expected returns of the various categories of plan assets 878 B 2 i 8 e R E R
held. The directors’ assessment of the expected returns Ko BEGZEHEF 2 RRA
is based on the historical return trends and analysed FrzERBERSTER TEFE

predictions of the market for the asset in the next year. HmimEE T8 -
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17. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 17. EEMERSEEEAEMHE
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS
17.1 DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS 171 EEM <
2011 —EB——fF
Salaries,
allowances  Contributions  Equity-settled
and benefits to pension share-based
Directors’ in kind scheme  compensation
fees e EE BikcHE  UREAEERE Total
BEswe REVEFA "y ZROFE ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THERT TER TET FHERT
Executive directors HBiTES
Mr. Hon Kwok Lung HREIRES & - 1,690 12 58 1,760
Mr. Shang Jianguang AENEE - 5,179 72 133 5,384
Mr. Shi Tao BELE - 1,690 6 83 1,779
Mr. Lam Toi Man MRXEE - 1,430 12 58 1,500
Mr. Bi Bo FRFKAE - 1,421 6 - 1,427
Non-executive director FHTES
Ms. Sit Lai Hei (Note) ERE (M) 200 - - - 200
Independent non-executive BUEHTES
directors
Mr. Fung Tze Wa BFERE 200 - - 58 258
Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, BEEEL
Michael 150 - - 58 208
Mr. Li Qiang FREE 150 - - 58 208
700 11,410 108 506 12,724
Note: Ms. Sit Lai Hei, previously a non-executive director of the Company, Mzt : RNARRIFERITESHRBLLE
has been re-designated as an executive director of the Company RZB—ZF=AZ+"HHEFH

with effect from 26 March 2012. TEESEBBAZRANITES -
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17. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
17.1 DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

17. EEMERSEERASM S (F)

171 ESEE (E)

2010 —E-EF
Salaries,
allowances  Contributions  Equity-settled
and benefits to pension share-based
Directors' in kind scheme  compensation
fees  #d - 2B RRETE URALEE Total
28 REDEN R ZBRIOHEE FCEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEx TET TET TAET
Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Hon Kwok Lung EEELE - 1,690 12 149 1,851
Mr. Shang Jianguang EEXLE - 4,085 68 341 4,494
Mr. Shi Tao V)Yt - 1,690 - 214 1,904
Mr. Lam Toi Man MR L - 1,430 12 149 1,591
Mr. Bi Bo (Appointed on Ly St
24 August 2010) (R=ZE—ZF
NAZ+HA
BZE) - 504 - - 504
Non-executive director FHTES
Ms. Sit Lai Hei BT+ 200 - - - 200
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Fung Tze Wa BFELRE 200 - - 149 349
Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, BEEEL
Michael 150 - - 149 299
Mr. Li Qiang FREE 150 - - 149 299
700 9,399 92 1,300 11,491

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2010: Nil).

No emolument was paid by the Group to the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation
for loss of office (2010: Nil).

FRALESEHREXFAERREMAHE

(=T —FF |) -

AEEUBABEENME - (FREMN
AREE SR INARKE IR 2 52 S RER

ME(CE—FF  E)-
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17. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
17.2 FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
During the year, the five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group included five (2010: four) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in note 17.1.
Emoluments payable to the remaining one individual during the
year ended 31 December 2010 were as follows.

FESREESRAT | T 458 123

17. EEMERSEERASM < (F)

17 AE&REMEAL
FAREB 2 AEmSMEATFRSA
—E-TF - MOFZ)BES  BEZM
SERBP EXHEE17.10%T - FEAE
E-E-TF+_/[=1+—HItFEH
T—RATZBE0T

2010

—T-EF

HK$'000

FHET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REDER 1,240
Contributions to pension scheme RUNETEIfER 12
Equity-settled share-based compensation AR ARG E 2 B e 192

1,444
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥ - MERZE

GROUP REE
Furniture,
fixtures and
office
Leasehold equipment
Landand  improvements Plant and BE - Motor
buildings ~ BEYE  machinery RER vehicles aPp Total
THRET %5 BEREE BLERE RE  REIR @zt
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
AL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
At 1 January 2010 R=B-ZF-f-A
Cost R 89,715 6,721 100,091 24,087 17,656 - 238,210
Accumulated depreciation ZitihE (11,989) (4,740) (21,207) (14,144) (6,387) - (58,467)
Net carrying amount BEEE 11,126 1,981 78,884 9,943 11,269 - 179,803
Year ended 31 December 2010 H2-E-3F
tZR=t-ALFE
Opening net carrying amount FNERTE 71,126 1,981 78,884 9,943 11,269 - 179,803
Additions NE 17 7,048 6,290 13,918 4,071 4520 35,804
Redlassification to assets of adisposal DB AEEHE 7 HEARIEE

qroup classified as held for sale ZENHR(EE125)

(note 12.5) (49,855) - (62,086) (1,349 (1m) (1,430) (115,497)
Disposals He& - - (49) (66) (137) - (252)
Depreciation e (3.822) (1,197) (7.079) (4,008) (3,569) - 19,667)
Exchange realignment EiEE 2,640 689 2,764 979 348 106 7,526
Closing net carrying amount EREARE 26,706 8,521 18,728 19.417 11,209 3,19 81771
At31 December 2010 R-F-BE+ZA=1-R
Cost R 39,101 14,690 26,521 35,810 21,091 3,196 140,409
Accumulated depreciation ZitihE (12,395) (6,169) (7,793) (16,393) (9,882) - (52,632)
Net carrying amount REFE 26,706 8,521 18,728 19,417 11,209 3,1% 81,177
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE-E--&

tZR=t-ALFE

Opening net carrying amount ENERTE 26,706 8521 18,728 19,417 11,209 3,19 87,777
Additions NE 14 3 9,091 12,517 14,965 39,141 76,451
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 44) WM B A (M) 53,038 - 20,897 6,838 219 13,376 94,418
Depreciation e (3,128) (1,570) (5,157) (6,639) (5,563) - (22,057)
Exchange realignment A% (5,104) 66 (1,629) (156) 204 (1,039 (7,650)
Closing net carrying amount EREARE 71,526 7,740 41,934 32,007 21,034 54,678 228,939
At 31 December 2011 R-B--£+-B=t+-R

Cost KA 88,321 15,608 55,044 54,037 39,747 54,678 307,435
Accumulated depreciation ZitihE (16,795) (7,868) (13,110) (22,010) (18,713) - (78,496)
Net carrying amount REFE 71,526 1,740 41,934 32,027 21,034 54,678 228,939




Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS IR R P 5

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE-ZT——F+-A=+—HILFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

TEFREEER A

18. 1% - RERRE (&)

T —FFR

(Continued)

125

COMPANY b/ /NI
Furniture,
fixtures
and office
Leasehold equipment Motor
improvements A - £#ER vehicles Total
HEMELE MOERE RE @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2010 R-ZE-ZF—F—H
Cost (5% 3,193 1,530 8,490 13,213
Accumulated depreciation ZinE (2,033) (1,090) (4,770) (7,893)
Net carrying amount BREEE 1,160 440 3,720 5,320
Year ended 31 December 2010 BE-ZZE-—ZF
TZA=+—HLEFE
Opening net carrying amount FHEmFE 1,160 440 3,720 5,320
Additions NE 81 228 - 309
Depreciation e (360) (156) (1,554) (2,070)
Closing net carrying amount FREEEE 881 512 2,166 3,559
At 31 December 2010 R-E-BF
+=A=+-H
Cost 5% 1,700 1,654 8,075 11,429
Accumulated depreciation ZxtirE (819) (1,142) (5,909) (7,870)
Net carrying amount BRERE 881 512 2,166 3,559
Year ended 31 December 2011 BE-ZT——&
+-ZRB=+—-HLLEFE
Opening net carrying amount FOEEFE 881 512 2,166 3,559
Additions INE - 58 - 58
Depreciation nE (375) (168) (1,325) (1,868)
Closing net carrying amount FRE@EEE 506 402 841 1,749
At 31 December 2011 R-EB——F
+=A=+—8H
Cost (BN 1,615 1,776 8,438 11,829
Accumulated depreciation ZxtirE (1,109) (1,374) (7,597) (10,080)
Net carrying amount REFE 506 402 841 1,749
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Notes:

(@)  The costs of the Group’s land and buildings are held under the following

18. 1% - RERRE (&)
p

R

() AKELHRBFORATIIZTIIHEBE

lease terms: g :
2011 2010
—E2——F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT ABIT
Short-term leases EHEIFR L 2,895 2,791
Medium-term leases R HAFR 49 83,415 35,009
Long-term leases REATEAY 2,011 1,301
88,321 39,101

As at 31 December 2011, none of the Group's buildings has been
pledged. As at 31 December 2010, certain of the Group's buildings with
a carrying amount of HK$833,000 have been pledged to secure certain

bank facilities granted to the Group (note 35).

(b) At 31 December 2011, the Group has not yet obtained the title
certificates for certain leasehold buildings in the PRC with an aggregate
carrying value of approximately HK$1,090,000 (2010: HK$2,067,000).
The Group's legal advisors have confirmed that the Group has legally
obtained the rights to use the buildings. The directors are now in process
of obtaining the title certificates from the relevant government authorities.

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - GROUP

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment

properties.

Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the statement of

financial position can be summarised as follows:

R-E——%+-_A=+—0 AE£EL
REBFOEERE R-_E—ZTF+_-H
=+—H  AEBREEEAS33 008 T2HE
FIFEIEF - UANEBESEE TRITR
& (FisE3s) o

) R-T——F+_-_A=+—8 KE@HX
LHE A R B BR 4B (B 49 1,090,00008 T (=&
—Z4F ¢ 2,067,000870) 2B THEZEFE
S MEEER - REBARBMER K
SECMSEBREFCAEERE  EFE
TERA BT R R s S5 R o

19. REME-AKH
PrAAEE L REE & HE ARG EM AL ZE
HOKAZYERER - DIEATFERAG
B UNBRARBREDE -

REBHRRER 25 2 RHEZ BRI T

2011 2010

—B——-F —"T-ZF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 87,712 74,708
Net surplus on revaluation of investment WEMEEL 2 B

properties 5,675 13,004

Carrying amount at 31 December RTZA=+—HZKmEE 93,387 87,712
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — GROUP 19. REY¥E—XEE(E)

(Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group's investment properties situated in

AEBURBERTEATHEERB 2K

Hong Kong and the PRC held under medium-term leases are analysed as BEMEREESITNOT
follows:

2011 2010
—E——F —Z-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
Hong Kong =55 19,000 18,800
PRC F 74,387 68,912
93,387 87,712

Investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2011 by Asset
Appraisal Limited and Chung, Chan & Associate, independent,
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$93,387,000 (2010:
HK$87,172,000) in aggregate on market approach by reference to
market prices for similar properties. Asset Appraisal Limited is a
member of Hong Kong Institutes of Surveyors, and Chung, Chan &
Associates is a member of Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
Both have appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar properties.

At 31 December 2011, the Group has not obtained the relevant title
certificates for investment properties with an aggregate carrying value
of HK$38,800,000 (2010: HK$38,500,000). The Group's legal advisors
have confirmed that the Group is the rightful and equitable owner
of these investment properties. The directors are now in process of
obtaining the title certificates from the relevant government authorities.

At 31 December 2011, investment properties in Hong Kong with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$19,000,000 (2010: HK$18,800,000)
have been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group
(note 35).

HEMER_ZT—F+_A=+—HH
BYEERAGEMEETEBEMERA
ANEENTLEREYENTEERERATS
KB AA 193,387,000 T (ZE—FF ¢
87,172,000/ 7T)  BEENERHEAER AR A
EBHNEMBEKE  BETRARHEER
HHAESMEEgNE - MEHYRRAEYERS
BEFAAERE BT HLER -

RZE——F+-_A=+—H AEEBEL
K 7t BR T 42.{5.38,800,000/8 T (—E — T4 :
38,500,000/ 7T ) 2 & B W EBUS HHEE FT A #
B NEBXREEMER  AEBAZEER
BYEZERNAEET - EEHTAMAHEK
FFH B ER IS T B HERE ©

R-ZE——F+-A=+—H FEHLE
19,000,000/ 70 (= ZF —Z 4 : 18,800,000/
TIZHBETHEREMEDER - UAREER
BIRITRE (FIFE35) ©
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20. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS — GROUP

These represent interests in leasehold land and land use rights in the =

PRC held under medium-term leases. Changes to the carrying amounts

are summarised as follows:

20. B L HEERIE-XEEH
TERER R BERE P SAEE 2 M
SRt AR - 25 REE
SERMNT

2011 2010

—E-—-F CE-EfF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZREE 28,647 26,386

Additions NE - 12,689
Reclassification to assets of a disposal group SEAFERE 2L EEREE

classified as held for sale (note 12.5) =R EME12.5) - (10,809)

Amortisation during the year F N (721) (829)

Exchange realignment B 5, 5 2 1,039 1,210

Carrying amount at 31 December W+ZA=+—HZEHE 28,965 28,647

Less: Current portion o BIEAEL (730) (667)

Non-current portion JEENEAER 28,235 27,980
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21. GOODWILL - GROUP 2. B —AEE

Goodwill of HK$621,382,000, arose in 2008, related to the acquisition
of Jia Cheng Investment Limited (“Jia Cheng”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Jia Cheng Group”). Jia Cheng is an
investment holding company with an indirect 91% equity interest,
held through its wholly owned subsidiary Actor Investments Limited,
in the issued share capital of Zhuhai Rossini Watch Industry Limited
("Rossini”). Rossini is principally engaged in manufacturing and
distribution of watches and timepieces. Goodwill of HK$621,382,000
was allocated to the CGUs for manufacturing and distribution of watches
and timepieces. Net carrying amount of goodwill is summarised as
follows:

—EENFELEZEE621,382,00078 7T B2 UK
BERKEERAR([ER]) RENB AR
(A EWER])AB - WA —HE
BERAR BREZENBRARTERE
ERARMEEE®REEREKEAR AT
(TR ) BEBITIRAN%IE - BAEE
BEBRBFHEENR D o 72621,382,000
BTEIRERERDHEEEMFT RS
EEBM - mERMFES TGN T -

2011 2010
—E——F —Z-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT

At 1 January and 31 December RN—A—BEk+-_A=+—H
Gross carrying amount RERE 621,382 621,382
Accumulated impairment ZEPRE - -
Net carrying amount REFE 621,382 621,382

A valuation was carried out by Asset Appraisal Limited to assess
the recoverable amount of the goodwill arising from the acquisition
of the Jia Cheng Group. The recoverable amounts of the CGU have
been determined from value-in-use calculations based on cash flow
projections from formally approved budgets covering a detailed five-
year budget plan, followed by an extrapolation of expected cash flow
at the growth rates which do not exceed the long-term growth rate for
the business in which the CGU operates.

The key assumptions applied in the value-in-use calculations are as
follows:

BEMEERARARETHREEXEAR
B AFBRBEREEREECEHEZ
AT YT EIGREE o bl 3R & A A BT 2 ] I [E R
BREREENAEET  RE-AFELF
BHEE  BRTAERERHEBERRSR
B UEBHRSELBUMREZEBZ
REERE -

AEEABECIZRRET

2011 2010

—g-—-% -T-TF

Growth rates within five-year budget plan TFEEFEAZIERE 0% 15.27%
28.06% 28.41%

Discount rate BhIR R 16.38% 13.14%
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21.

22.

HE_Z—F+-_A=1+—HBILFE

GOODWILL — GROUP (Continued)

The Group’s management's key assumptions for the Group include
stable profit margins, which have been determined based on the past
performance and its expectations for the market share after taking into
consideration of published market forecasts included in industry reports.
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to
the relevant segment. On the other hand, the Group's management
is not aware of any other probable changes that would necessitate
changes in its key estimates.

21.

BE-AKE(E)
AEBEEERAEB T EBRRRREET
BERA - TEERRERNREFT DM S
TEAlE  mBERBRREMSEEXRENE
E e FTAMBRERRBAEHES A ERRE
BREIRILLE - S—FH@E - $$IE1§J’fﬁﬁ—r
jfT%ﬂ*ﬁEEﬂﬁ@ﬂ REHEEHATE
hEHEL #

Goodwill arising from business combinations prior to 2001 had been RZEE—FREBAHELEZBED
eliminated against the consolidated reserves. As at 31 December 2011, RERE *LT Heo R ZE——F+ A
the carrying amount of goodwill in the consolidated reserves was =+ —HB REeREACHEREER
HK$15,300,000 (2010: HK$15,300,000). 15,300,000/ 7t ( —Z & —Z 4 : 15,300,000
JT) e

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 22. FRrtM B A Rz — A A A
2011 2010
—E-—-F CE-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Unlisted investments, at cost FELETRE  KAE 793,184 793,174
Due from subsidiaries JE W /B8 2 B 816,640 431,936
1,609,824 1,225,110
Less: Provision for impairment o R E R (303,703) (303,703)
1,306,121 921,407

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and are not
expected to be repaid within the next twelve months. These balances
are classified as non-current assets accordingly.

FEUS P B AR R T BB - 2B RFEME
TBRARRT —EAEE -

BEEHEI R
FRBEE °
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22. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 22.
(Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2011 are as

Pt B~ AR — A F (#)

R-B——F+_A=1t—HBXEMNBARA

follows: HIBWT
Particulars of
Place/country of issued ordinary/  Percentage of issued ordinary/
incorporation paid-up capital paid-up capital held Principal activities and
Name M BRITEE/ FECRTEE/ place of operation
£ W/ ER HMARKFEE BABRKE AL ITEERREERY
Directly Indirectly
B B
Qingapen Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Property investment in the PRC
BREEBRAA A% BT 100 - RREREME
China Haidian Commercial Network Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Property investment in the PRC
Services Limited
FELEREENERBERLA A% BT 100 - RPEREME
Haidian-Creation International Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding in Hong Kong
Haidian-Creation Intenational Limited ~ EBRLEE (S 100 - REBRERR
Sure Best Management Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100 - Property investment in Hong Kong
BaEEERAA Bk BT 100 - REERBEMZE
EBOHR Luxuries International PRC HK$36,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and distribution of
Co., Limited watches and timepieces
in the PRC
KEBmORI)BRAF F 36,000,0007 7 R EISGE R D IEER R
Rt Em
Seti Timber Industry (Shenzhen) PRC US$45,525,800 - 100 Investment holding in PRC
Co., Ltd.
REARERINBRAF FE 45,525,800 70 R EEEER
Shenzhen Seti Trading Development PRC RMB500,000 - 100 Investment holding in the PRC
Company Limited
AITMRFESEREBAA FE AR #500,0007C R B EER
Jia Cheng Investment Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding in Hong Kong
ERREBRAT RERAHE (E 100 - REBRAER
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22. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY
(Continued)

Particulars of

22. FriGF 8D AR — A QR (&)

Place/country of issued ordinary/  Percentage of issued ordinary/
incorporation paid-up capital paid-up capital held Principal activities and
Name LR AR 3 BRTEE/ o RaTLE/ place of operation
£B 1/ BR BARSHE BAREKEAL TEEBREENY
Directly Indirectly
=R CiE3
Actor Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding in Hong Kong
TEREBRRLA e 10,0007 T - 100 RERREER
Zhuhai Rossini Watch Industry Limited PRC RMB10,000,000 - 91 Manufacture and distribution of
watches and timepieces
in the PRC
HEBRARKEERAA HE AR H10,000,0007C - 91 RABEREER D HEERR
T Em
PAMA Precision Manufacturing Limited PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and distribution of
watches and timepieces
in the PRC
RS ERHEERAA I AR#10,000,0007T - 100 RPBEZERD HEERK
BT Em
Ocean Montres SA Switzerland CHF100,000 - 89 Manufacture and distribution of
watches and timepieces
in Switzerland
Ocean Montres SA Wt 100,0008% %55 - 80  RIRTEERDEERR
T Em
Shenzhen Permanence Commerce PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Distribution of watches and
Co., Limited timepieces in the PRC
ATEBEREHBERAF HE AR H10,000,0007C - 100 RPBERERDHEERR
Wt Em
Zhuhai Rossini Glasses Industry Limited PRC RMB1,000,000 - 91 Distribution of glasses in the PRC
GERARBEERAA H AR#1,000,0007C - 91 RAEDHERE
Swiss Chronometric AG Switzerland CHF2,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and distribution of
watches and timepieces
in Switzerland
Swiss Chronometric AG Wt 2,000,0005% 1 %8B - 100 MintRERDHEERR

BHER
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22. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

(Continued)
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22. FrAGFE D RS — A DR (&)

Place/country of issued ordinary/  Percentage of issued ordinary/
incorporation paid-up capital paid-up capital held Principal activities and
Name AR BRITER/ FisoRITER/ place of operation
% &/ BR BARASFHE BARETED TEEBREEMY
Directly Indirectly
E# Gk
Ruihuang (Chongging) Watch PRC RMB30,000,000 - 51 Distribution of watches and
Company Limited timepieces in the PRC
hE(EE)EHBR R HE AR #30,000,0007T - 51 RPESHERR
It Em
Eterna AG Uhrenfabrik Switzerland CHF6,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and distribution of
watches and timepieces
in Switzerland
Eterna AG Uhrenfabrik Wt 6,000,003 T 34ED - 100 RIRTRERDHEERR
Wt m
Eterna Uhren GmbH, Kronberg Germany EUR205,000 - 100 Manufacture and distribution of
watches and timepieces
in Germany
Eterna Uhren GmbH, Kronberg =6 205,0008: % - 100 WEEZERDHERR
W T m
Guangdong Juxin Watch Co., Limited PRC RMB15,000,000 - 51 Distribution of watches and
timepieces in the PRC
EREEERERAF H AR #15,000,0007T - 51 RPESHERR
Wt m
Liaoning Hengjia Horologe Co., Limited ~ PRC RMB25,500,000 - 51 Distribution of watches and
timepieces in the PRC
BEBRERERAF HE AR#25,500,0007T - 51 RPESHERR
Wt Em
Guangzhou Five Sheep Watch PRC RMB78,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and distribution of
Co., Limited watches and timepieces
in the PRC
EMRFRERR A H AR #78,000,0007T - 100 RAEBESHEERR

BHER
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23.
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY
(Continued)

Particulars of

22.

FriG KB 2 Rl s — AN A R (&)

Place/country of issued ordinary/  Percentage of issued ordinary/
incorporation paid-up capital paid-up capital held Principal activities and
Name AR BRITEE/ FEeRITER/ place of operation
1 %/ ER BARKFHE BAREXED IREBRERMHY
Directly Indirectly
HiE Gk
Eterna (Asia) Limited Hong Kong HK$10 - 70 Distribution of watches and
timepieces in Hong Kong
Eterna (Asia) Limited B 107T - 0 REBDHEER
Bt Em

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

The Group also holds a 51% equity interest in Shunde Everbright
Sunto Computer Co. Limited (“Sunto”), a company established in
the PRC through which the Group had intended to be engaged in
the manufacture and the sale of computer casing products with third
parties. The directors of the Company are of the opinion that Sunto is
still in a management dead-lock, and the recoverability of the Group's
investment in Sunto and the amount due from Sunto of HK$60.5
million in aggregate is doubtful. Accordingly, the Group's interest in
Sunto was fully provided since 1998. In addition, Sunto was put under
a compulsory winding up pursuant to a court order issued in 2001 and
the winding up process had not yet been completed up to the date of
issue of these financial statements. The Group will not make any further
investment in Sunto.

INTERESTS IN A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITY
- COMPANY

As mentioned in notes 1 and 12.1, on 6 January 2011, the Company
entered into an agreement to dispose of its 49% equity interest in its
jointly controlled entity, namely Fuzhou Dartong. In the Company's
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2010, interest in
jointly controlled entity and the amount due from jointly-controlled
entity were reclassified to non-current asset held for sale and current
asset respectively.

The disposal was completed in June 2011, details of which are set out
in note 12.4.

23.

FRBINEERRIBREAKELRFE Y
EEIBRAREEEFEEADBND AR
FIMEBAR - EERA  FAEMHEAR
ZEREESERENBENITE -

REBIEHBRFR B 2 IBET Y AIBR
BISBR AT ([IEHE])S1%MI AR - KE
ERBEBZARBEE=Z  2HERER
HEBIHMER - ARREFERAIERE
ZEBDARBAER  FrARERRIERZ
& KU IE B R 3 A $£60,500,0005% JT 8
DU EHFRERE - Eit - NEBRIERE 2 E
mEE-ANNFRELEEEE - i
IEBEBER TS —FHMz — B ARG S
WoahlEE - EREFREEATBKHRE T
BHEEHATNK  AEETSYIEBEERT
fAE—KE -

gﬁ—%%@%%%%%ﬁ—mﬂ

B K120 FTH R ——F— AR
B ANAREIZaE  HEERREGIEE
BMNKRB A% AR - RARF ZF—
TFE+ A=+ —HZPBRRER - RER
BTz S RER LR T 258
IO REFHEAEBIEREZIERDEER
MENEFE o

HEERZT——F/XAZRMK
124

BB M
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23. INTERESTS IN A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITY
— COMPANY (Continued)

Particulars of the jointly-controlled entity at 31 December 2010 are as
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23. it —RAREZEHERER - X0
& (&)
R-T-—THEF-A=+—0 £RAZHE
BRI

follows:
Percentage of

Place/country of ownership  Percentage of  Percentage of

incorporation interest  voting power  profit sharing  Principal activities and
Name MR L BERER RERE FE1E%F  place of operation
AW %/ BR BO EEi otk TEEBREEHE
Fuzhou Dartong PRC 49 50 49 Manufacture and distribution of

enamelled copper wire in the PRC

VN h 49 50 49 RPERERD HRBHRK

Details of the aggregate amounts of Fuzhou Dartong's assets and
liabilities as at 31 December 2010 are set out in note 12.5. The income
and expenses related to the Group's interests in Fuzhou Dartong for
the year ended 31 December 2011 up to the date of disposal and year
ended 31 December 2010 are set out in note 12.3.

24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

R-E—TF+-_A=+—8 BMNKAE
MEERBERBHNMTI25 - BEZT
——F+-A=t+—HIEFEEHERSK
HE-_Z-—ZF+_A=-t+—HIFEHK
EERBEMNABZ EEABHWA R E
RWEE12.3 -

24. Fr{R¢E QR

Group Company
KEE ¥ /NS
2011 2010 2011 2010
—EB2——5 =—Z=-ZTF ZZEB——F =ZZT-IZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET F#&xT FHT
At 1 January n—A—H 158 70,550 - 29,336
Share of profit of associates FE(EB & N 7)o A - 6,979 - -
Disposal of an associate (note a) & —FKEEE QA
(Mfza) - (33,642) - -
Reclassified to non-current assets  #{EH & 7 IERED
held for sale (note b) BEEFNSHE
(Mi7EDb) - (43,729) - (29,336)
Exchange realignment P H A 6 - - -

164 158 - -
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24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)  As described in note 10(b), in 2010, the Group had disposed of its
30% equity interests in an associate, Guanyang Real Estate for a cash
consideration of RMB 186,000,000 (equivalent to HK$211,353,000). A
gain on disposal of HK$177,711,000 was recognised accordingly, details
of which are analysed as follows:

24. FribHE X R (4])

P e

(a)

AN B SR E M FE10(0) il - RZF—F
FAERHEER—RBEQRTFE
WEZ30%BRAERD  HeREBAARKE
186,000,000 7T (#5574 211,353,000/8 7T ) ° H
E U 177,711,000/ TE EER - HITES
o

HK$'000

FET

Proceeds of disposals of Guanyang Real Estate HEEFEEMEMSHIE 211,353
Less: Carrying amount of interests in Guanyang Real Estate B BEHEBRNTFEMERR  FERE

upon disposal (33,642)

177,711

The disposal proceeds of HK$211,353,000 had been fully received by
the Group in 2010. In addition to the disposal as described above, the
purchaser agreed to assume the liabilities due to the Group by Guanyang
Real Estate of RMB240,000,000. In 2010, this balance had also been fully
received by the Group.

(b)  As mentioned in notes 1 and 12.2 above, in 2010, the Group and the
Company planned to dispose of its 25.58% equity interest in its associate,
namely Jiangsu Dartong. In accordance with HKFRS 5, as at 31 December
2010, interests in Jiangsu Dartong were reclassified to non-current
assets held for sale in the statement of financial position of the Group
and the Company (note 12.6). The disposal of Jiangsu Dartong has been
completed in July 2011.

Particulars of the associate at 31 December 2011 are as follows:

RZZT—ZTF  AEBEEBHKEBEEHMSE
FRIE211,353,000% 7 © Br Lt &SN - BT
BEAETSFEHERNAEEZABAR
#5240,000,0007T ©c R =E—F4F + AEE IR
BB E L R EE o

BB R R 12200 R E—FF - K&
B R AARRTEEE RS QR TE AR
225.58% M o IRIBE B M B ME LERZES
R E-—TBE+-_A=+—H RiIH
KiBZERXAANEE RARQR 2P BARRE
NEFHDBEABELE ZERBEE (T
12.6) °

R=B——F+=A=+—0 BEAFAZ

ERmT
Percentage of
Particulars of Country of interest held Principal
Name equity held incorporation A REFFTE activities
=L FEERER &E 1 B S B 3R Bk FEXH
Changzhou Zhongxing Department Store Paid up capital of PRC 36.40% Dormant
Co., Limited RMB 182,000 (2010: 36.40%)
EMPEAEERAR S UNILEN I 36.40% R

AR#182,0007T

(ZF—FF:
36.40%)
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24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 24. FrihEtE N ARz (&)
The summarised financial information of the Group’s associates LT AfREaAE KRS N AHEZ T ——
extracted from their management account for the year ended 31 FTZA=T—RALFELEERE W
December 2011 is as follows: BARE
2011 2010
—E-—-F CE-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&x FHIT
Assets BE 5,249 468,515
Liabilities aE (4,975) (294,841)
Revenue A - 1,758,198
Profit for the year AN A - 29,349
25. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS - 25. It ESREE - FAKH
GROUP
2011 2010
—E——5 ZZ—ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FHT
Listed equity investment, at fair value (note a) EmEAEE - AFEFRE) 807,617 1,113,018
Unlisted equity investment, at cost FELETMRAIRE - KA
-GBS RAM TEBRAT —GBIEERARAM TEER AT
("Hefei Everbright”) (note b) (T&EBEHEKRD) (MIFED) 3,477 3,477
— Others (note ¢) —H M (B30 79 71
Less: Provision for impairment o R ERE (3,477) (3,477)
79 77

Total HEE 807,696 1,113,095
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25. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS -

GROUP (Continued)

Notes:

(@)  During the year, Citychamp Dartong Company Limited (referred to
“Citychamp” and its shares referred to as Citychamp Shares) declared a
cash dividend of RMBO.5 (2010: RMBO.5) for every 10 Citychamp Shares.
A dividend income totalling HK$6,551,000 (2010: HK$5,172,000) was

recognised by the Group in the profit or loss for the year.

Particulars of the available-for-sale financial assets of which the carrying
amount of the Group's interest exceeded 10% of the total assets of the

Group are as follows:

25. ItHESMEE - A5 H (&)

P e

RAFE BHRREBRGERAR(E
Wl ERGTEASERD )5S 1085w 5 5%
HERBEBREARBISL(ZE—ZF :
ARBO05TT) - AEERFRNEHERRBES
6,551,0008 7T (ZF —Z4 : 5,172,000/ 7T)
2B A o

AEEN AN E S REE < R R (ER
BAREEEEREZ10%FBWT

Percentage of

ownership

interest

attributable to

Particulars of the Group

Country of issued shares held Number of shares REBEFTE

Name incorporation e 1T held by the Group EEEEZ
£ 8 ER 32 B =R R FHE SEFFROEE B
Citychamp Dartong PRC Ordinary A Share 108,743,161 14.78%

Company Limited (2010: 108,743,161) (2010: 14.78%)
BB AR AE + AR BB A 108,743,161 14.78%
(%% (Z2—-ZF:

108,743,161) 14.78%)

During the year, the decrease in fair value of Citychamp Shares of
HK$305,401,000 (2010: HK$327,623,000) has been dealt with in other
comprehensive income and the investment revaluation reserve.

(b)  The Group held an equity interest of 25.5% in Hefei Everbright, a joint
venture company established in the PRC in 2003. Having regard to the
deteriorating financial positions of Hefei Everbright, the directors are
in the opinion that the investment in Hefei Everbright is not likely to be
recoverable and accordingly, an impairment loss of HK$3,477,000 was
recognised in 2005. As the financial position of Hefei Everbright remained
deteriorated during the year, there was no change in the accumulated
impairment as at 31 December 2011. No fair value information is
disclosed for this investment because its fair value cannot be measured

reliably.

() These are investments in unlisted private entities incorporated in the PRC.
Its fair value information is not disclosed because the related fair value

cannot be measured reliably.

FR - B A AR 2305,401,00078 7T
(ZZ=—Z4 : 327,623,000 70) DN Hih &
ERA NG E EEHEENERE

AEBEBFEEEARND %R AR - %
AAR_EE=FAPEKRIZ —REER
A ERAEXRZEBRAEE  EF
RETAAREKRERARENKRZIZE  ®E
—EERFERABEaRPHEARERE
3,477,0008 7T - AR A RERNFE 2 W
BikhEEE AR - ——F+ A
=+ RZRFBELEEZE - ARAIEN
REE 2 R FEAREAISEAE - SLERE
HATEER -

D

U AR BRI 2 FLA R F Z I BT R ARE 5
BE - ANBEARTEREEFE - L
BREENTEE -
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26. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP 26. B EE—AK£H
Supplier and
distribution
networks
HEFR Brand name Total
o EH 48 % R hE Met
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January 2010 R_ZE—FTF—H—H
Cost DN — _ _
Accumulated amortisation R - - -
Net carrying amount REFE - - -
Year ended 31 December 2010 HE-_Z—FTF+-_HA=+—H
WEE
Opening carrying amount FYRRHEE - - -
Additions NE 11,494 - 11,494
Amortisation 5y (1,336) - (1,336)
Exchange realignment P 5, B 239 - 239
Closing carrying amount FLREEEE 10,397 - 10,397
At 31 December 2010 N-E-FTFE+-F=+—H
Cost DN 11,765 - 11,765
Accumulated amortisation Sty (1,368) - (1,368)
Net carrying amount ARELFRE 10,397 - 10,397
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE-_ZT——F+-_HA=+—H
WFE
Opening carrying amount FYRREE 10,397 - 10,397
Additions NE 10,366 - 10,366
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 44)  URBEMTE A T (Fi5E44) - 36,700 36,700
Amortisation b (1,877) - (1,877)
Exchange realignment ME 5, B 358 358
Closing carrying amount FAREREE 19,244 36,700 55,944
At 31 December 2011 NZ_E—F+=-_A=+—H
Cost RN 22,467 36,700 59,167
Accumulated amortisation STy (3,223) - (3,223)
Net carrying amount BREFE 19,244 36,700 55,944

The brand name as at 31 December 2011 primarily resulted from the
acquisition of Eterna Group during the year, details of which are set out
in note 44 to the financial statement. The directors have assessed the
useful life of the brand name is indefinite. The directors have measured
the fair value of brand name at the acquisition date of Eterna Group
with reference to a valuation performed by Asset Appraisal Limited.
The valuation was based on royalty relief method, a commonly applied

approach to value brand name.

RZE——F+_RA=+—HZREEERXK
BRFANBEFESE  WBZFBIR
G mERM T4 - EFCTEREZ A A
FHAER BEF2EZEETEERARA
AREFESERNERETZHERRMEZ
RNFERE - ZEENEFER TN K
BB IRHETT
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27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND

28.

RECEIVABLES

HE_Z—F+-_A=1+—HBILFE

OTHER 27. EfRE - e REMEWRK

Group Company
KEHE NN

2011 2010 2011 2010

—B——F5 —Z-ZF —E——fF —E-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FET FEx FET

Other receivables H At R 118,402 88,008 1,776 1,350

Prepayments B RIE 60,406 70,152 313 274

Deposits b 2,009 5,206 1,677 1,677

Carrying amount at 31 December R+—A=+—HZ

BRMEE 180,817 163,366 3,766 3,301

Less: Current portion S 0 BNEAEE (175,527) (160,969) (3,766) (3,301)

Non-current portion JERNER 5,290 2,397 - -
INVENTORIES - GROUP 28. FE—XKH

2011 2010

—E——fF —E-EF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERx FET

Raw materials R 171,929 136,360

Work-in-progress RS 37,693 22,362

Finished goods and merchandise 2k MM E @ 746,651 270,109

956,273 428,831
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29. TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES - GROUP 29. ERERR R EZE - A58

2011 2010

=25 Z—T-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TAT

Trade and bill receivables JE U BR 2 o E g 245,926 115,346
Less: Provision for impairment R ERE (1,642) (1,584)
Trade and bill receivables — net FEW R R =R — % 244,284 113,762

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for certain customers, where payment in advance is required.
The credit period is generally for a period of one to two months
(2010: one to two months) for major customers. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. Trade debtors with balances that are more than
three months overdue are required to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group's trade receivables relate to a wide range of
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bill receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery
of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written
off against trade receivables directly.

BRETEPHBEBREAMNTIN  AEEEE
BEPFUZEERREEZRREIA - =
BEP-—RAE-—EMEA(ZFT—TF:
—EZMEA)ZEEY - BEAEFPREEE
ER - BE=EANK EZBERKEBA
RERLEAE - S EEMABEMERE
B - ERX LA FHERARE RS ERT S
MARETNAZEP  HUESEEREER
B o FEURERFRIL AR o

W IR R R B 2 REB BT ARER - K
FEAREEEB IR BB RKIAE - Ut
BT - BB RER B R R R -
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29.

HE_Z—F+-_A=1+—HBILFE

TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES - GROUP
(Continued)

The directors of the Company consider that as trade and bill receivables
are expected to be recovered within one year, their fair values are not
materially different from their carrying amounts because these balances
have short maturity periods on their inception. Movement in the
provision for impairment of trade and bill receivables is as follows:

29. BIWEBRR R EE —AX&EE(E)

ARBEZRREBEANZEBEBHER —F
AUE - HRZFEHRFERE TR 228
R EQFEARAELEEAER -
FEW IR MR BRI EREE ST

2011 2010

—EB——F —"ZT-ZF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER T

At 1 January n—A—H 1,584 2,102
Amount written off g &5 - (505)
Reversal of impairment loss REBEED - (73)
Exchange realignment ME 5, B 58 60
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 1,642 1,584
At each reporting date, the Group reviews trade and bill receivables REREH - AEBRERNREEEEEMN

for evidence of impairment on both an individual and collective basis.
The individually impaired receivables related to customers that were
in financial difficulties and management assessed that only a portion
of the receivables is expected to be recovered. Consequently, specific
impairment provision of HK$1,642,000 (2010: HK$1,584,000) is
recognised during the year. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

Ageing analysis of trade and bill receivables as at the reporting date,
based on invoice date, and net of provisions, is as follows:

JEWBR R R = 2R ERE - @RI RAE
FEWREM SRS ZTEER  SEEM
5 TEERE R EER S UG - At - BRE
2 BIRE RS 1,642,000 T ( —E—24F -
1,584,000 70) - AEBWERZSE BT
BERERR -

FEU IR M R B (HIBR B ) IR MR B R A IR
HEAZREDONMAT :

2011 2010

—E——-F —ZET-FF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

1 to 3 months 12318 A 219,731 103,499
4 to 6 months A26fE A 20,310 6,595
Over 6 months HBE61E A 4,243 3,668
244,284 113,762




Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS IR R P 5

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE-ZT——F+-A=+—HILFE

29.

30.

TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES - GROUP
(Continued)
Ageing analysis of trade receivables that are not impaired is as follows:

29.

FESREESRAT | ST 458 143

BYERRERE - A58 (&)

W R E < FRUSR AR ER D ATEA T

2011 2010

=25 CZT-ZF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FHET

Neither past due nor impaired =) 7 380 BR 5l (B 145,076 76,702
1-90 days past due E#EI1E90H 73,402 29,648
91-180 days past due E#HI91E180H 21,563 5,816
Over 180 days past due BB 180H 4,243 1,596
99,208 37,060

244,284 113,762

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a number
of customers that have a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, management believes that no additional impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

30.

WIS AE ER R ES R ESEY
RER S R MR -

EEHE Y EEEZ BUGREE TR AKE
BARMNARLHZBIEFPERM - RIZ
BELER  BEREERRGE ARNEEERYTE
BRI LB RSRIDRER S A BB
B - MEFRZFERIEREEINBERERE -

%ﬁ?ﬁﬂl%ﬂﬁ%ﬁZ@ﬂﬁ

Group Company

TEE ¥ NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—F——F —T-TF =FT-—F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FABT FHERT TABTT

Listed equity investments in EELETRERE

Hong Kong, at market value & 107,803 91,764 52,671 44,670

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are held for trading
purposes.

BAHEFAGNABRZEREEDNRE
EEEMZ -
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31.

32.

33.

DUE FROM DISPOSAL GROUP - COMPANY 31. EWHEABIFIE - KA T
Amount due from the Disposal Group were unsecured, interest-free and JEWHEARFIBAREER 2EREAKE
repayable on demand. SKIBE -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 32 BERREEEY
Group Company
rEH b NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
-2 —ZT-TF =B-——F <—T-ITF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE FATT FHET FHET
Cash and bank balances B KIRTTHE R 351,276 837,872 89,411 403,182
Cash at bank earns interest at the floating rates based on the daily RITRSREERTERNETE 22 H
bank deposits rates. TErE o
Included in cash and cash equivalents of the Group are the amount of TEERSRERR2EEDEREREY
HK$225,769,000 (2010: HK$426,581,000) denominated in RMB which 225,769,0008 7t (= ZF —ZF F : 426,581,000
are placed with the banks in the PRC. RMB is not freely convertible BITIAAREREMTFRPEZRITZN
into other currencies. Under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control T ANRBTSEHABRAHMEN - B
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of REIBNIMNEE IR RASIE - EE REEIE
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange BE - NEE P IEERERN R BIETTIMNESE
RMB into foreign currencies through the banks authorised to conduct B2 RITHARB HBBING -
foreign exchange business.
TRADE AND BILL PAYABLES - GROUP 33. ENRRRRE -F&E
Ageing analysis of trade and bill payables as at the reporting dates, ERNEFREEBRRBEZARNBER 2K
based on the invoice dates, is as follows: Eaxiin/ (N
2011 2010
—®-——F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
1 to 3 months 1£31@ A 154,151 121,557
4 to 6 months 426ME A 17,253 1,314
Over 6 months FBA6{E H 23,044 825

194,448 123,696
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34. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

35.

FESRERERAT | —T—F4% 145

34. Htt BN R KR ETER

Group Company
rEE AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—EB-—-F —E-ZF ZEB-—-—-F —T-ZTF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FHET FHET
Accruals fEETE A 27,060 32,295 2,237 2,790
Other payables HAbERTK 194,154 103,551 12,121 16,106
221,214 135,846 14,358 18,896
Other payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on Hitn B AEER T B RERERE
demand. 2o
BORROWINGS 35. 5§
Group Company
rEE AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
Effective B —T-TE —B--—§F —T T&
interest rates HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B A= FERT FABTT FHET FHET
Current
RED
Bank borrowings Floating
RITEE 2R 2.77%~7.79% 86,171 35,353 13,000 13,000
At the reporting date, the Group's bank borrowings were secured by: RIER - AEBERITEENL T ESBEER
o
(i)  corporate guarantee provided by intergroup companies for bank () HEEASATARRITBEERZE——F
borrowings as at 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil); TZA=t+T—BARHEZARER(Z
T—TF |m);

(i) alegal charge over certain of the Group's buildings situated in the (ii)
PRC with a carrying amount of HK$833,000 for bank borrowings
as at 31 December 2010 (Note 18a), and

(iii) a legal charge over certain of the Group's investment properties (iii)
with carrying amounts of HK$19,000,000 (2010: HK$18,800,000)
(Note 19).

R_E—ZTF+-_A=+—H @A
833,000 T 2 N EBEFBHIETF 2 AT
AR (MI5E18a) ¢ K&

AREBEEFERMEEA19,000,00087T( =
T — T4 : 18,800,00078 7T ) IR EME 2~
SEERD (MIEE19) »
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35. BORROWINGS (Continued) 35. B E (&)
The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate to their fair value. EBECEmEREAFERSE T ——
As at 31 December 2011, the borrowings were repayable as follows: F+-_A=1+—H XREBEZEBEERUT
FHIEE -
Group Company
rEE PN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—EB——-F —ZTF=F =E-—-—-F ZT-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FHET
Within one year —F R 86,171 35,353 13,000 13,000
36. DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES 36. BN BBELQ XK
The amounts due to related companies are unsecured, interest-free and JEﬁﬁE’E@’&ETK%M%?ﬁEW - B RAER
repayable on demand. TREE -
37. DEFERRED TAX 37. EERIE -
Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under EEREME N ERR A FARBAREX
the liability method using the applicable tax rates prevailing in the BRERDEEBIRITEAT R EDBRE -
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
Details of the Group's deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised and BEFRIBEE(AE)EBHIWT :
movements are as follows:
Revaluation
of property,
Revaluation plant and
Provision for  of intangible equipment
inventories assets B - Tax losses Total
FERE EMRFEE RBREREE BIAEBE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHET FAT FHT
At 31 January 2010 RZZE—ZF—HF—H 1,207 - - - 1,207
Exchange realignment [E 5 AR 43 - - - 43
At 31 December 2010 and ~ RZ-ZT—Z4F
1 January 2011 +-A=+—-BXK
—T—%—-H—H 1,250 - - - 1,250
Acquisition of subsidiaries Y EEFHTE A B (HYE44)
(note 44) - (8,441) (230) 8,671 -
Exchange realignment [E 5 % 45 975 27 (1,002) 45
At 31 December 2011 » —

—ET——F
+=-A=+—H 1,295 (7,466) (203) 7,669 1,295
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37. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 37. ELERIA(E)

For the purpose of presentation in statement of financial position,
certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The
following is the analysis of deferred tax balances for financial reporting
purposes:

RSRPBARKRP 2R FTEEHRREE
MBBETHE -UTS/ARMBRE ZE
FEFR BT -

2011 2010

—F—-F —ZT-ZTF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHEIT

Deferred tax assets B IEEE 1,295 1,250
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEAE - -
1,295 1,250

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of HK$186,008,000 (2010: HK$183,141,000), subject to the
agreement of Inland Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as these losses were incurred by the companies
that have been loss-making for some time.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has tax losses in Switzerland of
HK$637,310,000 (2010: Nil), subject to the agreement of tax bureau
in Switzerland, that are available for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets
of HK$7,669,000 have been recognised in respect of these losses to
the extent of deferred tax liabilities recognised as at 31 December
2011 in respect of revaluation of non-current assets as a result of the
acquisition of subsidiaries in 2011. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of the remaining portion of the unused tax losses
as these were incurred by the subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time. These unused tax losses will expire at various dates from
2012 to 2017.

During the year, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax
liability that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of
the Group's subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to additional tax
should such amounts be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders during the year.

R-TE——F+-_f=+—H AEBRE
B EA T IEE18186,008,0008 L ( — T —=F
 :183,141,000/70) - BFFEBBKBHE -
AREREEEBEBARZBBER &
Fl o BREETIERBIB 2 AREHEEE—
BRI - MU BB Z F B EERE(RTER
IHEE o

RZTE——F+-f=+—H KAEBNE
+EAFIAE18637,310,0008 T ( — T —=F
FE) BFRTHBERHE - TRER
HEABBRARCHRBRERTES - Bt2F
BER_ZE——F+Z A=+ —HERR=
E-—FETKBHBERARBEGRIIERE
ERERIAS EEEERT,669,000%8 TiELE
HIBEE - AR ZERS AT BEEEHR T
PIhH—EFEEEZR B AREL
W BRZEEERRATECHREEE -
ZEADHABREEBBES IR —ZF2
ZE—FER

RER > BETARAAEESTHEARZ
AELBANEE 2 BNREMLREEAR
ERELCHAERAE - REARSAEZERERE
B AEBENBRAEEIMNIBBZEE -

FA - ARBWERFEBR AR MAE
AEEAREREE -
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As at 31 December 2011, deferred taxation has not been provided
in the financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to the profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries amounted
to HK$564,533,000 (2010: HK$347,879,000) as the Group is able
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

37. EREFIE(F)

RZZB——F+-A=+—H0  #HB&XL
o B B R A R P R EOR R e 2 B =
#H564,533,0008 7T(=F —Z4F : 347,879,000
BIFHELEH ARG - RASAKNEEGE
MIEGIROERERCRE N EEREZE
RATBE TSR] R 2R o

38. SHARE CAPITAL 38. iR
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Number Number of
of shares shares
RO E KhE B
'000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
Fr FHET T % FHIT
Authorised: VERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 R—H—B K
each at 1 January and +=-—A=+—8H
31 December FIRMEE0.10/8 T
2 BB 6,000,000 600,000 6,000,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE
At 1 January n—H—H 4,090,074 409,007 3,542,676 354,268
Placement of shares during REFEREERD
the year (note a) (BF5Fa) 10,000 1,000 496,953 49,695
Share option scheme — proceeds  RREAL D HESTEI
from shares issued (note b) — BTG,
F18 308 (Mi7Eb) 57,035 5,704 50,445 5,044
Repurchase of ordinary shares N B B E @R
during the year (note ¢) (B &FC) (17,362) (1,736) - -
At 31 December wt+—_A=+—H 4,139,747 413,975 4,090,074 409,007
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38. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:
(a)  Details in respect of placement of shares are as follows:

2011

In August 2011, the Company entered into a share subscription agreement
with an independent third party, in relation to placement of 10,000,000
new ordinary shares at HK$0.99 per share, under which the Group also
agreed to grant 210,000,000 options (“2011 Option”) for the subscription
of the Company's ordinary shares at the exercise price of HK$1.21 per
share. Total cash proceeds for this placement are HK$9,900,000. The fair
value of the 2011 Option is approximately HK$7,532,000 and is included
in other reserve. The amount of HK$1,368,000, representing the excess
of the proceeds received over the nominal value of the ordinary shares of
HK$1,000,000 and the fair value of the 2011 Option of HK$7,532,000,
has been included in share premium. Details of this share placement have
been set out in the Company’s announcement dated 8 August 2011.

2010

In May 2010, the Company entered into a share subscription agreement
with an independent third party in relation to placement of 106,815,620
new ordinary shares at HK$0.77 per share, under which the Group also
agreed to grant 242,115,405 options (“2010 Option”) for the subscription
of the Company's ordinary shares at the exercise price of HK$0.88 per
share. Total cash proceeds for this placement were HK$82,248,000. The
fair value of the 2010 Option was approximately HK$15,160,000 and was
included in other reserve. The amount of HK$56,406,000, representing
the excess of the proceeds received over the nominal value of the
ordinary shares of HK$10,682,000 and the fair value of the 2010 Option
of HK$15,160,000, has been included in share premium. Details of this
share placement had been set out in the Company's announcement dated
3 May 2010.

In December 2010, the Company entered into another placing agreement
in relation to placement of 390,138,000 new ordinary shares at HK$1.21.
Total proceeds for this placement were HK$472,068,000. The amount of
HK$433,053,000, representing the excess of the proceeds received over
the nominal value of the ordinary shares of HK$39,014,000, was included
in share premium. Details of this share placement had been set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 15 December 2010.

All shares issued in relation to the placements in both years have the
same rights as the Company’s other issued ordinary shares.
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38. R4S (#&)

CEE
() BREERGHENT

—E——=F

RZE——FNA - ARAIBEBIYFE=ZFHFIL
B RERE - AEBERATR9BTEE
10,000,000 % 3T E @M% © B - AEEBEITREE
% H1210,000,000 0 REBR D E( T ——FR
BIRHOE]D  WREBINEBLTZITEERE
AARERE ZEEZRESMERBLES
9,900,000 7T - —E——FERBRMOEZ AT
E# 47,532,008 WEFAHMERE - A
201,368,000 JT. 7y & FT U BX 3K I8 £21,000,0007%5 7T
TEREEE T —FREROEZATE
7,532,000/ ST E 2 A% - LB AR D%
B -BRUBROEEZFBEINAAGBHAES
T——FNANBZRAMH -

—E-FF

R-ZZE—ZTFFAH ARGEBIYFE=ZHFIL
B RERE S AEERATRIIBTERES
106,815,620 X ¥ E B » BUAEB TR EFK
H242,115405 0 RER O E( T —ZTFRE
D) - LIRER088B T2 ITHEEREAR
NEEBER  -ZEEZHESMERELEES
82,248,000/ c —E—EFRBRMNEZ AF
{H49/15,160,000/8 7T » Wt AEMEE - B
£56,406,0005%8 7T 7Y A& FT Y250 TE 62 10,682,000/ 7T
TEREERE T ZFREROEZAFE
15,160,000/8 L 2 Z 58 » KB E WA ARG &
B - BRUBROEEZFBEINAAGBHAES
TE-—TFRAZHZAM -

RZZE—FF+_  ARAFTILIS—HEREERH
& NRFARAER1.218TE 5390, 138,000/% 37
LR o RS 2 FT15 5B B 58 /472,068,000
B TT o B B 518 433,053,000 7T - T3 AT EUT
15 7 TE 81 E A AY 2 T1E39,014,0008 TTH Z 58 » %
SREDHFARDEE - BERNES 25518
HRAQRRBEA-Z—ZEF+-_A+HAZA
1}’5 °

AERMEARBTZRO(BESERMTEHE
M) BARBEMEEITEBREZARSET -
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38. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Details of shares issued upon the exercise of share options are as follows:

2011

In 2011, 57,035,000 new ordinary shares of the Company were issued
upon the exercise of share options. The total proceeds received for the
issues of shares under the share option scheme are HK$18,530,000.
The amount of HK$12,826,000, representing the excess of the proceeds
received over the nominal value of the ordinary shares of HK$5,704,000,
has been included in share premium.

2010

In 2010, 50,445,000 new ordinary shares of the Company were issued
upon the exercise of share options. The total proceeds received for the
issues of shares under share option scheme were HK$16,394,000. The
amount of HK$11,350,000, representing the excess of the proceeds
received over the nominal value of the ordinary shares of HK$5,044,000,
had been included in share premium.

Details of the share options exercised during the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2010 are summarised in note 39. All shares issued in
both years in relation to the share option scheme have the same rights as
the Company’s other issued ordinary shares.

During the year, the Company has repurchased its own ordinary shares
listed in the Stock Exchange as follows.

38. R4S (#&)

B ()

(b)

RATER B R M &7 2RO F B
™

—E——F

R-ZT——F  ARARTERBERMDE
B o EE1T57,035,000 0% 31 @AY - IRIFRHE
BT BT 2 B WHLFT 15 ZUE 4
8 518,530,000/ 7T © 45 B8 5K 7H 12,826,000%
T hABWESRESEEEE Y mE
5,704,000/ TR =58 © RZEREE WA AR

M8 e

—E-TF

RZZT—ZFF  ARQRARTERB KRG E
BF 2 9750,445,000 8 #T L@ MG - IRIBERE
Betn ST 2B AT D 2 B BT 1S A &
%4 516,394,0007 7T © A 3 578 11,350,000
T NABWERERIEETEK ®E
5,044,000/ TR Z 8 - ZEFTEE WA AR
R {E o

FHEZE_ZT——FRZ=_ZE—ZTF+=A
T+ ALFEZRERMEETFEZF
BEEHIIAME39 - FTARMTERNEITZ ’HD
(ERBROHEIEHE)  BAQRREME 5
TEBR=EREER -

RER > NRATEBEERERfEH &
AR e

Number of

ordinary shares Highest price Lowest price
repurchased paid per share paid per share Aggregate
Period EEEEER [EXRE=T0 [EXRE=T0 price paid
HE #A BaE RIEE BN AER
‘000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000
TR BT BT FHETT
June 2011 ZE——FRA 15,630 1.05 0.99 15,970
September 2011 —E——FRA 1,682 0.76 0.72 1,251
October 2011 —ZT—%+A 50 0.64 0.64 32
17,362 17,253

The repurchased shares were cancelled and accordingly the issued share
capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares
of HK$1,736,000. The premium paid on the repurchases of the ordinary
shares of HK$15,517,000 was charged to share premium. The Company
did not repurchase any of its ordinary shares in 2010.

BRI, EWES - Bt - ARRIBEITR
NE I % R EIE 1,736,000 7T B
B9 FT S A B35 (B X 5 R A 1E B 10 34 (B Bk
R 15,517,000 70 c AAFR T —F
G I 4 B BT L B AR AR o
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39. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION 39. RIpHE

At the general meeting held on 30 May 2008, the shareholders of the
Company terminated the option scheme adopted on 25 May 2001 and
adopted a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) for a period
of 10 years commencing on the adoption date.

The directors may, at their discretion, invite the eligible participants
to take up options to subscribe for shares. The eligible participants
include (i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; (ii) any directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and
(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Under the New Scheme, the maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the New Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the share
capital of the Company in issue from time to time. No options may be
granted under the New Scheme if the grant of such option will result
in the limit being exceeded. Subject to the approval of the Company's
shareholders, the aggregate number of the Company’s shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the New Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the
Company's shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options and the options granted under the New Scheme
(including both exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital
of the Company. Where any further grant of options to a grantee
would result in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options granted and proposed to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) under the New Scheme in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant
representing in aggregate over 1% of the shares in issue, such further
grant requires approval of the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting with such grantee and his associates abstaining from voting.

R-ZEZNFAA=THETZERRS
EARABRRBER-_FE-FAA
“+HARAZRBR D RERT S - WERAFT
REER T8I ([#r5t8l]) - BFRMB MR
AARBtE
EXTRRABRAEERSEEABRBRN
- URERD - AERZ2EERENAR
IS E MM E AR 2 E A 2Bk RBE
B - 1TTBRABHERAE  ()ARAHEE
AMEARZENER(BERITES 3
HMITEERBYIENITES) + R(i)ARA
SR B AR EMER - FRHAL -
e - EPRRE -

RIBFHETE - REHFEARLEREFTEZ
BB i RITE R E A I REAE 1T (£ B ] T 3%
TZ&EERNHEE  NMEAR/HHTSES
RRAR PR D EHITIRAZ30% ° Xt 2R
BROBESEL B LR - AITGREN
AHEIR L RERDRE - FREAR QR RRALE
Sh - IRBFET B KB FITE B H KR
TTERBROEETER A TERITZARF]
Btr 4% - REMKEHNFBBARRE N
R E BT 230% °

AR+ E A BEREH R E R AR
ABEZRBRODE(BREITESL R KRTT
FEZRBEROE)ITERESEITRETHT
ZBRDBBTIFEBARARRDHITHAZ
1% © fisl [ — B AR A — H R ERBERD
> BEZAATREFAEN @A B
FHEZE-IRELEAH(BFEER)TEE
EhEaaERZMBERBROE(BRET
- FEHRAARITERBRNOE) R %
TR EETRID 2B & HBEC BTN
1% - BREE - TR EBBRMDELARBRR
REEARNRBBERLLAE - MBAARARRK
ZHMBALTEMERR
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39. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued) 39. R fH{E (&)

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted under the New Scheme to each of any eligible
persons (including those cancelled, exercised and outstanding options),
in any 12 months period up to the date of the latest grant shall not
exceed 1% of the Company’s shares in issue provided that the number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted
and to be granted to each of the independent non-executive directors
or substantial shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates in the 12 months period up to the date of such grant in
excess of 0.1% of the Company's shares in issue and with a value in
excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the Company’s
independent shareholders. Any further grant of options in excess of
such limit requires the approval of the shareholders in general meeting
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and should not be later than 10 years from the date of the
acceptance of the share options (the “Option Period”).

The subscription price is equal to the higher of (i) the nominal value
of the share of the Company; (ii) the closing price per share of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on
the date of grant; and (iii) the average closing price per share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant.

The fair value of share options granted is recognised in profit or loss
taking into account the probability that the options will vest over the
vesting period. Upon the exercise of the options the resulting shares
issued are recorded as additional share capital at the nominal value
of the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share over
the nominal value of the shares is recorded in the share premium
account. At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve is transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve is transferred to retained profits. Lapsed options are deleted
from the outstanding options prior to their exercise date. All equity-
settled share-based compensation expense is settled in equity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle
the options in cash.

EEF+ZEAREEZ&RER D B HRE
MatdlnEeRaERALTRE 2 BBRME
(BRDFEE - TERBRITEZBEBRD
B)TERDBETRETET BN RS H
B NMSEARAREHITRAZ1% R
BEABRH ARSI+ —@EAMERARF]
BEUFATEFTHEIERRIBESALZ
EABEALRE LK TFREZMERER
NE(BHEETE EEHEEERTERR
Peint) BITEREITREET RN EE
BHBBARFDHITRMN0.1%REERESB
5,000,000/ 7C - AR THBEELEARF]
BRI A o EE - P REBEAHR
BZRBBROBELARE EMRAZRERE
BERNBR KRS EHEE

FIEHRERNEZITENRESTEE - B
TREEBREROEZMNARRTF(RE
R ipEHAmE ) »

RBEHERNTISHZESE | ()AAF
A EE ¢ (i) AR RBRMDRE L B B
FrEAMERMARZEBREHE » R(i) B
RO BHpAEE XA RO RERAE AR
BRARZFHRHE -

RERMD R A FER MRBROER R
EHISRE 2 FTRE MR E R B R R - RARQ
BRI EEITEE - PrElfRZEBITR
LB MERABEINRA - MBRITEE
BB EE s ZBARARDEER - R
BRODETER  TRRNAEROEHEET
ERAESEBRERMEE - ERBRMN
RBORUE R I im B EDRTTRE - BRI R
BEROERETERZAESEREZRE R
e RITEBBAD RBRBROES B H
RITERBBRODET IR - RERBAGEE
ZBEDAN A AR EE - NEEILE
AEREERETNRSBE KGR RBAND
1 o
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39. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued)
The grantees may exercise the options in whole or in part by giving
exercise notice to the grantor at any time during the Option Period
provided that the grantees shall exercise the options to acquire the
option shares in accordance with the following vesting schedule:

TEFREEER A

39. KA {E ()

“T—FFH 153

EFARRRERDEREEARERRT
ANBERITERM - (T2 HMRE D RERND
R AR AR RIE T 5B HR R AT
RIBROEEARBR DR

Maximum percentage of
option shares comprised in

an option which may be exercised

ATERBROEFRES
Vesting schedule BEREX REROEROGESBEIL
One year after the grant date R AEE—F 30%
Two years after the grant date B BB R 35%
Three years after the grant date REHHR®R=F 35%
Details of the share options granted up to the reporting date are as EENRERRLERERBROEFBLN
follows: ™~
Date of grant: 9 December 2008 BHBE —EENF+ZANE
Exercisable period: 9 December 2009 to FT{EER - —EZNFT_ANBEE
7 January 2019 —E-hF—-HA+tH
Exercise price: HK$0.325 1T1EE - 0.325%8 7T

Share options and weighted average exercise price are as follows for

W& ME A BB L INEFIHITEE

the reporting periods presented: E I
2011 2010
———% —T-TF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price exercise price
Number InEEH Number INHE 15
#A THEE A 17EfE
'000 HK$ ‘000 HK$
T4 BT T BT
Outstanding at 1 January W—A—BREKRITE 127,910 0.325 178,355 0.325
Exercised BiTE (57,035) 0.325 (50,445) 0.325
Outstanding at 31 December w+—_A=+—H
AR ITIE 70,875 0.325 127,910 0.325
Exercisable at the end of the year AL AT 70,875 0.325 65,260 0.325

The options outstanding at 31 December 2011 had a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 7 years (2010: 8 years). The weighted
average share price for share options exercised during the year at the
date of exercise was HK$0.96 (2010: HK$0.91) per share.

NZE——F+-A=+—AZH 7 2K
DHEZMEFHBRTANFHATF(ZZT—
T 8F) c FRCITHERBRMERITE
B H 2 pniEF R (B A EHR0.968 T (T —
TE 09158 7T) ©
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39. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued) 39.
Equity-settled share-based compensation of HK$2,983,000 (2010:
HK$7,631,000), comprising HK$506,000 (2010: HK$1,300,000) to
directors and HK$2,477,000 (2010: HK$6,331,000) to employees and
other eligible persons, has been included in profit or loss during the
year. The corresponding amount has been credited to share option
reserve (note 40). No liabilities were recognised on the equity-settled
share-based compensation transactions.

B E(E)

LARR A4 & 2 B 15 18 52,983,000 7T (=
=—ZF :7,631,00087L) BIEEEMAY
506,000 70 ( —Z—Z4F : 1,300,000 7T)
EENMEMAEER AITFZ2477,000% T
—T T 1 6331,000087T)  BERXD
STAFNIEL o BERED T ARBRG
M (MI5E40) - BEEBLIAR AL E 2 IRHEE
EXFHERERE -

RBE_TZTFR-_FT——F+=A
=+ RLFE - HEAEZESHHBOT

—E——5F

Movements of the New Scheme for the years ended 31 December 2010
and 2011 are as follows:

2011

Number of share options

REBROEHE

At 1 January Exercised At 31 December

2011 during 2011

ZEEMER R-T——F theyear RZ-ZTE——4F

Name or category of participants FrE %5l —A—H RERTE +=A=+—H

Executive directors BITES

Mr. Hon Kwok Lung IR A 2,450,000 (1,225,000) 1,225,000

Mr. Shang Jianguang PN E 5,600,000 (2,800,000) 2,800,000

Mr. Shi Tao amEsE 3,500,000 (1,750,000) 1,750,000

Mr. Lam Toi Man MR % 2,450,000 (1,225,000) 1,225,000
Independent non-executive directors BAEHITES

Mr. Fung Tze Wa BFERAE 2,450,000 (1,050,000) 1,400,000

Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael B EE L 2,450,000 (1,225,000) 1,225,000

Mr. Li Qiang ToRE 3,500,000 - 3,500,000

Sub-total %5 22,400,000 (9,275,000) 13,125,000
Other eligible employees Hib5EKEER

In aggregate A&t 45,430,000 (21,195,000) 24,235,000
Other eligible persons Hitg&EE AL

In aggregate B 60,080,000 (26,565,000) 33,515,000

Total @t 127,910,000 (57,035,000) 70,875,000
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39. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued) 39. R EE(E)
2010 —E-FF
Number of share options
RO ESAE
At 1 January  Reclassification Exercised At 31 December
2010  during the year during 2010
Name or category of SMmEME D RZE—FF RER theyear R-E—T4E
participants Fi B3 —A—H EHHE  RERTE +-A=1—A
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Hon Kwok Lung RIS A 3,500,000 - (1,050,000) 2,450,000
Mr. Shang Jianguang Bk E 8,000,000 - (2,400,000) 5,600,000
Mr. Shi Tao RiEE 5,000,000 - (1,500,000) 3,500,000
Mr. Lam Toi Man A 3,500,000 - (1,050,000) 2,450,000
Independent non-executive B FEHITES
directors
Mr. Fung Tze Wa FERE 3,500,000 - (1,050,000) 2,450,000
Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael BEhZ{E1E+ 3,500,000 - (1,050,000) 2,450,000
Mr. Li Qiang 3 e 3,500,000 - - 3,500,000
Sub-total et 30,500,000 - (8,100,000) 22,400,000
Other eligible employees HtEEKES
In aggregate &5t 97,355,000 (33,400,000) (18,525,000) 45,430,000
Other eligible persons HiEEB AL
In aggregate = 50,500,000 33,400,000 (23,820,000) 60,080,000
Total FEE 178,355,000 - (50,445,000) 127,910,000
40. RESERVES 40. f##s
GROUP REHE

The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements therein during the
year are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

In accordance with the PRC regulations, certain of the Group's
subsidiaries established in the PRC are required to transfer part of their
profits after tax to the statutory reserve before profit distributions are
made. The amounts of the transfers are subject to the approval of the
boards of the directors of these subsidiaries, in accordance with their
joint venture agreements and/or articles of association. The statutory

reserve is non-distributable and has restricted use.

Certain amounts of goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
in prior years remain eliminated against the consolidated reserves as

explained in note 21 to the financial statements.

ARENATE 2 HERARANEDER
B REEBRD -

RRPBDER - BT RHP BRI 2 AEE M
JBRBMEH SN D IRE - B E B BRER
EMEREAERGBES - BREABZL
EWBARCESFSEREAZAEHER
AT ERAAME - EERMEES A D
& BERBEMERS

TN TS SR 21 R RRE ¢ HOBIE AL I
WA R AR E T RENREA
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40. RESERVES (Continued)

41. #E(E)

COMPANY b/ /N
Share  Share option
premium reserve Other Retained
account  RERME reserve profits Total
RO BER it HithfE REBRA k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEr TEr THT TExT TEx
At 1 January 2010 —2-2%-A—H 447,848 16,440 - - 464,288
Placement of shares during the year EREERD 489,460 - 15,160 - 504,620
Proceeds from shares issued under BIEAER O EEIRT
share option scheme fo ZFM%?K 11,350 - - - 11,350
Exercise of share options TERERNME 7,650 (7,650) - - -
Recognition of equity-settled share-based LAHXK,%;EC W in (e
compensation (note 39) (F#$39) - 7,631 - - 7,631
Profit and total comprehensive income AEERMRE2ARALSE
for the year - - - 93,826 93,826
Payments of final 2009 final dividend RE_ZTNFEREKRE (6,259) - - - (6,259)
Payments of interim 2010 dividend BE—Z-TFHRERE
(note 14.1) (zE14.1) (56,161) - - - (56,161)
Proposed final 2010 dividend (note 14.1)  #E-Z—ZTFKRERE
(FEE14.1) (49,327) - - (93,826) (143,153)
At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 “E-TE+-A=+-H
r—E——F—F—H 844,561 16,421 15,160 - 876,142
Placement of shares during the year FEREERR 1,368 - 7,532 - 8,900
Repurchase of ordinary shares [ ERS (15,517) - - - (15,517)
Proceeds from shares issued under BERBROE BB
share option scheme R FTEHIE 12,826 - - - 12,826
Exercise of share options TERER N E 8,656 (8,656) - - -
Recognition of equity-settled share-based  PARRAEE 2z f i #1E
compensation (note 39) (M$3E39) - 2,983 - - 2,983
Profit and total comprehensive income RNEERNREERAZE
for the year - - - 170,095 170,095
Payments of final 2010 final dividend RN ZE-SFERERE (1,891) - - - (1,891)
Payments of interim 2011 dividend EN-—Z——FHRERE
(note 14.1) (FfsE14.1) (41,404) - - - (41,404)
Proposed final 2011 dividend (note 14.1) ¥R -Z——FRERE
(FizE14.1) (16,194) - - (170,095) (186,289)
At 31 December 2011 R-ZE-——&+=-H=+-H 792,405 10,748 22,692 - 825,845
Under the Companies Law Cap. 22, (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated BEHSHERREAENE(—ANN—FF3
and revised) of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the share premium BSE - & A RIEE]) » AR BIIRD HE
account of the Company are distributable to the shareholders of the BR7ELAHSIRTFARAGIINE - HEEEEE
Company provided that immediately following the date on which EOREEBHIE - ARRIBAERENEER

a dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of

business.

REEEBBETCE 'JHHZE?PZ
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41. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS/ 41.

COMMITMENTS
41.1 At 31 December 2011, total future minimum lease receivables by
the Group under non-cancellable leases are as follows:

FESREESRAT | —T 458 157

ReEBERH Rk

NI RZT—F+ZA=+—8 " RET
AR A - AR EEUCR R RIEH
EFRBEANT

2011 2010

=EB-—-F _"ZTZF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FABT

Within one year —&FR 9,690 9,947
In the second to fifth years FE_FEFERF 31,577 28,872
After five years hFB 40,426 39,147
Total Bt 81,693 77,966

The Group leases certain of its properties under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from one
to twenty years. None of the leases include contingent rentals.

A12 At 31 December 2011, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

AEBREEEHOLTHEHEET
WE REFROZBEEFINF—F
E_+FEAF - BEEOTERREIA
ik

N2 RZT—F+ZA=+—08 ' RET
AR 2 R E A A R R BT E K

BT
Group Company
EE RRF

2011 2010 2011 2010
=B _—T—=F =ZE-—-—-F "T-IZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THTT FE T TBTT
Within one year —F R 11,317 13,526 5,444 5,444
In the second to fifth years 55 — G EF R4 10,788 23,506 227 5,670
After five years HE% 7,496 9,994 - -
Total HET 29,601 47,026 5,671 11,114

The Group and the Company lease certain offices and factory
premises under operating lease arrangements. Leases for
properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to ten years.
None of the leases include contingent rentals.

AEBERARRRELEHEORER
ETMRAERTIHYE  ZEFHOZH
EFEENF—FE+FAF - FREELY
TEEHAEE -
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41. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS/
COMMITMENTS (Continued)

413 The Group is required to pay an annual fee in respect of the

42.

leasehold land in the PRC from 1992 up to 2042 with a 20%
increment for every five years. During the year, an annual fee of
HK$473,000 (2010: HK$473,000) was charged as an expense in
profit or loss of the Group.

41.

ReERERE EE(E)

N3 AEBE QWA ZFEE_TWN_FII
EAREERR —RBEEL I AHF
B FEBEGRAFEIN20% - FAN - K&
B EE473,00008 T ( — T — T4 ¢
473,000/ 70 ) B RA AN S B i M) S B 1B 4%
F Nk o

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 42. EARELE
GROUP REE
2011 2010
—E-—F —EZ-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHETT
Contracted, but not provided for BT NEREE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME BB NEE 991 36,843
Purchases of intangible assets (note a) HBEETEE(MTa) 62,730 -
Acquisition of an associate (note b) Wehs — B2 2|l (M5tb) 56,000 -
119,721 36,843

Notes:

On 29 December 2011, the Group entered into a framework agreement
(the "Framework Agreement”) with independent parties (the “Joint
Venture Partners”) to establish a joint venture company in the PRC,
namely Beijing Haina Tianshi Watch Company Limited (“Haina Tianshi"),
which will principally engage in the wholesale and retail of watches
and accessories in the PRC. Pursuant to the Framework Agreement, the
Group also agreed to pay RMB51,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$62,730,000) to the Joint Venture Partners as a consideration for
the transfers of certain intangible assets, including the trademarks and
suppliers and distributions networks to Haina Tianshi. The consideration
will be settled as to RMB6,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$7,995,000) by cash and as to RMB44,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$54,528,000) by issue and allotment of approximately
54,528,000 ordinary shares of the Company. As at 31 December 2011,
the Framework Agreement is not completed and subject to approval by
relevant government authority in the PRC. Details of the establishment
of Haina Tianshi and acquisition of intangible assets are set out in the
Company's announcement dated 29 December 2011.

GEX

(@) RZTE—F+ZA=+NA TEHEE
VEZH(TEERBMKE DT LIER &
(TMEE®E])  RPRBERZL—RBEHEE
AT AR EMREEREREAT(E
MKREE])  ZRARTERTEMREEEN
B e RTE o IRIFIEZRRZ - AEEIT
B ERE & QR IKHEZ A ARES1,000,000
TC (HBE R 4962,730,000/8 7T ) e B EE T
EBEAE(PRERS  HEBLDHES) T
BRREZRE REBURESIHTARE
6,500,0007T (F8E K2 477,995,000 7T) » AR
# 44,500,000 7T (48 & 7 #754,528,0007% 7t ) Bl
LA B2 1T B Bt 85 #4954,528,000 I 2K 2 &) F 48 i
B ERN R ZT——F+ZA=+—H "
HEZR ek i AR FEAK R AR B B HE R L
o HAHEE o KIDBI KR RINEERE
ENFBHRNARRARA-S—F+=
BT NB8HRMHRA -
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42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (Continued)
GROUP (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

43.

(b)

On 15 December 2011, the Group entered into an acquisition agreement
(the "Acquisition Agreement”) with an independent party (the “Vendor")
to acquire 25% of equity interest in Fair Future Industrial Limited
("Fair Future”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong. Fair Future and
its subsidiary are principally engaged in the manufacture of watches
and related accessories. Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, the
considerations for acquisition of the 25% of equity interest in Fair
Future of HK$56,000,000 will be settled by the issue and allotment of
approximately 56,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company on various
dates from January 2012 to January 2014. As at 31 December 2011, the
Acquisition Agreement is not completed and subject to certain conditions
precedent. Details of the acquisition of the 25% of equity interest in Fair
Future were set out in the Company's announcements dated 15 and 16
December 2011.

COMPANY

At 31 December 2011, the Company did not have any capital
commitments (2010: Nil).

431

FESREESRAT | T —F4% 159

42, ﬁz'xgkj:]&(nﬁ
REE (&)

MeE

(b)

(%)

MRZT——F+_A+HA  AEEEF
SE=ZHEGT DI LWERZE - AKB

BABZERAB(TEE] RREBEZM
PRS2 X)) 25% AR AN HE AR o & e K LB

R EE R SHEE AR RIS - *ETJ*HSZ
BinE  WBEABRRAERZRE
BRAR T _F-RE_T-MNF— ﬁ,ﬁﬁ
B A R BB 37T I Ac 3% 49 56,000,000 B A
REEBRBEMDEN - RZF——F+ A
=+—H  KREBHHEEKRTK  FEXKE
TRORIGIFR - TRIMFEE - WIBEE25%MK
AERZHABRARARBAHRR T ——F
TZATHERTARBORMA -

EANANE
R-Z——F+-A=+—0 AAFALE
EAERRE (T —FF &) -

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43. EREALIRS
Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, 431 %Zliﬁﬁ%iﬁ%zﬁﬁﬂ*ﬁ DT R &SN $
the following transactions connected transaction were carried out DEFRIE A TEITUA TR E
with related parties: % :
(i) Sales of goods (i) HEEY
2011 2010
—E——F —Z-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAETT
Sales of goods to joint venturer masHIHEED 425,102 568,108

Sales to joint venturer of the Group's jointly-controlled
entity, of which certain directors of the Company are also
directors. The amounts for both years were presented
under discontinued operations as set out in note 12.3. This
transaction constitutes connected transaction under the
Listing Rules.

ﬁﬂiﬁﬁ**F%%ﬁEﬁ%%ZK
AR ZEHEB2AETFH
%ﬁ’i MEFE 2 EBH2IRE

I B R (RMEE123) » %X
SENEMRAREZBHERS -
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

HE - Z——F+_A=1+—HBULFE

431 (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

43. EBEALTRS

431 (#8)

Rental income (i) HE£UWA
2011 2010
—E2——F —Z-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHET
Rental income received B YA 120 120
Sub-lease income received B U U A 864 991

This was received from a director and this was charged
at HK$10,000 per month on average (2010: HK$10,000).
Sub-lease income was received from a company of which
certain directors of the Company are also directors of the
related company, and this was charged at HK$72,000 (2010:
HK$83,000) per month on average. These transactions

FiAEmARE —BESK
B - e FH5 A10,0008 (=
= — T4 10,0008 7C) o DU
AJhE—RERAEWE - mARAEH
FEENAZBAARZES - H
©FHFAH72,000ET(ZE—F

constitute connected transactions under the Listing Rules. 2 83,00087T) c ZERFHHEK
FHRARE 2 BER S -

Outstanding balances arising from sales of (i) HEBMZREREREFTTA
goods included in trade receivables VR KR RE

2011 2010

—EB——F _"T-ZF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

Due from joint venturer JBULE & KRR - 55,268

The Group did not have any balances with the joint venturer
as at 31 December 2011. The balance as at 31 December
2010 was presented under assets of a disposal group
classified as held for sale as set out in note 12.5.

JEA:?@——¢+_H_+ EREFIN

A ST W EEMERR - R
f EE+_A=t+—HZ&EH
T2IRBERFELEZHER
FIEERT  ARBERENME
12.5°
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
431 (Continued)
(iv) Outstanding balances included in other

FESREESRAT | —T—458 161

43. ERREALRZ (E&)
131 (#8)
(iv) Bt AEMMERF ZRENE

receivables 53
2011 2010
i
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Due from related companies FEUCRAE N T 5 R 1,545 5
Due from joint venturer FEME & R - 686

The balance of amounts due from related companies as at
31 December 2011 includes an amount previously classified
as due from a joint venturer. Upon completion of disposal of
the jointly controlled entity, such joint venturer is regarded as
a related company as certain directors of the Company are
also the directors of this joint venturer. The balance as at 31
December 2010 was presented under assets of a disposal
group classified as held for sale as set out in note 12.5.

R_E——F+_-_A=+—HZJE
RSB ARIRE  BIEZAE DA
BER—REEHFRAZEHE 7T
RS K RIEHIEEEE - ARAE
EETESNABEQARZES
ZEEHERABEERR - RZT
—EFE+-_AZ+—HZEHE
RS EAIBIELE 2 HEHARIE
EE (ERHIFE12.5) ©
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 43. EEEALR S (E)

432KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
COMPENSATION

Included in staff costs are key management personnel

132 FEEBAE2HE

TBEBABZHEFABIRANRN -

compensation and comprises the following categories: BIELA TR -
2011 2010
—E——F C—T-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER T
Short-term employee benefits REEEREAN 12,110 10,099
Post-employment benefits BB 18 12 T 108 92
Equity-settled share-based compensation AR #EE 2 B fn i (8 506 1,300
12,724 11,491

The key management represents all directors of the Group.
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 17.1

TREBRABRAKELRES - A
EEME 2 E—TFBHNHHREM

to the financial statements. FE17.1 0
44. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 44. WEE B B A F]
On 29 June 2011, the Group acquired the entire equity interests MNZZE——FRAZ+NB  XEERER
of Eterna Group, which is principally engaged in manufacture and Mt RERFERERERDHFERRE
distribution of watches and timepieces in Switzerland and Germany, for STrmFEEERHRAER  BReRE
a cash consideration of HK$213,920,000. Following the acquisition, the 4$213,920,000% 7T - W& - AEBEHE A
Group owned the entire equity interest in Eterna Group and obtained FEESEPTRARRRBRIRGHFES
the control over Eterna Group through the Group's right to nominate EEEemMaNREmESaFESER 24
all the members of Eterna Group's board of directors, and Eterna o MBFEEBKNALAEER 2 2B B
Group become wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group. The acquisition NAElc WEAFELEEEESAEEERK
of Eterna Group was made with the aim to expand the Group's Wrat 75 BUE I 5 $H15 DAMERE -
manufacture and distribution of watches and timepieces business.
Details of the net assets acquired as at the date of acquisition are as RRERE - BABEFEIFEAT
follows:
HK$'000
T
Cash consideration paid IR &R (E 213,920
Less: Fair value of net assets acquired B BAFEECRATE (260,824)
Excess of fair value of the net identifiable assets AR REE 2 A T EBRKENE QR
over the cost of acquisition of subsidiaries AR 2 ZEE 46,904
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44. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 44. WEEHIB AR (&)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities arising from

—“T——%5% 163

WEaFEREMELAHNIEERABER

the acquisition of Eterna Group as at the date of acquisition and the W R AFEANEE W EAERER
corresponding carrying amounts immediately prior to the acquisition BuF :
were as follows:

Acquirees’
carrying
amount

Fair value WEHR

NEE IREE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT FAT

Property, plant and equipment (note 18) YIEE - BB R (FRE18) 94,418 93,418

Intangible assets (note 26) |\ & E (Mi5k26) 36,700 -

Deferred tax assets (note 37) RETHE 2 (M1EE37) 8,671 -

Inventories FE 174,808 150,908

Trade and bill receivables FE U BR R B R R 11,579 11,579

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FENFRIE - R & N B At FE R 5,671 5,671

Cash and cash equivalents ReERBLEEY 4,445 4,445

Trade payables FERTBRFR (34,799) (34,799)

Other payables and accruals Hibh ISR kB A (31,998) (31,998)

Deferred tax liabilities (note 37) EEF B A E(H7E37) (8,671) -

Shareholder's loan R E (533,511) (533,511)

Net liabilities BEFHE (272,687) (